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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The Committee on

          3  Health is now in session. Sergeant-At-Arms, can we

          4  have a little order in the Chambers?

          5                 Good morning, I am Council Member

          6  Victor Robles, and I am privileged to preside over

          7  the Committee on Health. I have an opening statement

          8  but we are privileged this morning, and I am very

          9  fortunate because I have a person who not only is

         10  the Speaker but someone who we rely upon whenever

         11  things happen that we need to focus on, particularly

         12  when it comes to appropriation of funds when we did

         13  not do it in the budget and so I must say that I

         14  have been privileged to serve under his leadership.

         15  I have been here before he was the Speaker, and I

         16  must tell you that I am very comfortable with the

         17  Speaker, that I am honored, as they would normally

         18  say, I have the high honor of introducing the

         19  Speaker of the Council of the City of New York,

         20  Council Speaker Peter Vallone.

         21                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Thank you very much,

         22  Mr. Chairman.

         23                 Chairman Victor Robles, my colleagues

         24  in the City Council, and just about all of us will

         25  be here before the day is over. This past summer was
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          2  a long one for many New Yorkers. It seemed that

          3  every day mother nature was doing the best to make

          4  life as difficult as possible for all of us. It

          5  started with a month of record head and ended with a

          6  mysterious virus that put our City's emergency

          7  management team to its first real test.

          8                 There have been reports in the last

          9  several days that this outbreak was somehow the

         10  result of a biological terrorist attack, there is

         11  just no evidence to suggest that that is the case.

         12                 But there is plenty evidence to

         13  suggest that we are unprepared for the worst of

         14  mother nature, let alone the worst of man.

         15                 This summer started with a blackout,

         16  and ended with a mosquito-born virus. And just as

         17  Con Edison has an inadequate infrastructure to deal

         18  with the record heat, the City, the State and the

         19  federal government have an inadequate infrastructure

         20  to track viruses.

         21                 But for the tenacity of a pathologist

         22  at the Bronx Zoo, we still might be talking about

         23  St. Louis encephalitis. This researcher, Dr. Tracy

         24  McNamara, is with us today.

         25                 Dr. McNamara, I just want you to
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          2  stand up for a second. You will hear from her in a

          3  few moments.

          4                 Dr. McNamara didn't put her head in

          5  the sand when she found out birds were dying in late

          6  spring and early summer. She did not hide from the

          7  evidence. She sought an explanation.

          8                 Dr. McNamara informed me that she

          9  used equipment funded by the Council Research grants

         10  to make her discovery. That is certainly one

         11  investment that this Council made, one Council

         12  initiative, that paid off immeasurably.

         13                 During an outbreak every minute

         14  counts, but because of a lack of communication at

         15  the federal level we lost weeks. Experts are billing

         16  this outbreak as a test case and biological

         17  preparedness. Only the City of New York is receiving

         18  high marks.

         19                 The Office of Emergency Management

         20  did a great job catching up to what they thought

         21  were mosquitos carrying St. Louis Encephalitis, and

         22  as I told Jerry Hauer, of the Office of Emergency

         23  Management, certainly proved to me and other

         24  skeptics that they were necessary and capable in

         25  times of emergency.
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          2                 However, we must not be lulled into a

          3  false sense of security just because most of the

          4  mosquitos are gone. We need to examine the spraying

          5  of the strain and whether or not we were spraying

          6  the proper mosquitos. While St. Louis Encephalitis

          7  is carried primarily by mosquitos that are active at

          8  night, West Nile is carried by mosquitos that are

          9  active during the day.

         10                 The Council is aware that during any

         11  emergency things can go wrong and it is easy to make

         12  mistakes, but we are not here today to point

         13  fingers.

         14                 But we are here to ensure that we do

         15  everything we can do to prevent incidents like this

         16  from occurring in the future.

         17                 Not only does this mean taking

         18  adequate and safe precautions to protect against

         19  mosquitos, but also means ensuring that the City has

         20  a way to verify third-party information.

         21                 I am very disturbed that this virus

         22  was misdiagnosed. I am even more disturbed that many

         23  questions seem to have gone unasked and many more

         24  seem to have gone unanswered.

         25                 The people of the City of New York
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          2  have waited long enough for answers. They have

          3  endured helicopters spraying insecticides over their

          4  families, they have endured the confusion about the

          5  spraying schedule, and the misdiagnosis of the

          6  virus. So, today we begin the effort to ask and

          7  answer as many questions as possible.

          8                 The purpose of today's hearing is to

          9  ask the questions that need to be asked, to listen

         10  to testimony from the experts and the public, and to

         11  attempt to establish an accurate time line for the

         12  events surrounding the outbreak.

         13                 We are not here to make assumptions.

         14  We are not here to create an uproar. We are here

         15  today to examine the facts surrounding the outbreak,

         16  to evaluate the City's response to protecting the

         17  public health, and to determine the best way to

         18  proceed in the future.

         19                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Speaker.

         22                 Before I do my opening remarks, let

         23  me do some house chores, if I may. First, I would

         24  like to introduce my colleagues, members of this

         25  Committee, and Council Members who have joined us
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          2  also.

          3                 Let me start with my extreme right.

          4  From the Borough of Staten Island, Council Member

          5  Jim Oddo, who also is a member of this Committee.

          6  From two boroughs, Manhattan and the Bronx, a member

          7  of this Committee, Council Member Phil Reed, and of

          8  course, the former chair of this Committee that I

          9  served under and privileged to have him as a senior

         10  member, Council Member from Queens, Council Member

         11  Marty Povman. I call him the money man, the man who

         12  holds the purse, the Chairman of the Finance

         13  Committee, Council Member Herb Berman, who happens

         14  to be from Brooklyn. From the Borough of Manhattan,

         15  Council Member Pedro Espada -- oh, I am sorry, the

         16  Bronx. I see Council Member Mike Abel from Queens,

         17  and I know that Council Member Gifford Miller from

         18  Manhattan is also joining us, and there will be

         19  members coming back and forth, there are other

         20  Committees.

         21                 Good morning. As I said, I am Council

         22  Member Victor Robles, and I am privileged to preside

         23  and be the chair of this Committee. And welcome to

         24  this Committee's oversight hearing on the

         25  Encephalitis Outbreak.
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          2                 Today we will be taking a very close

          3  look at New York City's emergency response, to

          4  determine the appropriate and safest steps that are

          5  taken to combat the virus.

          6                 As you know, this is a virus carried

          7  by mosquitos that cause swelling of the brain which

          8  can be fatal, especially in the elderly and infants.

          9                 New York City officials have

         10  responded by spraying malathion and other chemicals

         11  throughout the entire City.

         12                 At this hearing today the Committee

         13  will review the progress of the aerial and ground

         14  spraying and explore the preventative measures that

         15  can be taken to reduce the risk of outbreaks of this

         16  nature from occurring in the future.

         17                 The hearing will also afford the

         18  public an opportunity to express views on the City's

         19  spraying and preparation. Despite the Mayor's

         20  repeated claim that Malathion is completely safe,

         21  serious concerns have been raised by many public

         22  health groups regarding the use of this chemical and

         23  its affect on human beings.

         24                 We need to hear the concerns

         25  regarding the types of chemicals that are being
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          2  used, the spraying schedule and the areas being

          3  sprayed, such as schools and others.

          4                 Expected to testify, as the Speaker

          5  indicated, is Dr. Tracy McNamara, and I must also

          6  echo and I must say that this Council and this

          7  Committee, through the leadership of Speaker

          8  Vallone, we sometimes put money into research and

          9  some people question us why we are doing this when

         10  there are other ways to use it. I must say that,

         11  again, I echo, that it was the kind of cooperation,

         12  and I must say from someone within the Bronx Zoo

         13  operation that today it was her who really brought

         14  us to what really was not the St. Louis, but rather

         15  what the Speaker indicated, as we said.

         16                 Others coming before us, no doubt, is

         17  my colleague that I work with close, Dr. Neal Cohen,

         18  the City Health Commissioner, and another person

         19  that I have had the privilege of working closely

         20  with, not only on this issue, but others, including

         21  hurricanes, Jerry Hauer, the Director of the Mayor's

         22  Office of Emergency Management.

         23                 Various experts and environmental

         24  experts will also testify.

         25                 I would like to state for the record,
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          2  as I said, it was Dr. McNamara, who first discovered

          3  that the virus was killing birds in the Bronx Zoo

          4  and elsewhere in the New York area, was the West

          5  Nile Virus.

          6                 The CDC then reclassified the virus

          7  that was infecting residents as the West Nile and

          8  not St. Louis. I would like to congratulate, like

          9  the Speaker, Dr. McNamara, for her efforts.

         10                 At this hearing I would like to, and

         11  this Committee would like to know, where we were

         12  when the outbreak first occurred, where we are now,

         13  and what we can do to collectively, as City

         14  government officials, to prevent this sort of

         15  outbreak from happening again.

         16                 Having said that, let me then call

         17  upon our first panel, and I will ask my Counsel to

         18  my Committee, Jose Orengo, to call up the first

         19  panel.

         20                 MR. ORENGO: Dr. Tracy McNamara. Dr.

         21  Robert Simon and Mr. Jay Feldman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me say, not

         23  only for you but for anyone who testifies, we are

         24  into the technology or technical arena where we

         25  don't have a stenographer, we have tapes. So,
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          2  although we did call your name, would you each

          3  individually identify yourselves for the record, and

          4  then, Doctor, would you proceed.

          5                 Push the red button.

          6                 DR. McNAMARA: My name is Dr. Tracy

          7  McNamara. I am the head of the Department of

          8  Pathology for the Wildlife Conservation Society,

          9  headquarters at the Bronx Zoo.

         10                 DR. SIMON: I am Dr. Robert K. Simon.

         11  I speak loudly, I probably don't need a microphone.

         12  I am a Ph.D chemist/toxicologist from both Tampa,

         13  Florida and Fairfax, Virginia, who is here today

         14  because I am very interested in what is happening in

         15  New York City, and I am going to talk about the

         16  chemistry of the spraying and other factors involved

         17  in the use of malathion in New York City.

         18                 MR. FELDMAN: My name is Jay Feldman,

         19  I am Executive Director of the National Coalition

         20  Against the Misuse of Pesticides. We are based in

         21  Washington, D.C., and serve as a national

         22  clearinghouse for information on pesticides hazards

         23  and alternative strategies for pest management.

         24                 DR. McNAMARA: Thank you, again, for

         25  inviting me to today's hearings. I just would like

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  to start by saying, everyone in the City knows about

          3  the Bronx Zoo and people come and our animals and

          4  our exhibits, but I think by and large the general

          5  public is unaware of the science going on behind the

          6  scenes. And in fact, our Wildlife Health Center has

          7  departments in nutrition, veterinary medicine and

          8  pathology and something else people probably are not

          9  generally aware of is the fact that the Bronx Zoo is

         10  one of six zoos in the United States with the vision

         11  and foresight to the fund the Department of

         12  Pathology in-house.

         13                 That having said, basically my job as

         14  a pathologist is to detect diseases that could

         15  threaten the health and welfare of the valuable

         16  animals in our care. We are particularly sensitive

         17  of the possibility of introduced disease from free

         18  ranging wildlife and water fowl, and that is what

         19  led to my involvement with this investigation.

         20                 In early summer, the Bronx Zoo

         21  started receiving phone calls, anecdotal reports of

         22  crows dying in Queens and Manhattan, and in early to

         23  mid-August we started seeing some of these Crows on

         24  our facilities ground, and in the surrounding areas.

         25                 As the jurisdiction for free-ranging
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          2  wildlife falls to the Department of Environmental

          3  Conservation, we submitted a number of these birds

          4  several times for analysis.

          5                 On September 3rd, the first report of

          6  a St. Louis Encephalitis case in New York City was

          7  announced, and that to me said that we knew we had a

          8  mosquito-borne disease in the City at that time.

          9                 The day after Labor Day, September

         10  7th, we had our first recognizable cases of

         11  encephalitis at the zoo, and in the following week,

         12  a number of very valuable birds in the Bronx Zoo

         13  collection were lost. In total we lost 20 birds.

         14                 I had to ask myself a question at

         15  that point whether there could be a possible link

         16  between the crow deaths and the fact that we had a

         17  known mosquito-borne disease ongoing at the time and

         18  the fact that we now are losing birds at the Bronx

         19  Zoo. Histologically, under the microscope the

         20  lesions in the crows and the zoo birds were the

         21  same.

         22                 As required by law, we contacted the

         23  USDA regional veterinary services and the New York

         24  State Department of Agriculture and Markets for

         25  permission to submit samples to the National
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          2  Veterinary Services Laboratory in Ames, Iowa. We do

          3  that whenever there is an unusual disease outbreak

          4  in birds, out of concern for some of the poultry

          5  diseases that these people screened for.

          6                 However, I had special training at

          7  Plum Island, the Foreign Animal Disease Lab, and my

          8  gut feeling was, having actually seen Newcastles and

          9  the influenza that we were not dealing with either

         10  one of those diseases, but that we were dealing with

         11  an encephalitis. We communicated that to the head of

         12  the Avian Section out at NVSL and they immediately

         13  started working on this problem.

         14                 In addition, out of concern that this

         15  -- you know, it just didn't make sense, we were

         16  losing birds to a virus that traditionally is not

         17  known to kill them. If it were St. Louis

         18  Encephalitis, none of our zoo birds should have been

         19  dying. They are from the northern and southern

         20  hemispheres, and the one piece that really didn't

         21  fit, and I guess we have to thank the zoo for having

         22  emus those are birds from Australia that are known

         23  to be exquisitely sensitive to one of the other

         24  encephalitis viruses, and they were fine. So, it

         25  just didn't add up. So I guess we owe it to the
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          2  emus. But that was the logic that led me to feel

          3  that this might be a different strain and that

          4  basically the birds haven't read the books and that

          5  we needed to think outside of the box. At that

          6  point, on the same day I contacted the CDC and

          7  received permission to send samples out to Fort

          8  Collins, to the Arboviral Research Lab.

          9                 Over the course of the next few weeks

         10  I also spoke with Dr. Leo Grady at the New York

         11  State Department of Health. I was referred to him

         12  through the CDC and he was extremely helpful in

         13  terms of providing information. And I also contacted

         14  other veterinary pathology colleagues in Washington,

         15  D.C.

         16                 Over the course of the next week, we

         17  exchanged information freely on a daily basis. Each

         18  laboratory was using its own expertise to try and

         19  find another piece of the puzzle, and whenever you

         20  think you are dealing with something potentially

         21  new, it is a standard operating procedure to try and

         22  have multiple laboratories working on it for

         23  independent confirmation of a diagnosis.

         24                 The culmination of these events

         25  resulted in the diagnosis of a West Nile-like virus,
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          2  a virus previously unknown to the western

          3  hemisphere. At present we have ongoing collaborative

          4  efforts, including discussions with the CDC, the

          5  National Veterinary Services Laboratory out in Ames,

          6  New York City and New York State Departments of

          7  Health, the National Wildlife Health Center out in

          8  Madison, Wisconsin, the USDA and others.

          9                 In closing, personally these events

         10  have been the most rewarding and exciting of my

         11  professional career. No one could have predicted the

         12  arrival of this virus. It came out of left field.

         13  And as someone who has been involved with this since

         14  the beginning, I have been struck by the

         15  extraordinary efforts and teamwork on the part of

         16  the medical and veterinary community, and this

         17  research, cut across institutional, professional, it

         18  cut across all lines. I had people's home numbers, I

         19  had people's beeper numbers, we were talking to each

         20  other at 11:00 at night. I mean, people really

         21  pulled out all the stops.

         22                 I think the New York City Council has

         23  to be commended for its foresight and vision in

         24  providing support to the scientific programs at the

         25  Bronx Zoo, and, frankly, but for the fact that we
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          2  have the equipment that made it possible to get the

          3  samples that ultimately led to this diagnosis, I

          4  don't know what we would be talking about today.

          5                 So, once again, I congratulate you

          6  for your support and commitment to health programs

          7  and we look forward to continued collaborative

          8  efforts with the City Council and City agencies,

          9  with your support we hope we will be able to do even

         10  more in the future.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I suggest you use

         13  your mic, even though you are strong.

         14                 DR. SIMON: Thank you very much. Dr.

         15  McDonnell did a great job of introducing biology

         16  this morning.

         17                 My name is Robert K. Simon, and I am

         18  here to talk about chemistry. Chemistry, that thing

         19  we love, but we really don't want to know much

         20  about. And if I begin by saying something strange, I

         21  will emphasize my point for the rest of the talk.

         22                 I have been asking people throughout

         23  the United States to take 81 milligrams of

         24  acetylsalicylic acid, and no one has raised their

         25  right hand. And I am talking about heart attack
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          2  victims. And then I said, okay, I will change the

          3  medication, would you agree to take 81 milligrams of

          4  aspirin - oh, yeah, I take it every day. That is the

          5  state of chemistry in the United States of America

          6  and the world today. So, I appreciate the City

          7  Council inviting me here to talk about the chemistry

          8  of malathion, because the first thing I have to say

          9  is, we are not really here to talk about malathion,

         10  we are here to talk about Fyfanon. What in the world

         11  is Fyfanon? F-y-f-a-n-o-n ULV, that is what we are

         12  talking about. And the reason I have said on several

         13  radio programs it is an extremely dangerous

         14  hazardous pesticide that should never, ever have

         15  been sprayed over 8 million people in New York City,

         16  my continuing opinion, is because malathion is only

         17  one component of the mixture.

         18                 We start out with 96 percent

         19  malathion and if the temperature goes above 70

         20  degrees Fahrenheit, and let's remember June, July

         21  and August of this year, it degrades to two very

         22  toxic chemicals. And excuse me, Newsday, but you get

         23  an F in chemistry. When you say that malathion

         24  disappears and degrades rapidly to a non-toxic

         25  product, I am not going to even let you repeat the
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          2  course, go back to the eighth grade.

          3                 Studies have clearly shown, and most

          4  of this is in the last 15 years, since this product

          5  was first submitted to the USEPA for approval in

          6  1983. Malaoxon sounds like a strange name but it is

          7  a very simple change. Take the sulfur off of the

          8  phosphorus and put an oxygen on the phosphorus

          9  molecule and you have malaoxon, and if you have

         10  something in the body called cholinesterase,

         11  lookout, because malaoxon loves cholinesterase,

         12  1,000 times more than malathion does. And if these

         13  barrels and these cans were actually sitting out in

         14  Queens in the sun, as we suspect they were until

         15  Last Thursday evening, when trucks magically

         16  appeared to take them away, and if the temperature

         17  got over 70 degrees Fahrenheit, which I know it did,

         18  even in September, then we made another chemical,

         19  isomalathion. I know what it is, it is very simple

         20  to me, it is called an isomer. But to you it means I

         21  love cholinesterase 8,000 times more than malathion.

         22                 So, what actually was sprayed over

         23  New York? New York City, to the best of my

         24  knowledge, does not know the answer to that

         25  question, and the reason they do not know the answer
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          2  is nobody thought of the one quality control check,

          3  which is the first thing that any sensible chemist

          4  always does. I am going to go into my laboratory and

          5  I am going to pick up a vial of something. And I am

          6  going to use it in my lab. And before I do

          7  something, I know that down the road some lawyer is

          8  going to say, well, Doctor, how do you know it was

          9  99.9 percent pure when you used it? And I will say,

         10  well, Mr. Lawyer, I have this sheet here from the

         11  company, who made it in Denmark, and they said it

         12  was 96 percent pure.

         13                 But Doctor, what about the heat? Did

         14  you check it, Doctor, before you used it? Because if

         15  you didn't, I am moving for summary judgment in this

         16  case. And summary judgment in this case is --

         17  please. And I am not here to criticize the City of

         18  New York, I am really here to ask for information.

         19  Do you have analysis from the 55 gallon drums and

         20  the five gallon cans of Fyfanon ULV that you sprayed

         21  over 8 million people? Because without even knowing

         22  her or speaking to her, but listening to her this

         23  morning, there is something that Dr. McDonnell (sic)

         24  and I are positive that we can agree on, spraying 8

         25  million people with a toxic brew of chemicals is the
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          2  first and largest uncontrolled epidemiological study

          3  ever done in the history of the world.

          4                 And what worries me this morning is,

          5  I don't have any answers for you. That is scaring

          6  the devil out of me, because i started faxing

          7  officials in New York City over Labor Day.

          8                 A reporter asked me last night, why

          9  in the world did you get involved with New York

         10  City? And I said, I don't want to give you all of

         11  the personal reasons, but a few of them are, I was

         12  born in Peconic on the Eastern end of Long Island, I

         13  have been a Yankee fan for 60 years, I am a

         14  fanatic.  I have been to New York City perhaps more

         15  than some of the residents. And if Long Island

         16  Railroad and Penn Station go out of business, I am

         17  in deep trouble.

         18                 So, I have a personal interest in New

         19  York. But as a scientist, I have a major concern in

         20  what was used. If anybody bothers to read my

         21  presentation and address this morning, they will see

         22  that I have ended with five rules. I am not here to

         23  give you rules because I have any authority. I speak

         24  for mother nature, and I speak for sister chemistry,

         25  and I have learned over the last 45 years that I
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          2  have been in school and working in my career, that

          3  we do not play with chemistry. So, here are a few

          4  questions that I ask New York:

          5                 Have you tested the air inside of

          6  buildings, like the one we are sitting in right now?

          7                 Do you know if malathion has moved

          8  inside with the mosquito?

          9                 Have you done a wipe test on a table,

         10  a bench in Central Park, the soil?

         11                 You are also being told,

         12  unfortunately, that malathion degrades not only to a

         13  nontoxic product, which is incorrect, and not being

         14  told anywhere about isomalathion, but you are also

         15  being told, oh, it disappears. You can go outside,

         16  don't worry about it. If the helicopter is gone, go

         17  outside.

         18                 Did anybody read anything in New York

         19  City? There is something called a label. There is

         20  something called a material safety data sheet, and

         21  if you read the technical bulletin of the company

         22  that has made this product, you are going to find

         23  out that they are one smart bunch of people. They

         24  are good toxicologists, they are good chemists, and

         25  if you read what they said, they laid it all out in
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          2  glowing terms for you.

          3                 Here is one. Do not wear contaminated

          4  clothing. If you are the football team in Queens who

          5  were sprayed, did anybody call them up and say throw

          6  the uniforms away, you can't wash it out?

          7                 Did anybody bother to tell the guys

          8  you sprayed down in the subway the REI, that is OSHA

          9  jargon for Re-Entry Interval, is 12 hours. And what

         10  that means for the City Council this morning is, if

         11  the helicopter comes over, we are going to have a

         12  late night waiting in this room. According to the

         13  law. Workers are not allowed to re-enter a treated

         14  area unless they have a respirator and a protective

         15  suit on for 12 hours. That is called the Worker

         16  Protection Act.

         17                 It came in in 1994, but all of this

         18  has been on material safety data sheets since '83.

         19  So, we have bad information handed out to give us

         20  bad information, which unfortunately has caused the

         21  Newsday to get mentioned by Bob Simon today as

         22  flunking chemistry.

         23                 Well, I will tell the Newsday that I

         24  read your paper instead of the New York Times, so

         25  maybe that will make you feel a little bit better.
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          2                 The bottom line is, we need to

          3  address the chemistry of this situation. I am

          4  totally and completely confident that what Dr.

          5  McDonnell started some months ago is being eminently

          6  handled by CDC, Dr. Beresi in California, the people

          7  in England and Dr. Wong and others at New York

          8  Department of Health. They are very good biologists.

          9  They are going to crack the DNA code of this virus

         10  and they will tell us exactly what it is. And they

         11  will tell us who carried it and whether the ticks

         12  have it and which birds have the most. They are

         13  good.

         14                 I don't understand the lack of candor

         15  and the incorrect information from the City of New

         16  York, all of its officials, CDC, EPA, the list is

         17  very long.

         18                 There is a group in CDC called ATSDR,

         19  Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry.

         20  They are under contract since 1992 to provide

         21  toxicological profiles for the USEPA. If you look

         22  back at what they are doing, they still don't have a

         23  malathion toxicological profile. You ask why? Here

         24  is the answer. They are still studying it. Because

         25  here are some of the things that have come out
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          2  Fyfanon ULV in the last 15 years. And I don't say

          3  these as absolute facts, because in science there is

          4  no absolute. There is no such thing as absolutely

          5  safe. There is no such thing as extremely safe.

          6  There is no such thing as very safe. It is called

          7  risk benefit. Spray the population, kill the

          8  mosquitos, what is the risk? Very simple equation

          9  but hard as the devil to calculate, because

         10  scientists always want to waffle-weave.

         11                 So, let's get back to ATSDR and why

         12  they haven't put out the profile. Because there is

         13  something in EPA called DataGap. No, it is not

         14  biotech, it means we don't know. We don't have, we

         15  need more studies.

         16                 So, let's talk about the immune

         17  system, let's talk about the cholinesterase

         18  poisoning, the isomalathion and malaoxon. Let's talk

         19  about several studies coming out saying, gee, we

         20  thought malathion was not carcinogenic, now we are

         21  not quite so sure and we are seeing some cancer

         22  cases in some of the laboratory studies with

         23  malathion. And we are seeing some developmental

         24  birth defects in some studies where in the second

         25  trimester a woman is exposed to malathion and low
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          2  and behold her child has gastrointestinal birth

          3  defects. Do we have all of the answers? No.

          4                 Were we in a position to spray New

          5  York, 8 million people, with malathion? Absolutely

          6  not.

          7                 So, what do we need to do? Let's jump

          8  to today. All of that is in the past. The first

          9  thing we need to do is test. We need information. If

         10  the City Council, the Mayor's Office, CDC, New York

         11  State, New York DEC, who does a lot of this stuff in

         12  water, doesn't have the facilities to do the

         13  testing, I could do it and I could name 100

         14  scientists that can do it even better than me.

         15                 We need to test the air inside of

         16  buildings, because there is another thing that I

         17  haven't mentioned this morning that doesn't come

         18  from Bob Simon, it comes from industry, the Spray

         19  Drift Task Force, formed at the request of EPA in

         20  1988, and here is what they said: Go ahead, spray

         21  Central Park, you are 100 feet off the ground, 200

         22  feet with your helicopter, and guess where the spray

         23  is? East side, west side, all around the town. Three

         24  and a half miles, seven miles, 12 miles away and on

         25  top of the Empire State Building. And if you don't
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          2  believe me, read the two notebooks I brought with me

          3  this morning from the Spray Drift Task Force on

          4  malathion.

          5                 Go down the Street of the Dominican

          6  Republic with a spray truck, and go in and hide

          7  under the bed. That is what they did. But when they

          8  were hiding under the bed, with the doors closed and

          9  the windows closed, guess what happened? Malathion

         10  came inside and got under the bed and they got wipe

         11  samples and air samples that were positive. How did

         12  it get inside? Because chemistry does not care what

         13  you tell it to do. It does what it wants to do. And

         14  if you have a 30 or a 10 or a 5 micron particle that

         15  none of you can see unless we have an electron

         16  microscope, it is going to go where it wants to. And

         17  so if somebody in New York City, before they put

         18  helicopter number one out there, had bothered to

         19  read the label, and the instructions from Kalnova

         20  (phonetic), the manufacturer for Fyfanon ULV, here

         21  is what it said:"The most effective low-drift of

         22  this product will be if the boom is no further than

         23  five feet off the ground and the swathe width is no

         24  greater than 55 feet and if you keep all the

         25  particles between 30 and 50 microns."
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          2                 Let me tell you something. They may

          3  be good helicopter pilots, but those are pretty

          4  strict restrictions. And there aren't too many

          5  people that can do it in Central Park. So, I know

          6  they weren't five feet off the ground.

          7                 The trucks probably were five feet

          8  off the ground, and they did less damage. But nobody

          9  followed the rules. Everybody pontificated

         10  chemistry, and now we don't know the answers.

         11                 So, we need to go inside a building,

         12  very methodically, I am not here to create panic, as

         13  I heard somebody say before when I was walking in

         14  the door, but I am here to get answers. What is in

         15  the air in the buildings, because the heat is on.

         16  What is on the surfaces? What is in the soil at

         17  Central Park. Did something get in the water? Those

         18  birds and monarch butterflies that have already

         19  died, has anybody analyzed them for malaoxon and

         20  isomalathion?

         21                 You know, you hear a lot of things, I

         22  read a lot of things and at 45 years I have seen a

         23  lot of things, and I go back to my Professor Bill

         24  Purdy. One day when my Ph.D thesis research was in

         25  total disarray and I thought I would never get out
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          2  of the University of Maryland, he said here is what

          3  you need to do, you idiot. You have been looking at

          4  the abstracts of the abstracts of the abstracts. Go

          5  down and read the original article, what does it

          6  say? And God bless the Hungarians, they had

          7  translated their article into English and I read it

          8  and my research took off. You have to check the

          9  facts. You have to know what is going on. You cannot

         10  ignore chemistry. And for the sake of biology, which

         11  I agree is extremely important, we have ignored

         12  chemistry in New York City.

         13                 So, I have the audacity to come here

         14  this morning, and propose Simon's rules one through

         15  five. You can read what they are, but very simply it

         16  is this:

         17                 Don't spray. Don't spray. Don't

         18  spray. Don't spray anywhere in New York City,

         19  because biologists that I have now talked to say

         20  mosquito is over Bob, it is hibernating, it is in

         21  the buildings, did you take enough malathion with it

         22  to kill it? I don't know. Nobody tested.

         23                 Don't spray anymore this year. Test

         24  inside of buildings to reassure the people that they

         25  know what is going on. Publish in the newspaper, I
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          2  am sorry, but this is chemistry, publish in the

          3  newspaper the label for Fyfanon ULV and the material

          4  safety data sheet because if you all were my

          5  employees this morning, before I could have

          6  addressed you here, I would be required by law to

          7  give you all an MSDS, make you read it and sign it

          8  and put it in your personnel file, that is how the

          9  system really works.

         10                 Tell the people of New York, who I

         11  think, excuse me the rest of the world, are the

         12  greatest, smartest people in the world, from the

         13  taxi driver to the police officer to the sanitation

         14  worker, including the guy that got me over here this

         15  morning when I went to the wrong building, tell them

         16  what is going on.  And then, and I am sure Jay

         17  Feldman will tell you a lot more than I am, but then

         18  start planning for next year. And I brought a book

         19  with me, it is a green book from the USDA. It is

         20  called The Environmental Impact Statement, it is in

         21  a draft stage, it is for the fruit fly in Florida

         22  and it talks about the mosquito, and it gives you

         23  all the alternatives, malathion, resmethrin, Anvil,

         24  Scourge, BT, spinosed, trapping, cleaning up,

         25  getting rid of the garbage, it is all there. It is a
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          2  plan waiting for you to use it in New York, you

          3  don't need to invent it.

          4                 Get integrated pest management

          5  started right now today here in New York City.

          6  Sounds a little weird because that is usually used

          7  on the farm, but cities and farms have grown so

          8  close together that now we are all intertwined. And

          9  read in the plan something very important to always

         10  remember before you spray again, if you ever do. The

         11  greatest concentrations of spray, the highest

         12  concentrations that accumulate in the environment

         13  are guess where? Not on the farm. Not on my farm out

         14  in Peconic. We have two of them, where we don't even

         15  use pesticides. But in Central Park, in urban areas

         16  the greatest hot spots found by the State of

         17  California when they tested in '91, '92, were in

         18  urban areas, LA, SanFrancisco, San Jose, not in

         19  Riverside on the farms, but in the cities. Because

         20  you have more wind direction, more changes, more

         21  drift from your spraying than they have on the farm.

         22                 So, my goal here today is to stop the

         23  misinformation. And excuse me again, press, for

         24  sitting on your head, but, frankly, at this time you

         25  deserve it. It is time for some of this information
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          2  to get correctly placed in the newspaper. It is nice

          3  to criticize somebody named Rudy Giuliani, but I

          4  don't think that is really fair. Because what he

          5  needs to do is rely on people who are going to give

          6  him the truth about chemistry, and somehow,

          7  somewhere, that got off of track. So, forget safe,

          8  it's called risk benefit, forget it degrades to a

          9  non-toxic product. It goes to malaoxon and

         10  isomalathion, forget 50 years of history of safety

         11  and malathion, because this product that you sprayed

         12  over New York City, get this one, it was submitted

         13  in '83, it got conditional registration. We called

         14  last week to make sure we were right, and here is

         15  what EPA told us from Washington, D.C. The label

         16  used on the product in New York City was only

         17  approved in 1998. That is, excuse me, less than one

         18  year of experience actually with the labeled

         19  product. That is not 50 years. There is a lot out

         20  there in the literature before the seventies about

         21  this is a low mamian toxicity pesticide. Those are

         22  the days when we took 57 percent and we diluted it

         23  with water down to one percent, and we sprayed it on

         24  the farms, we did spray it for mosquitos, for every

         25  one gallon of that product we sprayed we sprayed 100
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          2  gallons of water. We diluted the heck out of it.

          3                 And even if you, and this is a report

          4  I can't confirm, can somebody please confirm it yes

          5  or no, even if you took 96 percent Fyfanon ULV and

          6  diluted it down to 14 percent, if you stored it

          7  improperly, greater than 70 degrees Fahrenheit, you

          8  also sprayed still a heck of a lot of malaoxon and

          9  isomalathion. And I can tell you, in ending, that I

         10  am a tester, I am an information man. In the garden

         11  of Nicholas and Pauline Ruys in Highland City,

         12  Florida, where the helicopters and the DC 3 flew,

         13  two months later, after a lot of rain and a lot of

         14  sunshine, I went out in that garden and nobody gave

         15  me a laser beam. Bob went in the garden with his

         16  shovel and I looked around and I said this place

         17  looks good to me, and I got some soils and I took

         18  them back to the lab and I said Dr. Cananon, I am

         19  going to run them on the gascometagraph and you are

         20  going to run them on the maspectrometer and we will

         21  meet later in the week to see what we got. And he

         22  comes back and says I got islmalation, what did you

         23  get? I says, guess what? I got isomalathion, how

         24  come it is there two months later? It is supposed to

         25  be gone in six days, right? It was there two months
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          2  later.

          3                 And inside the house, two months

          4  after all of the spraying, I was finding toxic

          5  quantities of malaoxon. Well, low and behold, I read

          6  California's study after that, and they found it

          7  too.

          8                 So, I know you have a busy schedule,

          9  I am going to end. What I am asking you to do this

         10  morning is something very simple. Here is the simple

         11  rule: Make sure you have the correct chemistry to go

         12  with the good biology that you already have, and I

         13  think if you do that you can get yourself out of

         14  this particular sticky situation you are in. But if

         15  you continue to ignore chemistry, it's going to bite

         16  you in the rear-end and it is not going to care.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 MR. FELDMAN: For the record, my name

         20  is Jay Feldman, I am Executive Director of the

         21  National Coalition Against the Misuse of Pesticides.

         22  We were founded in 1981 to assist people across the

         23  country in identifying hazards associated with

         24  pesticide use and tried to come up with

         25  alternatives. Thank you for providing this forum
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          2  today to have public airing of these issues. It is

          3  very important to discuss these issues with the

          4  public.

          5                 I should state for the record that I

          6  was born in Brooklyn and I am a Met fan, just to

          7  even out the panel here a little bit, so here we go.

          8  In any event, we are all fans of human life in the

          9  environment and I think what has gone on in New York

         10  City in response to what was identified in the press

         11  is a public health problem, and for the moment let's

         12  assume that that is what it was in New York City. As

         13  people saw spray trucks going down their streets and

         14  airplanes over their homes, I think most people were

         15  left wondering whether the cure was worst than the

         16  disease, or is still worse than the disease.

         17                 Meanwhile, the Mayor, Mayor Giuliani,

         18  and many public officials, and this is my central

         19  point I think that we have to really focus in on has

         20  downplayed the dangers of indiscriminate spraying,

         21  betraying the public's right to know the public

         22  health tradeoffs.

         23                 Now, I think Dr. Simon did a terrific

         24  job outlining what real ability is to target in on

         25  populations of insects when you are spraying from
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          2  the air with a tremendous amount of spray drift.

          3  Before we get to that discussion, though, I think

          4  the context of this is clear to those who have

          5  studied this, the best way to control mosquitos is

          6  through prevention program, that eliminates breeding

          7  areas and disrupts their breeding cycle.

          8                 Whether we are talking about a

          9  mosquito that breeds in dirty waters, in sewer

         10  systems or mosquitos in marshlands, we have got to

         11  design a strategy that targets them through their

         12  breeding cycle.

         13                 Now, in a public health crisis where

         14  that kind of program was not conducted, as I

         15  understand was and is the case in New York City, you

         16  are stuck with a large mosquito, adult mosquito

         17  problem, and therefore you have to knock down the

         18  adult mosquito problem.

         19                 So, our position, just to put it out

         20  on the table, up front and center, is that a

         21  short-term spray program targeted, accompanied by a

         22  prevention program that identifies breeding areas is

         23  in fact warranted in a public health emergency.

         24                 Now, I say that with a lot of caveats

         25  and I say that reluctantly because of what I am
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          2  going to explain to you today about the hazards of

          3  pesticides.

          4                 Now, this is something every public

          5  official, public health official, political official

          6  has a duty to explain in the publicity around a

          7  response to a public health crisis.

          8                 Let's go back to the New York Times,

          9  September 10th, 1999, Mayor Giuliani is quoted as

         10  saying this: "There is no point in not spraying

         11  because there is no harm in spraying. So, even if we

         12  are overdoing it, there is no risk to anyone in

         13  overdoing it." And many of you may have remembered

         14  that City Hall press conference.

         15                 If a company, a chemical company, or

         16  a pest control operator, lawn care firm and

         17  exterminator made that same public comment, that

         18  same comment in public, they would be hauled into

         19  court for illegally, deceptively, negligently

         20  misleading the public, their customers on the safety

         21  of pesticides.

         22                 The U.S. Environmental Protection

         23  Agency has a law, it is called 40 CFR162.10A5, and

         24  it defines false and misleading statements, among

         25  other things, as the following:
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          2                 Claims as to the safety of the

          3  pesticide or its ingredients, including statements

          4  such as "safe", "nonpoisonous", "harmless", or

          5  "nontoxic" to humans and pets, with or without such

          6  a qualifying phrase as when used as directed.

          7  Illegal, wrong, negligent, misleading.

          8                 The Attorney General of New York,

          9  going back to Robert Abrams, but more recently

         10  Dennis Vacco, sued a number of companies for false

         11  and misleading statements. Sued Monsanto in 1996 for

         12  making false claims about the safety of Roundup,

         13  glyfosate. Monsanto ads claimed or implied that its

         14  product was perfectly safe for people, pets and the

         15  environment. Attorney General Vacco at the time

         16  summed it up nicely when he said, "Because all

         17  pesticides are toxic, at least to some degree, such

         18  a safety claim is never appropriate."

         19                 And prior to the Monsanto case,

         20  Texas, Pennsylvania and New York brought actions

         21  against a number of companies that applied

         22  pesticides.

         23                 Going back to 1991, the Attorney

         24  General of Pennsylvania forced the ChemLawn company

         25  into an agreement that ensured that ChemLawn would
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          2  not create a false impression that the pesticides it

          3  uses were perfectly safe. And I have attached for

          4  you in the testimony the press releases from both

          5  Attorney General Vacco and Attorney General Preate,

          6  Jr., from Pennsylvania.

          7                 Now, what I would to do, even though

          8  Dr. Simon did a terrific job, I would like to

          9  emphasize a couple of points that I think he made or

         10  alluded to.

         11                 On malathion, one of the things we

         12  need to understand when we go back to toxicology and

         13  look at pesticide exposure, is that we are often

         14  talking about exposure to a family of chemicals. In

         15  the case of malathion, we are talking about

         16  malathion is part of the family of organophosphates,

         17  there are some 40 or more organophosphates that are

         18  widely used in food production, in management of

         19  buildings like this, in schools, et cetera.

         20                 EPA just last year did a preliminary

         21  assessment of the organophosphates and found that

         22  current exposure just through our diet to these

         23  pesticides exceeds acceptable levels. That means

         24  that we, sitting here today, are getting what EPA

         25  believes is an excessive dose of organophosphate
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          2  pesticides just through our diet.

          3                 Now, why does that matter to you, as

          4  City officials or elected officials? Well, because

          5  the City of New York shows an organophosphate to

          6  use, malathion. All organophosphates, it is now

          7  accepted both by industry, EPA and the environmental

          8  community, have what is called a common mechanism of

          9  toxic affect. That is the affect that Dr. Simon was

         10  describing of depressing acetycholinasterase in our

         11  bodies is the common affect of all organophosphates.

         12  And we get repeated hits of this on a daily basis,

         13  if we are eating a sandwich, if we are breathing air

         14  that has these chemicals in it.

         15                 Now, it is interesting, this isn't

         16  just me or EPA talking, but it is also the chemical

         17  companies. I have a label here of another

         18  organophosphate, and listen to what it said on this

         19  label.

         20                 Repeated exposure to cholinesterase

         21  inhibitors may, without warning, cause prolonged

         22  susceptibility to very small doses of any

         23  cholinesterase inhibitor. This is a label that Orkin

         24  put out on a product it uses that is another

         25  organophosphate called chlorpurophas.  Now, that is

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            44

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  very important, because as you sit down to look at

          3  strategies for what I called short-term sprays and

          4  public health emergencies, there is no way you would

          5  ever consider using this pesticide over 8 million

          6  people.

          7                 I need to make another point about

          8  organophosphates and malathion; and that is, if you

          9  go to the occupational literature, occupational

         10  health guidelines for malathion, again, in part of

         11  the enclosures says that repeated exposure to

         12  malathion may make a person more susceptible to the

         13  effect of this and related chemicals.

         14                 What does that mean? That means then

         15  if someone was exposed to malathion as they were

         16  living in New York City, and they got a headache,

         17  nausea, dizziness, swollen aches or swollen joints

         18  or aching joints, felt disoriented, if kids had

         19  trouble concentrating in school, learning

         20  disabilities, respiratory problems, gastrointestinal

         21  problems, these are all of the symptoms of

         22  organophosphate poisoning, that means we have now

         23  sensitized the whole population. We have sensitized

         24  them above the levels that EPA has already said are

         25  acceptable.
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          2                 So what did I recommend when this

          3  first hit Labor Day? Well, I said rather than use an

          4  organophosphate knowing what we know about both the

          5  sensitization to human life, and the long-term

          6  chronic exposure issues and chronic affects issues,

          7  and the toxic body load that we are all experiencing

          8  to these chemicals, I suggested another chemical,

          9  which I also don't like very much, called the

         10  synthetic pyrethroid. Now, these are very varied in

         11  their types and they have a large degree of variance

         12  in what is known about them. In fact, one of them is

         13  actually known to be a carcinogen, and some of the

         14  ones that have been used, you have heard the names

         15  resmethrin and sumethrin. And the reason I am

         16  telling you this is because these will come up

         17  undoubtedly again next year. They may be put into

         18  the plan for a preventive program, for all I know.

         19  The reason I am telling you this and want to discuss

         20  this a little bit is because you need to know why it

         21  is not a good thing to do, and why if you do have to

         22  choose in a public health emergency, to use one of

         23  these synthetic pyrethroids, they are not mechanical

         24  pesticides as Newsday described them. They are

         25  synthetic derivatives. I hate to pick on Newsday,
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          2  but I think the New York Times, also I must say, has

          3  not done a very good job of providing the public

          4  with a balanced view of this issue, but at least

          5  they did print a correction to one of their

          6  articles. That is the only view that I saw on the

          7  other side, in addition to a professor that talked

          8  about integrated pest management.

          9                 But understand what you are doing in

         10  endorsing a spray program with synthetic

         11  pyrethroids. New York City started using resmethrin,

         12  I understand, these pesticides in the synthetic

         13  pyrethroid family are shorter lived than the

         14  organophosphates like malaoxon. Pyrethroids are very

         15  toxic to fish and to bees. Some of them have been

         16  shown to disrupt the endocrine system, putting

         17  developing organisms at risk for future health

         18  problems. What that means is they mimic estrogens in

         19  the body and if they hit developing fetuses during

         20  the developmental phases of life, given that they

         21  mimic estrogens, they disrupt sexual development and

         22  can cause long-term impacts on all kinds of affects

         23  down the road, including cancer, prostate cancer,

         24  breast cancer, et cetera.

         25                 Pyrethroids are also mixed with what
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          2  are called synergists, and if you look at the label

          3  for Anvil, which I brought with me today, it is ten

          4  percent PBO, piperonyl butoxide, which is a

          5  synergist. And the way that acts on the body is it

          6  works by depressing the liver function in our body,

          7  so in effect you are enabling all chemicals that we

          8  come into effect with to be synergized in our body,

          9  magnified, the affects become magnified.

         10                 In addition to this, the pyrethroids,

         11  and I have attached a more indepth facts sheet that

         12  we put together, is a nerve poison. It acts

         13  differently than the organophosphates. It acts in a

         14  way that affects our peripheral and central nervous

         15  system. But it doesn't depress cholinesterase.

         16                 These chemicals, interestingly

         17  enough, though, are extremely sensitive to light

         18  heat and moisture. The World Health Organization

         19  tells us that the half-life of sumethrin, which is

         20  one of the synthetic pyrethroids, is about a day.

         21  Now, that doesn't go to the PBO issue, and then it

         22  doesn't go to the third very important issue which

         23  you must understand, as people making informed

         24  decisions.

         25                 What do you think the majority of the
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          2  ingredients in this product is that we have been

          3  spraying in people's neighborhoods? It is listed on

          4  the label as inert ingredients, and it is 80 percent

          5  inert ingredient.

          6                 Now, we learned, unfortunately this

          7  isn't what we learned in our high school chemistry

          8  classes as inert. These are not innocuous materials,

          9  this is a term of art that the chemical industry

         10  very effectively put into our federal pesticide law

         11  which allows them to take the majority of a

         12  formulation and keep it secret from you as

         13  decision-makers, the Public Health Department in New

         14  York City, the Mayor, and anybody else who chooses

         15  to use or sell a pesticide, keep it secret as a

         16  trade secret. Even though it comprises a majority of

         17  the product, and even though we know that many of

         18  these chemicals are more toxic than the active

         19  ingredient.

         20                 Listen to what we do know about inert

         21  ingredients. We do know that inert ingredients are

         22  often petroleum, petrochemicals like benzene,

         23  toluene, xylene. They form a solution, the dust or

         24  the granule, in which the active ingredient is

         25  mixed. According to a recent report, 209 inerts are
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          2  considered hazardous air and water pollutants, 14

          3  have been assessed as extremely hazardous, 84 are

          4  reportable to the toxic chemical release inventory

          5  under the SuperFund Act, 21 are known or suspected

          6  carcinogens, 127 are regarded as occupational

          7  hazards.

          8                 Do you know, does the Mayor know, do

          9  the public health officials know what those inert

         10  ingredients?

         11                 I would say before we spray people

         12  with chemicals, even in an emergency, we ought to

         13  know what is in that product. And we ought to be

         14  able to tell the public what is in that product.

         15                 So that is something that you can

         16  play a very important role in, because you can

         17  demand as public officials, as you know, I am not

         18  telling you anything you don't know, you can demand

         19  to know what is being used, and you can actually

         20  request from the chemical companies that they

         21  disclose this to you.

         22                 So, here we are, we now understand

         23  that we don't know as much as we thought we did

         24  know. We hopefully have an understanding that just

         25  because the pesticide is registered by EPA does not
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          2  make it safe, and even EPA itself says we should not

          3  and shall not and only would negligently talk about

          4  a pesticide as safe or harmless.

          5                 So, how do we develop an IPM program

          6  and what does it look like?

          7                 Well, the first component of our IPM

          8  program is:

          9                 - you don't describe the pesticides

         10  that you use in the IPM program as harmless and

         11  safe.

         12                 - that you disclose all of the

         13  adverse affects, as we have been discussing,

         14  including the data gaps and the inert ingredients.

         15                 - that you give people at least 72

         16  hours advance warning before pesticides are used,

         17  and that if you use a pesticide like pyrethroid,

         18  with full knowledge, that steps are taken to

         19  minimize exposure to the pesticide.

         20                 We heard about some of this, like

         21  closing windows, turning off air conditioners,

         22  removing shoes upon entering the home to avoid

         23  tracking residues in, covering outside furniture.

         24  But you can't feel that these steps and these

         25  warnings to people are going to protect people to
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          2  the extent that you might like to see people

          3  protected.

          4                 For instance, a study done by EPA

          5  several years ago showed that they are finding 23

          6  pesticides in the indoor air environment, and many

          7  of those chemicals were never used in the indoor

          8  environment. In other words, these pesticides got

          9  into people's homes through windows, through

         10  tracking them into the indoor environment.

         11                 Part of the problem New York City has

         12  in continuing a program with proclamations of safety

         13  is that people think, oh, it doesn't matter from

         14  outside, oh, the football team can practice tonight,

         15  it doesn't matter if I take in toys, cover

         16  furniture, close windows or whatever, the Mayor said

         17  it was safe. And if there is indeed a proven public

         18  health emergency, and I would like to see more data

         19  on that, if there is, then people have to understand

         20  we are dealing with toxic materials here, folks, and

         21  we have made a public health judgment that we are

         22  going to spray you with toxic materials, but we

         23  don't want anybody to be exposed to these toxic

         24  materials.

         25                 So, what are we dealing with? We are
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          2  dealing with a mosquito that I heard the Speaker

          3  this morning say we don't know much about. We don't

          4  know if it is out during the day or if it is out

          5  during the evening. We thought we were dealing with

          6  Culex pipiens and our entomologists on staff gave me

          7  a whole bunch of stuff to say about that today, and

          8  I won't go into all of that with you, but the

          9  understanding was that they lay their eggs in storm

         10  drains and sewer pipes, old tires and stagnant pools

         11  of water, so we called up an entomologist at the

         12  University of California, probably the most

         13  preeminent entomologist in the country on mosquito

         14  control, and he explained to us that the same is

         15  true, as Dr. Simon said and I said earlier, you need

         16  a preventive program. You need to get a larvacide, a

         17  biological larvacide, identify the breeding areas,

         18  you might even use a growth-regulating hormone as a

         19  last resort, and use that in the city drain system

         20  to control larva.

         21                 Such an approach can be combined with

         22  an adult monitoring program using bite samples or

         23  traps. This will alert pest managers to mosquito hot

         24  spots and this is what was not done, where they can

         25  expect large larvae population, and to areas that

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  require additional control measures.

          3                 In other words, you don't need to

          4  spray the whole City. It is inappropriate to spray

          5  the whole City. You need a targeted program, when

          6  the adult mosquito population reaches a threshold

          7  level.

          8                 That basically is, I won't go into

          9  any of the other issues here on the mosquito

         10  spraying, that is basically the message.

         11                 I agree with Dr. Simon as well, that

         12  the spraying of mosquitos to stop now, mosquitos

         13  become lethargic at 60 degrees Fahrenheit and

         14  dormant at 50 degrees. And if you look at the

         15  meterological data for the New York City area,

         16  clearly we have been hovering between mid-forties

         17  and mid-sixties so the mosquitoes at this point are

         18  going into diapause or hibernation, and thus you

         19  are, at least for this season, the threat to human

         20  infection has been eliminated.

         21                 The danger of pesticides, this is my

         22  take-home message for everybody here, the danger of

         23  pesticides whenever they are used should not be

         24  minimized, ever. They work in this case. That is in

         25  my book a crime, and in the commercial world a
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          2  crime.

          3                 City officials have a responsibility

          4  to inform residents of the City about the hazards.

          5  We talked about that. We look forward to working

          6  with you in developing solutions to pest problems

          7  that do not put the public at risk.

          8                 Again, I applaud you for holding this

          9  hearing. It is extremely important to get these

         10  issues aired and I think we will find a solution

         11  next go-around.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I want to thank

         14  you.

         15                 Folks, we are going to be here all

         16  day, and time is against us, so let's try to get

         17  everybody in. We have a whole list of people to

         18  testify.

         19                 Let me perhaps, my colleagues, inform

         20  you of what I have been informed.

         21                 To the panel, let me just say that

         22  this is what these hearings are about. Given the

         23  information that was given to us, we try to work

         24  with the experts and the Administration. As you

         25  know, this Council was ready to have oversight

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  hearings and at the request of the Administration

          3  for reasons that was brought to our attention and we

          4  at the moment felt that their request was a fair

          5  one, we deferred two previous hearings. This is what

          6  this hearing is about. It is this Committee and this

          7  Council and my concern of the chair and my colleague

          8  is, when it is all said and done, after the winter

          9  what are we going to do, at least the way I am told,

         10  about April and thereon with respect to next year?

         11  And I, for one, and this Committee know that in the

         12  budget process we did not, this was not a priority,

         13  so we have to make sure that in the budget

         14  amendments or budget mods that come in either in

         15  November or in January, which is normal, the we

         16  address the concerns you have raised in terms of

         17  putting into the budget the means to address the

         18  concerns you have had.

         19                 Let me also share with you, that I

         20  told my colleagues we were going to defer the

         21  questioning of the panel for the moment so that we

         22  can allow the Administration, both Commissioner Neal

         23  Cohen and Jerry Hauer, the Director of the Mayor's

         24  Office on Emergency Management. I am informed that

         25  unfortunately there is a scaffold accident and he
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          2  was called, where a possible firefighter may be a

          3  victim, and we don't know yet.

          4                 So, what we are going to do, is

          5  because I want both Commissioner Neal Cohen and the

          6  Director of the Mayor's Office on Emergency

          7  Management, who actually is the overseer

          8  implementer, and I want them both here, we are going

          9  to allow Council Members, I see I have four names,

         10  to have a question each of three minutes, and it is

         11  really to allow the possibility that Jerry is en

         12  route back to the hearing, an if that happens then

         13  we will put the Administration on next.

         14                 If we see that the members who have

         15  been identified to my attention for questioning, and

         16  I see that he is still not here, what I am going to

         17  do is allow I see, and being from Brooklyn, my

         18  distinguished Borough of Brooklyn Howard Golden as

         19  an elected official. It is not something new. In all

         20  legislative bodies that I have served, we have

         21  always extended the courtesy to the people's

         22  representatives, in this case the fourth largest

         23  City in the Country, so I will then call upon the

         24  distinguished Borough President from Brooklyn.

         25                 And then if I see that we have not
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          2  yet seen Jerry Hauer, we will make a decision of

          3  whether we put Commissioner Neal Cohen himself or

          4  what have you. But I just want to stick to the

          5  agenda, to the purpose of this hearing, which is

          6  really about having the public and the experts and

          7  the community having the opportunity to speak before

          8  us.

          9                 Let me also acknowledge, because

         10  there have been some members who have joined us, and

         11  I want to make sure that I don't forget. We have

         12  been joined by a member from the Bronx, Council

         13  Member Adolpho Carrion, a member from Manhattan,

         14  Council Member Christine Quinn, and let me begin

         15  with -- I don't see any other colleague -- let me

         16  begin by Council Member Berman for the first

         17  questions.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: Thank you very

         19  much, Mr. Chairman,.

         20                 Dr. McNamara. First of all, again

         21  congratulations, and we are indeed proud of what you

         22  accomplished with the money that we allocated.

         23                 Are birds still dying at the same

         24  rate as they were previously which caused the

         25  investigation to begin with?
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          2                 DR. McNAMARA: No, that has tapered

          3  off significantly.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: Would you say

          5  that significantly leads to the fact that the

          6  epidemic or the disease may be abating?

          7                 DR. McNAMARA: Well, as they were

          8  saying today, with the drop in temperatures there

          9  would be less activity on the parts of mosquitos,

         10  and they are the vectors of the disease.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: Thank you.

         12                 Now, Mr. Simon, Dr. Simon, Mr.

         13  Feldman, is malathion used on a regular basis in any

         14  other locality in the country? And if so, what is

         15  the experience?

         16                 I am advised that Florida and

         17  Houston, or parts of Texas use it and spray with it

         18  on a regular basis; is that a fact?

         19                 DR. SIMON: Well, in '97 and '98,

         20  malathion certainly was used in Florida and it was

         21  used early by airplane and helicopter for med-fly

         22  control, and there was a lot of uproar about it and

         23  a lot of people got ill and they changed and they no

         24  longer use malathion in Florida.

         25                 In Texas in '95, as part of a
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          2  boweaval eradication program, they had some problems

          3  with cotton they wiped out by spraying with Fyfanon

          4  ULV excessively, wiped out all of the beneficials

          5  and the army beat worm went in and ate the cotton

          6  crop, and so after '95 they stopped using it.

          7                 In Houston, and I did see last week

          8  some of the integrated pest management programs of

          9  Houston, which seem to be pretty good, they are

         10  primarily using Scourge, which  is resmethrin,

         11  although malathion is on their books, but they are

         12  really not using it.

         13                 In Georgia they last used it for

         14  cotton in '93, '94 but not for any mosquito control.

         15                 So, it has been used in the 90s, but

         16  I think the experience is everybody is getting away

         17  from it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: So currently

         19  then it would be your testimony that there is no

         20  place that they are using this on a regular repeated

         21  basis?

         22                 DR. SIMON: I never say never because

         23  I don't know anything, but the places I know that

         24  are significant are not using malathion any longer.

         25                 I have to tell you that I heard a
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          2  report late last night that I haven't checked out

          3  that perhaps malathion was sprayed over the

          4  Chesapeake Bay unfortunately by the State of

          5  Maryland, but nobody was on call yesterday because

          6  it was on Columbus Day, so I couldn't check it out.

          7  I don't know if that happened or not.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: Thank you.

          9                 DR. SIMON: But normally no one is

         10  using malathion any longer.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

         13  Council Member Berman.

         14                 Council Member Oddo.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman.

         17                 You know, in 1982, I guess it was,

         18  Brother Fisher at Monsignor Farrell High School

         19  tried desperately to teach me chemistry and I failed

         20  miserably. So, I don't know if oxygen goes with

         21  sulphur, I know peanut butter goes with jelly but

         22  not much more than that, and I don't mean to

         23  belittle or minimize the issue.

         24                 Dr. Simon, what in your estimation,

         25  and I am not going to talk about chemistry, I will
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          2  defer to you and your expertise, but why is it, what

          3  do you think the rationale was for the City being

          4  advised by CDC and folks on the state, why

          5  ultimately did they choose malathion?

          6                 You mentioned something about risk

          7  benefit, but I would like you to explain to me what

          8  you think the rationale is? Why did the City

          9  eventually and ultimately choose this route?

         10                 DR. SIMON: I think personally they

         11  overreacted to what chemical they thought they

         12  needed. They certainly didn't overreact to the

         13  mosquito. I mean that is a problem. Dr. McDonnell

         14  has well explained that and so have the other

         15  biologists. We know that encephalitis is a problem.

         16  Whether it was really a crisis, a health emergency

         17  or whatever, we are not really sure. Time will tell.

         18                 But they really overreacted and they

         19  did not unfortunately have in place an idea and

         20  program.  What Jay Feldman was really saying to you

         21  is, if you are thinking about doing this, practicing

         22  this, that when the mosquito shows up, you are very

         23  prepared, and unfortunately in New York City they

         24  weren't. In Nassau County they had a pretty good

         25  idea and program, and, frankly, last Friday I
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          2  couldn't convince them not to aerial spray with

          3  Anvil, but at least they said definitely we are not

          4  using malathion.

          5                 So, I think EPA, CDC and ATSDR,

          6  unfortunately have to take a lot of hit for this.

          7  Jay Feldman is telling you the absolute truth of EPA

          8  rules, and I am not trying to excuse the Mayor or

          9  anybody else because I think the Mayor unfortunately

         10  had information of his own about this, but those

         11  scientists really overreacted and gave extremely bad

         12  advice to the City of New York to use malathion.

         13                 And frankly, the trucks, the

         14  sanitation workers that I have had experience with

         15  in New York, are extremely good. You folks know what

         16  you are doing up here in a lot of areas, and really

         17  the worst thing that happened was really spraying

         18  the subways. I mean, you are spraying in a confined

         19  space. If you really know what the subway system in

         20  New York is, it is a fine space. You want chemistry

         21  at your worst? It is in the subways of New York. And

         22  for them to say, yes, it is okay to go down and

         23  spray malathion, that just was the worst advice I

         24  ever heard. And frankly, as I told the reporter last

         25  night not to prolong their answer, why did I get
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          2  involved in New York: I stood up in a chair in my

          3  laboratory over Labor Day weekend and I hollared at

          4  Dr. Cananon, who is my friend for 35 years, and I

          5  said, Jerry, what in the hell are these idiots

          6  doing? I couldn't believe it. I could not believe

          7  that EPA was telling New York City to spray with

          8  malathion, after this, sir, and you are politicians

          9  so you can relate to this, after screaming,

         10  hollering, shouting in '97 and '98 to USDA, EPA, all

         11  of the DEPs in Florida, et cetera, et cetera, and

         12  convincing USDA to start and publish the book that I

         13  have with me, the green cover book, draft and

         14  environmental impact statements, that covers all of

         15  the stuff that Jay Feldman was talking about and not

         16  spray with malathion anymore, USDA doesn't want to

         17  know how to spell malathion anymore, after all of

         18  that that EPA was involved in, I don't know where

         19  EPA was in this thing. They weren't listening to

         20  their own people. So, there is really no excuse,

         21  sir.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member --

         23  folks, I understand emotions, but the clapping

         24  doesn't help much when we are trying to get the

         25  questions and answers and all you are doing is
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          2  taking away time. And whenever it disappears, and

          3  you are going to be on my case, how come I wasn't

          4  called. So, please try to work with us, and we are

          5  going to try to get everyone to testify, but

          6  whatever position you take, that is not what the

          7  hearing is about. You will have your time outside,

          8  demonstrations, you know, press conferences and what

          9  have you. Right now we want to do our work.

         10                 Council Member Espada.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chair.

         13                 I have a question for Dr. McNamara.

         14  You said that it was 20 birds that had died?

         15                 DR. McNAMARA: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: What time

         17  frame was that did you say?

         18                 DR. McNAMARA: Over the course of

         19  around ten days.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Over the

         21  course of about ten days. Well, I am sure that you

         22  all in the Bronx Zoo were extremely alarmed about

         23  the encephalitis-like virus or whatever the

         24  conclusion is on what it is.

         25                 DR. McNAMARA: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: So what did

          3  you all do at the Bronx Zoo?

          4                 DR. McNAMARA: We have always had a

          5  mosquito control program, because although it hasn't

          6  ever been an issue for the human population in New

          7  York City, mosquitos also transmit other diseases,

          8  some of them are veterinary concerns. So, we have

          9  always had a program in place and one such disease

         10  is ADM miliaria it doesn't affect people at all but

         11  it can be very fatal to zoo birds. And so we have a

         12  larvacidal program and always have, and we

         13  contracted with an outside contractor and initiated

         14  mosquito control.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: But even with

         16  that mosquito control --

         17                 DR. McNAMARA: We still had

         18  fatalities.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: And in a high

         20  number and a short period of time --

         21                 DR. McNAMARA: That's right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: That's right.

         23  So why wouldn't the Bronx Zoo have gotten out there

         24  with malathion bazookas and blown up the whole zoo

         25  with malathion and whatever other methods of
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          2  treating the mosquitos?

          3                 DR. McNAMARA: Actually, I may have to

          4  defer that to my colleague, because I wasn't really

          5  involved with the mosquito program. I was the person

          6  in the laboratory doing the pathology. But I know

          7  they sought expert advice and did what they felt was

          8  best for the collection.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Well, however

         10  that is I would love to talk to them afterwards to

         11  try to understand why you all didn't take such

         12  extreme measures like the rest of the City of New

         13  York did, and have controlled the virus inside of

         14  the Bronx Zoo.

         15                 However, my last question for you is,

         16  I know that there has been some concern with the

         17  birds migrating south, what do you think is a time

         18  frame that we might start to see whether or not

         19  people down south are being affected by this or not?

         20                 DR. McNAMARA: No one can answer that

         21  question. What I am hearing today is a lot of 20/20

         22  hindsight. I am the person who was on the conference

         23  calls that occurred every day from September 24th

         24  on.

         25                 I think what is not really being
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          2  grasped here is just how alarming the situation was.

          3  We were dealing with an unknown virus, a previously

          4  unknown virus. When you ask public officials to make

          5  decisions based on almost no information, people do

          6  what they can, they make the best choices they can

          7  in the face of very little scientific aid.

          8                 It is a new virus. We don't really

          9  know what species are susceptible we don't know what

         10  the transmission times are. We don't know what the

         11  incubation periods are. All of that is now being

         12  investigated, but on September 24th no one had that

         13  information.

         14                 In terms of the vectors, those are

         15  all studies, those are studies entomologists are

         16  going to have to do.

         17                 At the time the spraying started, we

         18  had mosquito positive pools, we had birds still

         19  dying in large numbers. The City of New York had

         20  every indication that the virus was still here and

         21  that steps had to be taken.

         22                 Personally, I think the City acted in

         23  the public interest in trying to knock down the

         24  adult mosquito populations. CDC was saying spray,

         25  spray, spray.
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          2                 I am not a chemist and I wouldn't

          3  have been the one to say which chemical should have

          4  been used, but in all fairness to the

          5  Administration, the Center for Disease Control was

          6  urging all health officials to spray to knock down

          7  the known mosquito threat, and I think it is easy

          8  and cavalier to say, well, you know, how big a

          9  threat was it? At that time we didn't really know

         10  how many cases would have gone undiagnosed at that

         11  time.

         12                 All of that is being done now, all of

         13  the retrospective retesting. It wasn't that it was

         14  St. Louis Encephalitis, and we knew how that

         15  operated. This was West Nile-like, emphasis on

         16  "like", we are still dealing with an unknown and I

         17  think everyone needs to keep that in mind. Everyone

         18  involved in this was trying to act in the public's

         19  best interest.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         21  Carrion.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chairman. And thank you for your, to Dr. Simon

         24  and Mr. Feldman and Dr. McNamara, thank you for your

         25  very insightful testimony.
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          2                 This is kind of alarming. I mean, you

          3  sit here and I am sure that it is happening to every

          4  one of you and my colleagues, your head is racing

          5  and you are wondering about the wisdom of all of

          6  this, and of course I understand your sentiment, Dr.

          7  McNamara, that you have an administration that is

          8  under the gun to make a very crucial decision and it

          9  is very hard for them to, I guess they don't have

         10  the luxury of time.

         11                 DR. McNAMARA: That's right.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: I guess what

         13  we are doing here is a very important exercise which

         14  is we are questioning the wisdom of this. And we do

         15  know what malathion is, I think we are starting to

         16  figure out its impacts, and I want to go to that, to

         17  Dr. Simon and Mr. Feldman.

         18                 I am looking here at the permissible

         19  exposure limit that is published in the occupational

         20  health guideline for malathion that Mr. Feldman

         21  shared with us. And it says here the current OSHA

         22  standard for malathion is 15 milligrams of malathion

         23  per cubic meter of air, averaged over an eight-hour

         24  work shift, and this is standards that were created

         25  by the National Institute for Occupational Safety
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          2  and Health so they are for workers. That is in the

          3  air, so I have a two-part question.

          4                 Number one, do we have any idea how

          5  many milligrams per cubic meter of air did this

          6  spraying create? How long did it last in the air so

          7  that, you know, at least according to these

          8  standards, you know, what was the level of our

          9  exposure?

         10                 And the second part of my question is

         11  more emotional and personal. I have four children

         12  and I remember standing outside my house on the

         13  balcony, looking up and seeing this helicopter

         14  flying maybe several hundred feet above my house,

         15  with two spray guns and this spray dust is coming

         16  down on my neighborhood.

         17                 And I remember getting a call that

         18  night from a little old lady in my district and she

         19  must have -- I think she said she was 87 years old,

         20  she was very scared and she found my home number.

         21  But it was very interesting, she called because she

         22  was more concerned about her pets and the squirrels

         23  and the birds in the neighborhood. And I said I

         24  appreciate your concern for the animals but I think

         25  you should also be concerned for your own health.
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          2                 So, my kids then go to the park and

          3  they touch things and they play in the back yard,

          4  besides the 15 milligrams per cubic meter of air and

          5  that exposure time, what about the settling and the

          6  touching and the ingestion and all of that stuff

          7  that occurs with little bambinos?

          8                 DR. SIMON: You just did a great job

          9  of answering your own question. Because the second

         10  question answered the first.

         11                 Let me just tell you about 15

         12  milligrams. First of all, it is occupational, it is

         13  workers. It is workers who have, if necessary,

         14  respirators, theoretically, according to OSHA,

         15  respirators and Tyvek suits and gloves and things

         16  available, and so let me put 15 in perspective for

         17  your kids.

         18                 Fifteen divided by two is down to

         19  seven and a half. That is the action limit. If it

         20  gets to there you are supposed to take action to

         21  reduce so it never gets to 15, okay?

         22                 So, we narrow it down to seven and a

         23  half for 40 hours a week, but we live 168 hours a

         24  week and in this case we sprayed everywhere. We just

         25  didn't spray where you sleep or you work, but we
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          2  sprayed where you eat, we sprayed when you are on

          3  the train, we sprayed 168 hours a week worth. So we

          4  can divide seven and a half by four. So, narrowed

          5  down if we round if off to two.

          6                 Then you have children. I don't know

          7  what ages they are, but let's say they are one-tenth

          8  the weight of dad. So, we are going to divide two by

          9  ten and we are down to 0.2. And if you look at Dr.

         10  Curie's study, et cetera, where she measured the

         11  levels of certain organophosphates inside of

         12  buildings and offices when they sprayed according to

         13  normal label conditions, 100 micrograms, not

         14  milligrams, micrograms per cubic meter was the

         15  estimated maximum level that they wanted to see

         16  inside of buildings. So many, many factors below

         17  that seven and a half, okay?

         18                 Now, to get to the other important

         19  parts of your question, what about the kids and

         20  contacts? If I sit here right now and I put

         21  malathion on this table and I keep going like this

         22  while I am talking and then I get some vapors in my

         23  face and I start breathing.

         24                 Inside of my body when it gets into

         25  the blood and into the liver, about ten or 15
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          2  percent of the dose, which is the only thing that

          3  matters, how much of this stuff got to

          4  cholinesterase? Ten or 15 percent will be the

          5  breathing, 60 to 70 percent will be the skin,

          6  because I have boils in my skin and none of these

          7  compounds are water soluble, they are oil soluble,

          8  organic soluble we call it. If I go like this, and

          9  if I am a kid who is going down to the park and he's

         10  going daddy, put me on the swing, and the kid is

         11  doing this, every time put your fingers out of your

         12  mouth, okay? And he is getting dust on his stuff, he

         13  will get five percent, maybe ten percent by licking

         14  his fingers, ingestion, et cetera. And all of this

         15  stuff is so well published that I must, as a

         16  follow-up to your question, comment on Dr.

         17  McDonnell. And I can understand exactly where she is

         18  coming from.

         19                 DR. McNAMARA: Dr. McNamara.

         20                 DR. SIMON: Oh, excuse me. Dr.

         21  McNamara, I am sorry.

         22                 She is a good biologist, even if I

         23  can't remember her name. And the bottom line is she

         24  didn't want something done because she was concerned

         25  and she had a right to be, because the word that she
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          2  used that was so important was "unknown" like

          3  something, they didn't know what it was.

          4                 But here is the magic bullet. She

          5  didn't know what it was, but CDC, ATSDR, EPA, New

          6  York State Department of Health, we haven't

          7  mentioned them, New York State, certainly knew the

          8  dangers of malathion. The knew that Jeb Bush had

          9  outlawed spraying malathion in Florida. They knew

         10  they weren't using it anymore in Georgia and Texas,

         11  because they were there at the meetings and they

         12  should have never told New York State to use

         13  something as toxic as malathion.

         14                 If we had to kill the mosquitos in

         15  New York, there was plenty of stuff we could have

         16  used that wasn't "safe" but it was a lot safer, and

         17  it was a lot less toxic, and if we had sprayed

         18  resmethrin, Scourge or Anvil, we could have done the

         19  same job, the mosquitos would have been dead.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION: Thank you,

         21  Doctor.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         23  Reed.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Chair. Good morning. My colleague and I, colleagues,
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          2  have been trying to keep up with this, and I agree

          3  with Dr. McNamara, that the City did need to make

          4  some choices.

          5                 I am concerned obviously about the

          6  testimony, and maybe you have said it both, Mr.

          7  Feldman, and Dr. Simon. But was there an obvious

          8  alternative to malathion, given what we were using,

          9  I think you meant the 24th of August when you were

         10  talking in your testimony about when this thing

         11  first started, not the 24th of September, just in

         12  terms of when we were looking at this West Nile

         13  thing, I think it started in the end of August,

         14  right?

         15                 DR. McNAMARA: September.

         16                 SR. SIMON: Labor Day.

         17                 DR. McNAMARA: It was sequenced and

         18  announced on September 24th.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay, the latter

         20  part of August, the first part of September is when

         21  we were --

         22                 DR. McNAMARA: St. Louis had been

         23  announced.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Right, exactly.

         25                 DR. McNAMARA: Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So, in the rush

          3  of all of this, was there something obvious on the

          4  shelf that we could have used as an alternative?

          5                 DR. SIMON: Oh, absolutely.

          6                 We could have -- excuse me. I don't

          7  know New York this well, we could have gone to

          8  K-Mart, et al., and we could have purchased a whole

          9  bunch of things off the shelf that were there.

         10                 You started using resmethrin and

         11  Scourge in trucks, there is nothing wrong with that

         12  in terms of killing mosquitos. Far less toxic than

         13  malathion. It does not make malaoxon and

         14  isomalathion.  It is not anywhere near as dangerous

         15  as malathion. We could have used Scourge.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: As effectively?

         17                 DR. SIMON: Sure. It kills the

         18  mosquitos. All of these things kill the mosquitos. I

         19  could have gone out and made a borate solution with

         20  boric acid and sprayed it and killed mosquitos.

         21  Because these things do kill mosquitos.

         22                 Killing the mosquitos and examining

         23  the virus are two different things.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Okay.

         25                 And Mr. Feldman, would you concur
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          2  with that? Is that the only thing we could have

          3  used? Is this such an obvious thing?

          4                 MR. FELDMAN: Well, I was going to

          5  respond to the earlier question by citing Harris

          6  County Texas, which probably has more mosquitos per

          7  square foot than any place in the country and they

          8  do not use malathion. They never used malathion.

          9  Part of the reason they don't use it is because its

         10  efficacy has diminished over time. The more you use

         11  a chemical over the years, the insects become

         12  resistant to them over time, so they are using some

         13  of the synthetic pyrethroids. They are also using it

         14  at a much more targeted way. That is another

         15  critical issue here. It is not just a question of

         16  coming up with a silver bullet alternative, but it

         17  is a question of analyzing the whole program. You

         18  know, was it appropriate to spray the degree that

         19  the spraying went on, or should the City have had a

         20  more targeted spray program with a less toxic

         21  material.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: All I am

         23  concerning myself with at this round --

         24                 MR. FELDMAN: There were alteratives.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: There were clear
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          2  obvious alternatives, at least in your opinion?

          3                 DR. SIMON: On the shelf, readily

          4  available, easy to get, put them in the helicopter,

          5  in the truck or wherever you want to, they were far

          6  less toxic and readily available.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

          8                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

         10  Council Member. Before I ask a question, we have

         11  some visitors that we would also like to

         12  acknowledge. We are being visited by an organization

         13  or a program, HASC, Program Services Developing

         14  Adults, who happen to be in Council Member

         15  Angel Rodriguez' district. I believe they are up in

         16  the balcony and I want to welcome you to City Hall.

         17  This is the Committee on Health and we welcome you.

         18                 Dr. McMamara, let me ask you. Because

         19  as the Chairman of this Committee and my colleagues,

         20  clearly, our rules of our Council define our role as

         21  elected officials and be overseers. So in the case

         22  of the Committee on Health, clearly the Department

         23  of Health, the Department of Mental Health, Mental

         24  Retardation, Health and Hospitals Corporation and

         25  Health Services, Chief Medical Examiner. The lead
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          2  agency in our charter or the chief health advocate

          3  is the Commissioner of Health and should be setting

          4  the tone, and the direction, even when a sister

          5  agency tends to turn a bit. And I have been very

          6  critical, not of this Commissioner, I chose to take

          7  over this chair because I was troubled the way the

          8  direction the Health Committee was going and how

          9  City agencies who were supposed to be protecting the

         10  public's interest in terms of health was really

         11  passing it on to someone else.

         12                 Now, having said that, I listened to

         13  what you said, and I also hear my colleague mention

         14  about the workers, and I always loved the federal

         15  government and the state, they know how to regulate,

         16  they know how to mandate, and I am troubled by the

         17  overseers. You know, we often say the police cannot

         18  police themselves, I don't believe the Department of

         19  Health can police itself. You need someone to

         20  oversee them. When you started getting suspicious

         21  you felt that something was not comfortable and you

         22  started reaching out, like you said to the Center

         23  for Disease Control; what was the reaction? What was

         24  the response? And I am sure you are mandated also to

         25  reach out to the State Department of Health, and if
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          2  you did, I am curious to see what their reaction

          3  was. And last but not least, I am assuming since you

          4  are within the City of New York, and similarly you

          5  go federal state, did you reach out to the City

          6  Department of Health and what was their reaction,

          7  just to get an idea, because I know that I on behalf

          8  of the Council and the Speaker, remember the first

          9  time I got called on that holiday, it was Monday,

         10  and I went out to College Point to be briefed on the

         11  emergency, and everything was surrounded, or they

         12  relied upon the Center for Disease Control.

         13                 I even remember to get the specimens,

         14  the blood specimens to go to where they are supposed

         15  to go, our airlines refused to take them, and I

         16  remember we had to take a City worker, make him look

         17  like a business person with an attache case, put it

         18  into the attach case to go so that the next day we

         19  would know what was the results.

         20                 So, having said that, I need to find

         21  out first of all, this chain of -- you know, chain

         22  of command or chain of making contact, what was the

         23  response that you received and eventually CDC

         24  reclassified all that they claim was St. Louis now

         25  we are now finding that that is not the case?
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          2                 So, I would like for you to perhaps

          3  walk me through that early process.

          4                 DR. McNAMARA: Perhaps I could just

          5  start with saying, I think the fact that I am a

          6  veterinarian, a comparative pathologist and one of

          7  the handful of pathologists working in a zoo, I have

          8  a really unique perspective on approaching disease.

          9  I look at it across species and I look at it from an

         10  ecosystem point of view.

         11                 When I approached CDC, don't forget,

         12  that was when the St. Louis outbreak had already

         13  been announced, they were swamped with human

         14  samples, and I am sure the samples I sent would have

         15  been worked up but they certainly weren't on top of

         16  the list of other pressing issues, human health

         17  issues.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, fine. So

         19  you sent to them, and apparently the priority of

         20  those you sent may not have been, when was it that

         21  they started taking your samples and finally

         22  realized that maybe they are looking at the wrong

         23  virus?

         24                 DR. McNAMARA: Well, the day I

         25  contacted CDC, I also sent material out to the
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          2  National Veterinary Services Laboratory, because as

          3  a scientist we have had to rule out the known avian

          4  viruses. That took about five or six days to just

          5  systematically rule out the other possible diseases.

          6  Everyone got very excited when the electron

          7  microscopic results on the isolates from our cases

          8  showed a virus that was only 40 nanometers diameter.

          9  That put it into the flavivirus group of

         10  arboviruses. That was in and of itself noteworthy

         11  because this was being isolated from dead, diseased

         12  birds, that virus group has never been known to

         13  cause disease in birds.

         14                 When I communicated that to the CDC,

         15  you have to understand, the national veterinary

         16  services laboratory couldn't do any more work on

         17  this, because that group of flaviviruses are human

         18  pathogens, they have never killed birds. So the

         19  veterinary lab did not have any of the antibodies

         20  required to continue working on this.

         21                 When I spoke to the people at CDC and

         22  told them about the EM findings, they then said that

         23  NVSL should forward our isolates to their

         24  laboratories so they could be evaluated. At the same

         25  time I asked if they could recommend any other labs
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          2  that might work with flaviviruses, and I think again

          3  the public is completely unaware of the fact there

          4  were probably only four laboratories in the United

          5  States that can do this work. They referred me to

          6  Dr. Grady at New York State, that's why I called the

          7  State Health Department. I knew New York City wasn't

          8  capable of working with these viruses, you know,

          9  Yale University, CDC, Fort Collins and New York

         10  State, that is about it. Besides, these are pretty

         11  rare viruses to begin with, so there is a reason

         12  there aren't more labs working on this. And once

         13  that material went to New York State and to CDC and

         14  NVSL, we all chipped in to try and figure out from

         15  each our own perspectives what was going on. And

         16  then things started moving very quickly.

         17                 Oh, I did not speak to the New York

         18  City Department of Health because, again, I knew

         19  they would not be able to do the testing, only CDC

         20  and New York State could.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Which of the two,

         22  CDC or the State Department of Health, collaborated

         23  or at least felt in the same direction you were

         24  heading?

         25                 DR. McNAMARA: Dr. Grady was very
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          2  helpful, very supportive, and unfortunately there

          3  was a delay in the veterinary lab shipping our

          4  sample to him, but we had a number of discussions

          5  about the possibility of their being a link, and he

          6  was extremely helpful.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, one more

          8  thing and then I will call the Borough President of

          9  Brooklyn. If you had recommendations, although we

         10  will follow up with you, because this is not a

         11  one-day, it is, again, what we do for tomorrow so

         12  that we don't find ourselves the way we found

         13  ourselves yesterday and here we are today and I

         14  think that is what I tried to focus this hearing on,

         15  where were we; where are we; where we are going. And

         16  of course, this is a collaboration, we need not only

         17  the politicians that could make the wheel squeak and

         18  then get the oil, the public, to make the noise so

         19  we can get the oil, but we need the experts of what

         20  is it that we should be doing.

         21                 What are -- and if you don't have it

         22  on top of your head now, I welcome any

         23  recommendations that you may have that we should be

         24  looking at as a Council, particularly the Health

         25  Committee, on what do we implement or do we move
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          2  towards in the budget process so that when April

          3  comes around we don't wait until June when we do the

          4  Fiscal Year 2002 budget but within this Fiscal Year

          5  2000.  I am not aware of an appropriation of funds

          6  to implement such programs, if we did have them, and

          7  I intend to ask Commissioner Neal Cohen, because one

          8  of my colleagues who served, and was chairman of

          9  this Committee as a matter of fact, and now Borough

         10  President of the Bronx, actually was critical saying

         11  that there was funding for a particular reason and

         12  that was taken out of the budget.

         13                 So, if you had any recommendations,

         14  we would appreciate either giving it to us and

         15  working with us so that as we do the where were we,

         16  where are we and where are we going, maybe we can

         17  communicate with each other, which is I believe what

         18  we are saying was lacking in terms of information.

         19  Because many of us, like myself, relied upon the

         20  expert, I am not an expert in this area, so when I

         21  look at these reports I take it for what it says,

         22  relying upon the City, the State and the CDC.

         23                 So having said that, if you have any

         24  recommendations that you would like perhaps to

         25  mention, or if not, would you please follow through
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          2  with us so that we welcome that. Again, my timetable

          3  is before November, because that is normally when

          4  the Mayor comes before the Council for the budget

          5  mods, in taking money out of agencies that have not

          6  spent it, and then I can use that as a means of

          7  putting it into the budget so we can address this

          8  for the fiscal year, that will still be within this

          9  current fiscal year, so we can look at April, and I

         10  believe that is what they are telling me. Is that a

         11  fair, in terms of April, when we should be really

         12  beginning to have the agencies report and say to us

         13  exactly what they are doing and how they are doing?

         14                 MR. FELDMAN: Yes, I think so. Can I

         15  make three suggestions? And I think this is the

         16  critical question here. It will take funds to

         17  reorient and reprioritize what is going on. New York

         18  City needs an IPM program, an integrated pest

         19  management program, which means that the City needs

         20  to identify breeding areas for mosquitos. This is

         21  before we identify a public health threat, we need a

         22  good program that attempts to prevent the breeding

         23  of mosquitos so that we don't get to high levels of

         24  adult population.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And this program
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          2  should be within the Department of Health or in the

          3  Mayor's Office of Emergency Management?

          4                 MR. FELDMAN: Well, this should be --

          5  it is a health issue, it should be in the Department

          6  of Health, the Department of Health should work with

          7  the environment department, it should be a

          8  multi-agency task force perhaps that looks at the

          9  causes of infestations, the breeding areas, and this

         10  might involve the Sanitation Department, you know,

         11  where are the tire dumps, do they need to be covered

         12  up, are those breeding areas, and what needs to be

         13  done, and I think and I hate to recommend a study,

         14  but clearly you need an inventory of where changes

         15  need to occur in the system so as to eliminate the

         16  breeding areas. Okay, that is number one.

         17                 Number two, is you have got to be

         18  ready for a public health emergency, should it occur

         19  again. There was not attempt on the part of anyone

         20  on this panel to suggest that what the doctor did

         21  was not exceedingly important to bring a public

         22  health problem to public awareness and alert public

         23  health officials so that a response could be

         24  generated.

         25                 I think the problem comes in with the
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          2  cavalier attitude that we use in choosing the

          3  solution to the problem, picking any chemical off

          4  the shelf without doing research.

          5                 So, my second suggestion is that

          6  under the jurisdiction of the Health Department,

          7  there be a full blown review, independent review of

          8  the chemical and non-chemical alternatives that are

          9  available and efficacious that can control mosquitos

         10  both in a preventive situation for larvae control,

         11  as well as adult mosquitos.

         12                 That means you would do your own

         13  review of malathion, collect the literature, talk to

         14  people, Like Dr. Simon and myself and other

         15  organizations. You would look at the alternative

         16  Anvil, you would try to find out what the inert

         17  ingredients are so that an informed decision could

         18  be made when the time came and everyone could feel

         19  we are making the best decision.

         20                 As a part of that, the City should

         21  really get its act together on what the public ought

         22  to know. You know, the area of public disclosure,

         23  what does the public have a right to know about what

         24  is being done and let's lay it all out there on the

         25  table.
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          2                 And then finally, and this is

          3  something I meant to mention earlier, you need a

          4  surveillance program to monitor public health after

          5  the program has begun. The City, as far as I

          6  understand it, does not have any surveillance

          7  program to collect information on adverse affects

          8  associated with pesticide spraying, and when the

          9  State of Florida did this during their own spray

         10  program back in 1998, the coordinator of the

         11  pesticide poisoning surveillance program concluded

         12  that his primary recommendation was that Florida

         13  residential areas should not be subject to aerial

         14  malathion applications and it is based on, he says,

         15  well documented findings that such applications are

         16  responsible for adverse health affects with no

         17  concomitant direct health benefits. Now, they were

         18  dealing with the med-fly, it's a different

         19  situation.

         20                 But the reason I am reading that to

         21  you is because they set up within the Health

         22  Department a pesticide poisoning surveillance

         23  program that needs to be done. Whenever you use a

         24  pesticide, if it gets to that in a public health

         25  emergency, the Public Health Department needs an

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            90

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  organized surveillance program to detect incidence

          3  of pesticide poisoning. And that will answer the

          4  question down the road when we get to issues of

          5  public health trade-offs, how do we make those

          6  decisions in crises, and do we know the impact of

          7  the decisions we are making.

          8                 DR. SIMON: And I think if we can just

          9  add a few comments to what Jay just said, it is

         10  great to plan for next year, we need to do that. We

         11  need to give the Doctor funding to make sure we

         12  identify the virus, and make sure if she has the

         13  funding, because in the future it could mutate

         14  again. If it is like something now, it could be like

         15  something else later. So, those things do happen in

         16  biology very quickly, much faster than chemistry.

         17  So, we need to support that entire program. But we

         18  need to find out what has happened, like it or not,

         19  we need a retrospective environmental impact

         20  statement from what just happened here. Is there

         21  malathion residue inside of buildings and homes in

         22  New York City and how many people are sick?

         23                 I think you will hear later today

         24  from people. Now, these are not scientific

         25  doctor-related research-oriented peer published
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          2  reviews, but there is a Muslim Sister in Harlem who

          3  is saying the skin rashes are breaking out on her

          4  kids, nausea, vomiting, diarrhea and it is not the

          5  flu and the doctors don't know what it is, and I

          6  tried to explain that the product that was sprayed

          7  on New York City at a pH of 3.7, now all you have to

          8  know about that is, that starts to take the skin off

          9  your arm, because it is getting close to a strong

         10  acid. It is corrosive. We need to do some testing,

         11  we need to get some money and go inside of enough

         12  buildings and collect some filters and some air

         13  samples and some wipe samples and answer the

         14  gentleman who left earlier, I forgot where he was

         15  exactly in terms of his location, is there anything

         16  left on the swing? Is there anything left on the

         17  park bench in Central Park? Is there anything in the

         18  soil? And to plan for next year. We need to still

         19  know those answers, because the people of New York

         20  City have gotten a raw deal on information and they

         21  need to get the right information this year, this

         22  fall, as you plan for next year. And I am sorry, I

         23  know it costs money, but it is a fact of life. And

         24  who does that, I don't know.

         25                 In New York State there is a great
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          2  group of people up at SUNY in Albany, Dr. DiCaprio

          3  and Dr. Carpenter, toxicologists, running

          4  laboratories who are really good. In Mount Sinai New

          5  York is Mary Wolf.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me just say

          7  again, I want to get to the others, but any

          8  recommendations, any place that you should be

          9  steering us so that we can tap into the best we

         10  have, I suggest you get it to us.

         11                 I just want it to be general. While I

         12  agree with you that we can't close our eyes to what

         13  was, you know, we so get caught up with the what was

         14  and what is comes and goes and then people want to

         15  know why we are not doing something. So, sometimes I

         16  become the bag guy because the budget process

         17  doesn't wait upon the experts and whenever you want

         18  to extend it, you just start with another survey,

         19  you know, on top of another one, and we have shelves

         20  of surveys that I also say if we dust them off and

         21  read what we spend, maybe the same thing you said

         22  now may have been said ten years ago.

         23                 But any recommendations, please make

         24  sure we get it.

         25                 Doctor?
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          2                 DR. McNAMARA: I just wanted to say,

          3  the Bronx Zoo has hired its own expert in mosquito

          4  control and we are willing, and as we have done all

          5  along, we will share all of our data, and I would

          6  make a play or a push for getting health officials

          7  involved with the veterinary community, because in

          8  this instance birds were the sentinels for this

          9  virus and who better to serve as the front line of

         10  defense than veterinarians or wildlife people. And I

         11  think we have a vast network of that and we could

         12  certainly facilitate that kind of organization.

         13                 The other thing is I think people

         14  have already talked about but we would need to, in

         15  addition to having a mosquito control program and

         16  mosquito collections and things, against sentinel

         17  birds, they use chickens to ring the first alarm

         18  when there is St. Louis Encephalitis, we need to

         19  find a sentinel that can serve the same function for

         20  this West Nile-like virus.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, I thank

         22  you for your time, I know some of you have traveled

         23  a distance. The recommendations, I again urge you to

         24  get it to our attention, we will look at it, and

         25  again, thank you very much for joining us this
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          2  morning.

          3                 Let me call upon, and I, as a

          4  Brooklynite, really have the pleasure because I have

          5  not only served with him here in this chamber when

          6  he was a Council Member, but when I was in the State

          7  Assembly, and of course the distinguished Borough

          8  President of the Borough that I am privileged to

          9  come from, and that is the honorable Howard Golden,

         10  the President of the Borough of Brooklyn.

         11                 Mr. Borough President, on behalf of

         12  not only this Committee, but I, as the Chair, I

         13  thank you for joining us. It is always good to see

         14  my Borough President come before us and testify and

         15  thank you for that, sir.

         16                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT GOLDEN: And they

         17  told me I would never be back in the City Council

         18  again.

         19                 Good morning, Mr. Chairman, Victor

         20  Robles, great Councilman from Brooklyn, members of

         21  the City Council Health Committee. I am pleased to

         22  have this opportunity to address the concerns of

         23  Brooklyn residents and community leaders about the

         24  lack of information on the current public health

         25  emergency. Residents not just of my borough but of
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          2  the entire City are justifiably concerned about the

          3  spread of a potentially deadly virus, and deserve to

          4  know as much as possible about efforts to combat

          5  this disease.

          6                 Unfortunately the

          7  City Administration has chosen not to share the

          8  information with the public or all of its elected

          9  officials. It has decided only to work through the

         10  media and a few elected officials divulging small

         11  amounts of information that are not entirely

         12  accurate.

         13                 This is wrong. As a boroughwide

         14  elected official I have the responsibility of

         15  working with elected officials and community leaders

         16  to ensure that this situation is properly handled.

         17                 Further, the residents of Brooklyn

         18  who need more information on spraying than just the

         19  soundbite on the daily news looked to my office and

         20  their local community boards to better understand

         21  what actions will be taken.

         22                 Early last month when the

         23  encephalitis scare began, my office and those of the

         24  18 boards in Brooklyn were receiving phone calls

         25  from residents, businesses, schools, and community
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          2  organizations asking serious questions about the

          3  spraying schedule, the potential risks of the

          4  insecticide, and precautionary measures that should

          5  be taken.

          6                 In order to learn more about this

          7  crisis, I requested that the Department of Health

          8  and the Mayor's Office of Emergency Management send

          9  high level officials to the Brooklyn Borough Service

         10  Cabinet meeting on September the 14th.

         11                 Neither office sent a representative.

         12  This action is clearly against the City Charter

         13  Sections 2704 and 2706 requiring agency officials to

         14  consult regularly with the cabinet.

         15                 This is a disservice to the people of

         16  Brooklyn who have a right to know about their health

         17  and safety.

         18                 Between September 10th and 17th, my

         19  action Center received 25 calls per day on this

         20  matter. This center still receives numerous calls

         21  every day from people seeking more information.

         22                 My staff could only refer them to OEM

         23  hot line. Callers could not understand why my office

         24  could not help them. In an effort to provide better

         25  information, the Director of my Action Center called
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          2  OEM on six occasions from September 10th through the

          3  17th but these calls were never returned.

          4                 Officials from Brooklyn's community

          5  boards had similar experiences. My office did

          6  receive via fax a spraying schedule from the

          7  Department of Health. That schedule turned out to be

          8  inaccurate.

          9                 For example, a mother in Brooklyn

         10  contacted my office to find out when it would be

         11  safe to take her child to the park. She was told

         12  when her area would be sprayed. She went to the park

         13  with her child that morning believing that she did

         14  not have to worry about the area being sprayed. The

         15  schedule was incorrect. Later that day she called my

         16  action center to report that park area had indeed

         17  been sprayed while she was there. She was

         18  understandably shaken by the experience. The people

         19  of Brooklyn do not deserve to be treated this way.

         20                 My office and the Community Boards

         21  are vital links to the community at large and are an

         22  important resource for residents. I am particularly

         23  concerned that some elected officials in this City

         24  were given access to information to the exclusion of

         25  others.
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          2                 It is shortsighted and unconscionable

          3  that during a long-lasting crisis like this one, the

          4  Giuliani Administration chooses to play games with

          5  the public itself. It alone cannot be the sole

          6  source of information and then not even be

          7  cooperative and accurate in sharing those few

          8  details with the public.

          9                 We cannot let any crisis involving

         10  the public now or in the future escalate to a panic

         11  due to misinformation or poor communication.

         12                 To that end, I have requested that

         13  legislation be enacted that requires the Department

         14  of Health to provide prompt, written notice to the

         15  affected elected officials and community board

         16  concerning any public health alert or condition.

         17                 I urge each of the members of this

         18  Council to adopt this legislation.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Borough President.

         22                 First, again, thank you for taking

         23  the time out of your schedule for coming here. Let

         24  me also say that as Chairman of this Committee, I

         25  must be one of those elected officials that you are
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          2  referring to and it is true that some information

          3  was given to us.

          4                 One of the things that I tried to do,

          5  and it is something that I learned, and I always

          6  learned from my mistakes, and that was while I was

          7  concerned with informing 51 members of the City

          8  Council, I will assure you that so long as I preside

          9  that I will include the Borough Presidents and the

         10  Community Boards, all 59, and I guess it is trying

         11  to catch up, thinking that it is an emergency and we

         12  were trying to do as much as we can in terms of the

         13  spirit of cooperation because I have often said that

         14  it is one government and I am part of it, good and

         15  bad.

         16                 So, on my behalf I am going to say

         17  that that was an oversight on my part, and I stand

         18  to be corrected on that one.

         19                 I am aware of your legislation. I am

         20  a little disappointed, however, as Chairman of the

         21  Health Committee, but after I will look at that

         22  legislation I will work with your office in terms of

         23  the legislation.

         24                 Having said that, unless any of my

         25  colleagues have any questions, again, I want to
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          2  thank you for coming this morning, Mr. Borough

          3  President.

          4                 BOROUGH PRESIDENT GOLDEN: I would

          5  just like to respond to what you said. I don't mean

          6  to imply that it was your obligation to notify the

          7  elected officials, I think the City Administration

          8  had that responsibility, as did the Department of

          9  Health.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you, sir.

         11  Thank you very much.

         12                 Okay, I understand that Jerry Hauer

         13  is in the parking lot, so why don't we just call the

         14  next person who was supposed to testify -- oh, he is

         15  up the stairs, okay. We are going to have the

         16  Administration then, I am sure we want to hear from

         17  the Administration and I give you two minutes, if

         18  not, I will move on with the hearings. However, I

         19  will call upon Dr. Neal Cohen, the Commissioner of

         20  the Department of Health, and Jerry Hauer, who is

         21  the Director of the Mayor's Office on Emergency

         22  Management.

         23                 So, what we will do, because it gives

         24  me a chance too, because it gives me a two-minute

         25  recess, while we let them huff and puff up the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            101

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  stairs, and then I will again call on them.

          3                 Sergeant-At-Arms, can you have this

          4  place come back to order?

          5                 I see the distinguished Commissioner

          6  of the Department of Health, Neal Cohen. I don't see

          7  Jerry yet. He is coming, okay.

          8                 I understand for the record that also

          9  the Center for the Disease Control is joining the

         10  Administration; is that correct?

         11                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And I also

         13  understand that the State Department of Health has

         14  chosen to join the Administration in this panel; is

         15  that correct?

         16                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So I am assuming

         18  that each of them will be speaking for themselves,

         19  Commissioner?

         20                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         22                 Sergeant-At-Arms, do me a favor, if

         23  they have testimony, make sure we get it, okay? Give

         24  it out.

         25                 Okay, let's go. Sergeant-At-Arms,
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          2  please clear all the discussions off the floor and

          3  outside the hall, please. And folks, do us a favor,

          4  anyone standing, there is enough seats now, sit. We

          5  don't need to stand up. And it is very distracting

          6  when you have these little private meetings because

          7  it gets up there, please.

          8                 And Sergeant-At-Arms, the

          9  Commissioner of Health is telling me there is no

         10  water. Can we get some water for the Commissioner,

         11  please?

         12                 Okay, let me on behalf of this

         13  Committee and the Speaker welcome you to this

         14  hearing. Again, while I don't know them, I have

         15  gotten to know them because every time I either get

         16  briefed or go to a press conference, I happen to

         17  have met the gentlemen, one from the State

         18  Department of Health and the other one from the

         19  Center of Disease Control. Of course, my two

         20  colleagues, one that I have had more than one

         21  occasion join in emergency efforts. I know the

         22  hurricanes, not the last one, but I know from Hugo

         23  up to those, and not only in Puerto Rico, but

         24  Dominican Republic and Jamaica. So, Mr. Director of

         25  the Mayor's Office on Emergency Management, Jerry

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            103

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  Hauer, I welcome you, my friend.

          3                 Of course, Neal, you and I and this

          4  Committee tend to have more of a working

          5  relationship with you, because not only you are the

          6  Commissioner of the Health Department, but you are

          7  also the Commissioner of Mental Health.

          8                 Having said that, I welcome you, Dr.

          9  Neal Cohen.

         10                 Now, would you identify yourselves

         11  for the record, and then who is going to lead off

         12  and speak?

         13                 Commissioner Neal Cohen, okay.

         14                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Good afternoon.

         15  Thank you, Chairman Robles. I am Neal Cohen,

         16  Commissioner of the New York City Department of

         17  Health, and with me today, let me give some

         18  introductions, Dr. Bob Hoffman is to my left.  Dr.

         19  Hoffman is the Chief Toxicologist at the New York

         20  City Department of Health and Director of the New

         21  York City Poison Control Center.

         22                 Behind me is Assistant Commissioner

         23  Dr. Marcy Layton, from the Communicable Disease

         24  Program.

         25                 To my right is Mr. Jerry Hauer, as
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          2  you know, the Director of the Office of Emergency

          3  Management.

          4                 Dr. Roger Nasci, our senior Research

          5  Entomologist at the Center for Disease Control and

          6  Prevention. And Dr. Dennis White from the State

          7  Department of Health, the Director of the Arthropod

          8  Borne Disease Division, and someone who has worked

          9  very closely with us in New York City and we

         10  consider a very good partner in helping us deal and

         11  address this outbreak.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And,

         13  Commissioner, since we did commend Dr. McNamara, I

         14  remember on the steps of City Hall you also told me

         15  about your Assistant Commissioner that in working

         16  with you, she also needs to be commended, and the

         17  men and the women of the Department of Health, so

         18  why don't you on the record also give praises, even

         19  though it is the Department of Health, but when you

         20  do good, we would like to hear it.

         21                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: I do and I will.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         23                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Although we have

         24  previously provided a briefing for the City Council

         25  and we kept the chair and the leadership updated, we
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          2  are pleased to have this opportunity to give you a

          3  more comprehensive overview of the development since

          4  the beginning of this unprecedented outbreak of the

          5  West Nile-like viral encephalitis.

          6                 The discovery of a virus never before

          7  seen in New York City or indeed in the Western

          8  Hemisphere, serves to remind us that we live in a

          9  global village where viruses can unpredictably

         10  migrate from one part of the world to another.

         11                 The identification of the West

         12  Nile-like virus in the City provides insights into

         13  the value of a good public health surveillance

         14  system and illustrates the importance of the strong,

         15  collaborative relationships that exist between the

         16  New York City Department of Health, the local

         17  medical community, as well as among federal, state

         18  and local health officials.

         19                 This discovery and our rapid response

         20  to it is also an excellent example of the successful

         21  collaboration of numerous governmental agencies.

         22                 I want to take this opportunity to

         23  express our deep appreciation for the assistance,

         24  advice and support of our many partners in the

         25  extraordinary undertaking of the last month. This
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          2  unparalleled team effort has allowed us to quickly

          3  identify, characterize and launch an attack against

          4  a novel disease threat.

          5                 The close collaboration between the

          6  federal CBC, the US Environmental Protection Agency,

          7  EPA, New York State Department of Health and the New

          8  York State Department of Environmental Conservation

          9  have been and continue to be critical through our

         10  effort.

         11                 The immediate support and cooperation

         12  of our neighbors in Nassau, Suffolk and Westchester

         13  County is also well appreciated, and without the

         14  extraordinary commitment, expertise and ability of

         15  the Mayor's Office of Emergency Management and the

         16  generous assistance and cooperation of our sister

         17  City agencies, and our mission of the last few weeks

         18  would literally have been impossible.

         19                 Just over seven weeks ago, on August

         20  23rd, an astute infectious disease physician from a

         21  northern Queens Community Hospital called our

         22  communicable disease program to report two baffling

         23  cases involving encephalitis patients. As you may

         24  know, "encephalitis" refers to an inflammation of

         25  the brain, and can be caused by viral and bacterial
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          2  infections, including viruses that are transmitted

          3  by mosquitos.

          4                 In New York City, however, most viral

          5  encephalitis cases are due to intestinal viruses

          6  transmitted person-to-person, a locally-acquired

          7  case of mosquito-borne viral encephalitis has never

          8  been reported before in the City.

          9                 Upon receiving this report to our

         10  Communicable Disease Program headed by Dr. Layton,

         11  with Assistant Medical Director Dr. Annie Fine, they

         12  immediately began an intensive investigation. And

         13  over the next several days they identified an

         14  initial cluster of six encephalitis patients, and

         15  they initiated consultation with the CDC and the

         16  State Health Department.

         17                 This investigation included not only

         18  a vigorous medical review of the patients clinical

         19  and laboratory findings, but a thorough inquiry into

         20  their habits, social and travel histories, and their

         21  daily environments to look for common factors.

         22                 Our medical investigators were struck

         23  by certain similarities in their medical histories,

         24  but could find no common thread - save that all the

         25  patients were older adults and had spent significant
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          2  time outdoors in the evening hours.

          3                 This led them to suspect an arbovirus

          4  - an arthropod-borne, or, more specifically,

          5  mosquito-borne virus that would explain both the

          6  unexpected appearance and localized geographic

          7  distribution of cases, as well as the concentration

          8  of severe illness among older New Yorkers.

          9                 Our Department of Health

         10  investigators immediately sent appropriate

         11  laboratory specimens to the State Department of

         12  Health Laboratory, which is funded by the CDC as a

         13  regional reference laboratory for a viral

         14  encephalitis testing.

         15                 On September 2nd, we were informed by

         16  the State Department that those tests did indeed

         17  point to St. Louis Encephalitis and that specimens

         18  were being sent to the CDC for confirmation of these

         19  initial findings, and I would like following your

         20  lead chairman, to congratulate our communicable

         21  disease program which carried out this

         22  investigation, and despite the long odds since there

         23  have never been even -- St. Louis Encephalitis had

         24  never been reported before in New York City, their

         25  epidemiological investigation pointed to this
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          2  mosquito-borne viral infection, despite some

          3  reasonable amount of skepticism, they persisted and

          4  indeed we did find that it was mosquito-borne.

          5                 On September 3rd, the Friday before

          6  Labor Day weekend, we received word from the CDC

          7  that tests that were carried out at the Fort Collins

          8  special laboratory did indeed confirm that the death

          9  of one elderly individual and the illnesses of two

         10  other elderly persons in Queens were caused by St.

         11  Louis Encephalitis.

         12                 It was immediately clear to us on

         13  September 3rd, that a serious situation confronted

         14  us and that there would likely be more cases.

         15                 After learning the preliminary

         16  findings from the State, Health Department, the day

         17  before on September 2nd we had begun preliminary

         18  planning for a public health response in order to

         19  ensure our ability to mobilize rapidly and initiate

         20  a mosquito-control plan in the event these initial

         21  findings were confirmed.

         22                 Thus, on September 3rd, within hours

         23  of receiving confirmation from the CDC, the City

         24  publicly announced the discovery of this new virus

         25  to the public and launched a major initiative to
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          2  combat this emergent public health threat. Because

          3  the earliest cases were residents of the two mile by

          4  two mile area in Queens, the initiative began with

          5  aerial and ground application of insecticides

          6  intended to kill adult mosquitos, as well as the

          7  application of larvicides to mosquito breeding sites

          8  in that initially-affected Queens area. And because

          9  of the close proximity of certain areas of the South

         10  Bronx to the affected areas, we quickly expanded the

         11  mosquito control efforts to those areas even before

         12  we knew of any confirmed human cases from that area.

         13                 When we learned of an additional

         14  confirmed case of what was thought to be St. Louis

         15  encephalitis in Brooklyn approximately six days

         16  later, we immediately expanded our control efforts

         17  Citywide.

         18                 Later, when cases were reported from

         19  neighboring counties and infected birds and

         20  mosquitos were discovered throughout the northeast,

         21  we became absolutely certain that our earlier

         22  decision to expand control efforts Citywide was a

         23  correct decision.

         24                 Our immediate and intensive efforts

         25  appear to have been successful. By Friday, September
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          2  4th, the second round of Citywide aerial and ground

          3  insecticide application had been completed. At that

          4  point, there were 14 confirmed cases, including

          5  three deaths, of what was then thought to be St.

          6  Louis Encephalitis with another 82 illnesses still

          7  under investigation.

          8                 Most importantly, the confirmed and

          9  probable infections were contracted before the

         10  Citywide initiative began, since the incubation

         11  period between infection and illness can vary

         12  between five and 15 days.

         13                 Then, on September 24th, we learned

         14  from CDC that the virus we had been battling may, in

         15  fact, be a virus similar to the West Nile virus,

         16  which had never been seen before in the Western

         17  Hemisphere, much less New York.

         18                 The virus is a member of the same

         19  family of flaviviruses that include the St. Louis

         20  Encephalitis. The viruses in this subgroup of

         21  viruses are so similar that they will cross-react on

         22  on most standard laboratory testing, so that a test

         23  designed to detect antibodies to one virus in this

         24  subgroup will show varying degrees of positivity and

         25  sometimes even given positive results that are
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          2  convincing for antibodies for one or more of the

          3  other viruses in the subgroup as well, and this is

          4  exactly what happened here.

          5                 Information from several sources, led

          6  the CDC investigators to the West Nile-like virus.

          7  Around the time of the original discovery of the

          8  encephalitis outbreak, reports of dead birds,

          9  especially crows, I know Dr. McNamara has discussed

         10  this with you, began to surface in New York City and

         11  it is environs, and the City forwarded some of this

         12  to the State DEC for autopsy, approximately half of

         13  the birds sent were later found to have

         14  encephalitis. Connecticut officials also isolated

         15  and SLE-like virus which doesn't usually kill birds

         16  from a dead crow.

         17                 A week after the Citywide initiative

         18  was announced, Dr. McNamara at the Bronx Zoo pursued

         19  the cause of several deaths among zoo birds that had

         20  evidence of encephalitis and on September 10th sent

         21  samples to a federal veterinarian laboratory.

         22                 CDC testing of these viruses found

         23  that they were closely related to the West Nile

         24  virus after identifying the West Nile-like virus in

         25  birds, the CDC found that the virus seen in the
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          2  birds was identical to the virus that was present in

          3  a sample from a person in New York City, a human

          4  encephalitis case.

          5                 Also, a University of California

          6  laboratory, using a different laboratory test found

          7  West Nile-like material in three human encephalitis

          8  cases and, finally, all specimens that previously

          9  tested positive for St. Louis Encephalitis virus

         10  antibodies were retested for West Nile virus and

         11  found to be even more strongly reactive or positive

         12  for West Nile antibodies.

         13                 Since then, an additional 25

         14  specimens that were either borderline or negative

         15  for SLE antibodies have also proved to be positive

         16  for antibodies to the West Nile-like virus.

         17                 We are still awaiting final results

         18  of the CDC's DNA analysis to determine the exact

         19  strain of this West Nile virus, causing the

         20  illnesses in New York City, but there is no doubt

         21  that a West Nile-like virus, a close cousin of the

         22  St. Louis encephalitis virus is the cause of the

         23  mosquito-borne viral illness.

         24                 While the discovery of a virus never

         25  seen before in the United States is a very
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          2  significant discovery for public health scientists

          3  and has major national implications, it does not

          4  change in any way the appropriate public health

          5  response to the mosquito-borne viral threat that we

          6  mounted in New York City.

          7                 In addition, neither patient

          8  treatment decisions, nor recommendations to the

          9  medical community are impacted by this

         10  reclassification.

         11                 West Nile fever, the illness caused

         12  by the West Nile virus, has been seen in Egypt,

         13  Israel, South Africa, portions of the former Soviet

         14  Union, India, and more rarely in Europe, including

         15  France and Romania. First isolated in Uganda in

         16  1937, the natural cycle of the virus is from bird to

         17  mosquito and back to bird. While humans can be

         18  infected via bites of infected mosquitos, humans

         19  rarely transmit the virus back to mosquitos that

         20  bite them, and do not transmit the virus to one

         21  another.

         22                 Though birds are considered to be the

         23  primary reservoir hosts of the West Nile virus, the

         24  virus is not transmitted directly from birds to

         25  humans, but only through insects, and the mosquito
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          2  is recognized as the major vector of the virus in

          3  the insect kingdom.

          4                 The symptoms of West Nile Fever are

          5  similar to those caused by the St. Louis

          6  encephalitis virus, most people who are infected do

          7  not become ill. Symptoms, when they occur, begin

          8  five to 15 days after an infection. Mild infections

          9  are common and include fever, headache and body

         10  aches, often with skin rash and swollen lymph

         11  glands. The fever is usually gone within five days,

         12  and most people do recover quickly.

         13                 More severe infections occur less

         14  commonly, and are marked by headache, high fever,

         15  neck stiffness, stupor, disorientation, coma,

         16  tremors, paralysis, and, very rarely, death.

         17                 In some individuals, particularly the

         18  elderly, the West Nile Fever can be a serious

         19  disease that affects the central nervous system.

         20  While anyone can become infected with the virus,

         21  older people are more likely to become ill and to

         22  develop more serious symptoms when infected.

         23                 As of today, there are 40 laboratory

         24  confirmed cases of the West Nile-like virus in New

         25  York City, including four deaths among Queens
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          2  residents. Of the remaining 36 cases, five remain

          3  hospitalized and 31 have been discharged from the

          4  hospital. Of the total confirmed cases, 29 of the 40

          5  are aged 60 or older, four are in their fifties and

          6  the remaining seven are under 40, including a

          7  five-year-old and a 15-year-old, both of whom have

          8  been released and are doing well.

          9                 Twenty-eight of the total cases are

         10  from Queens, nine are from the Bronx, two from

         11  Manhattan, and one from Brooklyn.

         12                 Based on studies of past outbreak

         13  situations, very few mosquitos in the studies,

         14  perhaps as few as one out of every 1,000 are

         15  infected with the West Nile virus, now this is based

         16  on prior experience with West Nile, we don't know at

         17  this point exactly and we are still evaluating that,

         18  with regard to the prevalence in the mosquito

         19  population.

         20                 The chances, however, of an

         21  individual getting bitten by an infected mosquito

         22  are very small. Even if an individual is bitten by

         23  an infected mosquito, the chances of developing an

         24  illness are believed to be quite small, and

         25  sometimes one in 300 is approximated, based on the
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          2  past experience with this virus in other parts of

          3  the world.

          4                 Persons who are bitten by mosquitos

          5  should not be routinely tested, since the likelihood

          6  of both infection and illness are so low. Although

          7  there is no specific treatment, medication or cure,

          8  nor a vaccine, the symptoms and complications of the

          9  disease can be treated with supportive care. Most

         10  people who become ill do recover completely.

         11                 While the evidence indicates that the

         12  risk of contracting the West Nile-like virus in our

         13  area is still relatively minimal, the first time

         14  appearance of this disease in our densely populated

         15  city demanded an immediate and aggressive public

         16  health response and that response is continuing.

         17  With the advice and the assistance of the CDC, the

         18  EPA, State Department of Health and State DEC, the

         19  City has undertaken the following actions during the

         20  past weeks since the Labor Day weekend.

         21                 Working with the New York City

         22  Department of health, the Mayor's Office of

         23  Emergency Management coordinated efforts to

         24  eradicate adult mosquitos by Citywide aerial and

         25  ground application of insecticides.
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          2                 These insecticides, which were

          3  recommended by many experts with whom we consulted,

          4  are considered t be the safest and most widely used

          5  insecticides available, including malathion and the

          6  synthetic pyrethroid-based insecticides resmethrin

          7  and sumethrin. They are approved by EPA for mosquito

          8  control and the City's use of these chemicals have

          9  been continually monitored by the State DEC which

         10  regulates pesticides to assure they are being

         11  applied under the safest possible conditions.

         12                 Malathion has been used safely for

         13  more than fifty years, and has been employed

         14  effectively in similar arboviral outbreaks around

         15  the country, as well as for routine mosquito

         16  control. Health risks associated with the use of all

         17  of these pesticides in the extremely low

         18  concentrations recommended for mosquito control are

         19  thought to be negligible. That notwithstanding,

         20  because some individuals may be sensitive to some

         21  chemicals, we recommended that persons with

         22  respiratory conditions and persons concerned for

         23  their discomfort, take extra precautions and stay

         24  indoors during spraying, if possible.

         25                 Despite weather-related delays and
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          2  the enormous logistical difficulties of mobilizing

          3  equipment, manpower and other support necessary to

          4  assure a safe and effective eradication effort, the

          5  City was able to completely address the needs of all

          6  five boroughs within 12 days of commencing spraying.

          7  Mosquito counts citywide indicate that we were

          8  successful in greatly reducing the mosquito

          9  population.

         10                 To further minimize risks of viral

         11  transmission by mosquitos, we initiated a

         12  second-round of spraying that was completed eight

         13  days later on September 23rd. We have continued some

         14  targeted spraying in sections of the City based on

         15  our surveillance of human cases and both

         16  surveillance of the mosquito and avian monitoring

         17  system that we have established.

         18                 Beginning on September 3rd, the

         19  Health Department issued a Public Health Alert in

         20  eight different languages to inform the general

         21  public and has disseminated updated alerts regularly

         22  since then.

         23                 The Alerts include information on the

         24  West Nile-like virus and its symptoms and

         25  recommendations to reduce exposure to mosquitos.
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          2  These include the use of insect repellents, and

          3  protective clothing when spending time outdoors,

          4  particularly during the evening when the mosquitos

          5  are most active at maintaining secure door and

          6  window screens.

          7                 On September 3rd the City established

          8  a toll free information hot line to answer questions

          9  from the public about the outbreak and the actions

         10  we were taking.

         11                 Staffed by City employees, the hot

         12  line has answered thus far more than 140,000 calls

         13  to date, making it the most active hot line ever

         14  established by the City.

         15                 Callers to the hot line could obtain

         16  insecticide spraying schedules, talk to a physician

         17  about health concerns, get information on treatment

         18  or elimination of stagnant water sources and report

         19  sightings of dead birds.

         20                 The hot line was initially operating

         21  24 hours a day, seven days a week, by live

         22  operators. As calls have dropped off, the midnight

         23  to 8:00 a.m. shift was eliminated. However, an

         24  automated, integrated voice response system that

         25  answers the most frequently asked questions
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          2  continues to be available at all times.

          3                 We have distributed insect repellent

          4  throughout the City with the assistance of the Fire

          5  Department and other City agencies and officials.

          6                 Members of the city Council were

          7  especially helpful in this effort, and I want to

          8  take this opportunity to thank you for both your

          9  help in distributing insect repellent in your

         10  communities and for assisting us in disseminating

         11  public health information about this outbreak.

         12                 The Health Department continues its

         13  ongoing epidemiological investigation of the

         14  outbreak in close cooperation with the local medical

         15  community, federal and state health agencies and

         16  health departments in neighboring counties.

         17                 The City Department of Health has

         18  sent repeated medical alerts to all hospitals in the

         19  City, as well as to infectious disease specialists

         20  and public and private laboratories, seeking their

         21  assistance in identifying and reporting any possible

         22  cases of viral encephalitis.

         23                 We also conducted very active

         24  surveillance where Health Department employees

         25  routinely call the number of hospital specialty
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          2  departments to solicit information on any cases that

          3  may not have been identified and reported.

          4                 The Health Department also set up two

          5  special surveillance programs to help us understand

          6  the full geographic extent of the outbreak this

          7  summer, and a laboratory-based system to approve our

          8  ability to monitor for new cases over the next

          9  several weeks until the mosquito activity completely

         10  subsides.

         11                 With guidance of the CDC we have

         12  established a system for monitoring mosquitos by

         13  establishing traps throughout the City to assess the

         14  need for additional spraying, as well as to test for

         15  the presence of West Nile-like virus.

         16                 In collaboration with the CDC, the

         17  State Health Department and neighboring states and

         18  counties we are investigating bird deaths and

         19  collecting selected dead birds for laboratory

         20  testing. Callers to the hot line have been

         21  especially helpful in reporting information on the

         22  sitings of dead birds.

         23                 We have just completed a community

         24  survey or serosurvey in collaboration with the CDC

         25  of several neighborhoods in Northern Queens where
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          2  the outbreak was first recognized, where the

          3  concentration of encephalitis cases is the highest.

          4                 This is a tool often applied by

          5  public health professionals during outbreak

          6  investigations when we expect that most people who

          7  become exposed will not become ill.

          8                 The team of surveyors interviewed

          9  members of 470 households who voluntarily had a

         10  small amount of blood drawn fro West Nile-like

         11  antibody testing. From this survey of randomly

         12  selected participants, we hope to learn what

         13  percentage of the population in this area was

         14  exposed to the virus, what age groups were most

         15  affected, and who is at the highest risk for getting

         16  infected.

         17                 Participation was totally voluntary

         18  and anonymous and we had an excellent response with

         19  positive input from community leaders and community

         20  members in assisting us in carrying out this survey.

         21                 And while serosurvey findings have no

         22  medical benefit to individuals being tested, since

         23  they are basically healthy, they do have the

         24  potential to help not just us but our state and

         25  federal public health partners better understand a
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          2  disease that is new to the Western Hemisphere and to

          3  design preventive strategies.

          4                 We are doubly grateful to the people

          5  of Queens who literally rolled up their sleeves and

          6  enabled us to complete the survey in record time.

          7                 We hope to have the results within a

          8  couple of months. We will share them with the

          9  community and with the City Council.

         10                 We are beginning the process of

         11  planning for a long term comprehensive program for

         12  the prevention of the West Nile-like virus and other

         13  mosquito-borne diseases. An interagency work group

         14  is being established to study alternative strategies

         15  and put together a comprehensive proposal.

         16                 While a great deal of work remains to

         17  be done, and we will need to coordinate our

         18  long-term planning with state, regional and federal

         19  authorities, I would like to share with you some of

         20  the general concepts that we will be considering.

         21                 First and foremost, we must maintain

         22  a strong infectious disease surveillance

         23  infrastructure to assure that even the rarest and

         24  never before seen communicable disease is detected

         25  by our system.
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          2                 We will be reassessing our needs in

          3  this area in the coming months, but I do believe

          4  that the City Department of Health's quick

          5  identification of an unusual encephalitis outbreak

          6  illustrates the ability of our medical staff and the

          7  soundness of our current program.

          8                 In addition, we will identify and

          9  evaluate various methodologies employed in other

         10  parts of the country for effective mosquito-borne

         11  disease surveillance and control.

         12                 Program components we will assess

         13  include the use of sentinel chickens or other fowl

         14  to identify mosquito-borne diseases before they

         15  appear in humans, trapping wild birds to test for

         16  the presence of arboviruses, identification of

         17  potential mosquito breeding sites in the City, and a

         18  program to monitor and control the mosquito

         19  population.

         20                 In summary, we are optimistic that

         21  our response to the public health threat posed by

         22  the West Nile-like virus will be successful in

         23  arresting any further spread of this illness. But we

         24  will not relax our vigilance.

         25                 We will continue to work toward ways
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          2  to enhance a fundamentally sound surveillance system

          3  with other early warning systems and advance

          4  technology.

          5                 I look forward to working with you

          6  toward our common goals.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you,

          9  Commissioner.

         10                 I see that, I think there is a

         11  statement, and I am assuming you want to read it,

         12  from the Center for Disease Control; is that

         13  correct?

         14                 DR. NASCI: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Just push the

         16  button.

         17                 DR. NASCI: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Why don't you

         19  just again identify yourself for the record.

         20                 DR. NASCI: Yes, good afternoon. I am

         21  Roger Nasci, I am an entomologist with the Centers

         22  for Disease Control and Prevention. I thank the

         23  Committee on Health and the City Council for the

         24  opportunity to testify on CDC's response to the

         25  recent outbreak of mosquito-transmitted disease in
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          2  the New York City area.

          3                 You have my testimony with you. You

          4  will see that it duplicates many of the things that

          5  Commissioner Cohen has already mentioned, but what I

          6  am going to try and do is put them into perspective

          7  on how CDC participated and contributed to this

          8  operation.

          9                 On August 23rd, an infectious disease

         10  physician from a hospital in northern Queens

         11  contacted the City Department of Health to report

         12  two patients with encephalitis. The City Department

         13  of Health initiated an investigation that identified

         14  a cluster of six patients with encephalitis. Dr.

         15  Marcelle Layton of the City Department of Health

         16  contacted CDC about these findings, and appropriate

         17  samples were sent for evaluation for the New York

         18  State Department of Health virology laboratory and

         19  then forwarded to the CDC Vector-Borne Infectious

         20  Diseases Arbovirus Diagnostic and Reference

         21  laboratory in Fort Collins, Colorado, for

         22  confirmation.

         23                 On August 31st, because this event

         24  was considered an emerging disease activity, CDC

         25  sent epidemiologists to assist New York City in
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          2  investigating an outbreak of what was then being

          3  called encephalitis of unknown etiology.

          4                 CDC's diagnostic laboratory performed

          5  IgM-capture ELISA tests on the specimens and like

          6  the New York State laboratory, obtained serologic

          7  results consistent with infection by St. Louis

          8  Encephalitis virus, a common North American

          9  arborvirus. In response to these results, Dr. Daniel

         10  O'Leary, an epidemic intelligence service officer

         11  from CDC in Fort Collins, was sent to New York City

         12  on September 7th, at the request of the New York

         13  City Department of Health. And because SLE is a

         14  mosquito-born disease, I, too, traveled to New York

         15  City on September 8th to assist with the

         16  vector-related components of this outbreak.

         17                 The diagnostic tests on serum from

         18  the initial human cases in this outbreak were

         19  reported as consistent with St. Louis encephalitis

         20  virus infection.

         21                 The normal arbovirus test panel of

         22  reagents, against which serum samples and tissue

         23  samples from suspected encephalitis cases in the

         24  United States are routinely tested, includes viruses

         25  that are indigenous to the U.S., these are St. Louis
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          2  encephalitis, eastern equine encephalitis, western

          3  equine encephalitis, LaCrosse encephalitis, Powassan

          4  viruses, and also dengue virus that is endemic in

          5  this hemisphere and is often introduced into this

          6  country.

          7                 Because the clinical and

          8  epidemiological aspects of these cases were also

          9  compatible with SLE virus infection, the diagnosis

         10  of SLE was made by the New York State Department of

         11  Health virology laboratory and by CDC.

         12                 Concurrent with the outbreak of

         13  encephalitis in humans, local birds were observed to

         14  be dying in New York City. Because SLE and related

         15  viruses do not normally kill birds, which are the

         16  natural hosts of these viruses, the epizootic in

         17  birds was thought to be unrelated to the human cases

         18  of encephalitis. Dead birds from the Bronx Zoo were

         19  sent to the United States Department of Agriculture

         20  National Veterinary Services Laboratory in Ames,

         21  Iowa for diagnosis. A virus was isolated but could

         22  not be identified as any of the normally suspected

         23  avian pathogens. This virus was sent to the CDC and

         24  was identified as a West Nile-like virus on

         25  September 23rd, 1999.
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          2                 West Nile virus is native to Africa,

          3  but is also found in West Asia and the Middle East.

          4  It has caused epidemics in Europe, where the virus

          5  was probably introduced to northern latitudes by

          6  migrant birds. It has a very wide host range and has

          7  been isolated for many species of birds, which are

          8  its natural host, as well as from humans, several

          9  domestic animals, bats, mosquitos and ticks.

         10                 West Nile virus causes disease in

         11  humans that is very similar to that caused by SLE

         12  virus. Both viruses have similar mosquito vectors

         13  and transmission cycles; therefore, the response to

         14  the epidemic of suspected SLE was identical to the

         15  actions that would have been taken had the diagnosis

         16  of West Nile virus been made earlier.

         17                 The New York City response to this

         18  epidemic was timely, appropriate, and exceptionally

         19  well managed from the beginning.

         20                 Additional actions taken by CDC to

         21  help with this response include some of the

         22  following items. By August 31st, the New York City

         23  Department of Health working with CDC had developed

         24  the case definition and began an aggressive program

         25  to identify suspect cases.
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          2                 On September 8th, as I said, I

          3  traveled to New York City to assist in the

          4  collection of mosquito specimens and on September

          5  11th, CDC sent Dr. Nicholas Komar, a vertebrate

          6  ecologist, and Mr. Nicholas Panella, biological

          7  technician, to collection of mosquito specimens from

          8  local birds.

          9                 CDC scientists assisted the City

         10  Department of Health in advising the public of

         11  methods for prevention of mosquito bites, through

         12  media releases and proactive door-to-door

         13  distribution of informational brochures, describing

         14  appropriate personal protection measures.

         15                 CDC scientists also assisted the City

         16  Department of Health regarding the use of insect

         17  repellant to prevent mosquito bites.

         18                 CDC scientists assisted the City

         19  Department of Health and surrounding counties in

         20  implementing control activities to reduce mosquito

         21  populations, through ultra low volume, area-wide

         22  insecticide applications.

         23                 On August 31st, an aggressive program

         24  to identify suspect cases was implemented using a

         25  clinical case definition I have described
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          2  previously. This definition was used to identify

          3  suspect cases in all hospitals in the City. Then,

          4  each suspect case was investigated to establish a

          5  detailed case history, including a travel history.

          6                 Finally, diagnostic specimens were

          7  obtained from each case and sent to the New York

          8  State Department of Health Virology Laboratory and

          9  to CDC to definitively determine the definitive

         10  determine the distribution of cases within the City.

         11                 Immediately upon learning that the

         12  ideologic agent was not SLE virus, but a West

         13  Nile-like virus, CDC advised the New York City

         14  Department of Health that the risk factors related

         15  to acquiring St. Louis encephalitis virus, or West

         16  Nile virus, are the same and are directly related to

         17  exposure to Culex species mosquitos.

         18                 The City's previously implemented

         19  multi-level program to reduce mosquito human contact

         20  was still appropriate.

         21                 Initially, the control component of

         22  the program was limited to the Queens area where the

         23  first cases were detected. After cases were

         24  documented in other areas of the City, the control

         25  program was expanded to include all five boroughs.
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          2  Mosquito surveillance conducted by CDC and the New

          3  York State Department of Health indicates that this

          4  control program was very successful in reducing the

          5  density of biting Culex mosquitos.

          6                 After it was documented that West

          7  Nile-like virus that occurred outside of New York

          8  City, CDC worked with State Health officials in the

          9  region to enhance surveillance for human cases

         10  suspected West Nile-like encephalitis and for birds

         11  and mosquitos also infected with the virus.

         12                 Also, a household-based serological

         13  survey was carried out in Queens, as Dr. Cohen just

         14  described, to determine the percentage of persons

         15  who were infected with West Nile-like virus in those

         16  areas.

         17                 Additional similar surveys are

         18  planned to determine the geographic extent of the

         19  outbreak in New York City and outlying areas.

         20                 Many New York City agencies were

         21  involved in response to this outbreak. We feel that

         22  their actions were prompt, appropriate and

         23  consistent with good health, public health

         24  practices.

         25                 The New York City Department of
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          2  Health has made a commitment to implementing an

          3  appropriate surveillance program and to developing

          4  mosquito-controlled contingencies for next spring

          5  and summer and subsequent years.

          6                 Planning for this program has already

          7  started and CDC has been invited to participate in

          8  its development and implementation, the surveillance

          9  system will enable the City Department of Health and

         10  neighboring counties and states to detect

         11  mosquito-transmitted virus activity early, and to

         12  respond with targeted mosquito control applications

         13  and other public health interventions to reduce the

         14  risk of human disease.

         15                 Thank you for this opportunity to

         16  comment.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 Let me just, especially to those of

         20  you who are visiting us, let me for the record say

         21  that both the Center for Disease Control and the

         22  State Department of Health did not have to come

         23  before us this morning, so for that I want to thank

         24  you. I understand that when we personally invited

         25  CDC, I must confess I thought it was typical where
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          2  they right away reject it, and I am surprised that

          3  you accept it. So, I just want people to know that,

          4  one, we know how to say thank you. And so, for the

          5  record, let me thank both you and the state for

          6  joining us.

          7                 Let me also for the record, before we

          8  get into the questions and the answers, say that

          9  while some of us are frustrated, and I must say I

         10  guess it is on both sides of the aisle, both to you,

         11  Jerry Hauer and to you, Dr. Cohen, I want to again

         12  thank you for attempting to keep this chair and this

         13  Committee and this Council informed.

         14                 The questions will come up whether

         15  the information that was received was enough,

         16  whether you had information that you could have

         17  given to us and you didn't, but put that aside, I

         18  want to once again repeat what the Speaker said, and

         19  as Chairman, and I believe most of my colleagues, if

         20  not all, want to personally thank you for the job,

         21  given what happened and how fast it happened and we

         22  had to act quickly. So I don't want you to, when

         23  members start asking questions think that we don't

         24  appreciate what you have done.

         25                 I need to, because maybe you were not
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          2  here, but I know the way the Administration

          3  operates, so I know there were people in where,

          4  while maybe you -- Jerry, before I get to my point,

          5  I understand you went to an emergency, I guess

          6  everything is okay, the potential threat to the

          7  firefighter, thank God is --

          8                 MR. HAUER: He is at Bellevue.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: He is at

         10  Bellevue. Well, our prayers are with him.

         11                 On of the things that was brought up

         12  this morning and I really need to know, who is the

         13  overseer? The doctors we had this morning, and the

         14  professionals referred to a manual, or what is

         15  referred to as a material safety data sheet,

         16  referred to it more than once. And in there, I got

         17  the impression, and mind you, I am only a layperson,

         18  I am not an expert in health, nor do I say that I

         19  have a Ph.D in front and back on health issues, but

         20  I got the impression that when you use chemicals, or

         21  the chemicals that they give, they sell, that there

         22  is this sheet that perhaps warns of the chemical and

         23  what the outcome may be.

         24                 One of the things that troubled me

         25  is, and where are those clippings? Is that I did
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          2  visit the command post, as a matter of fact it was

          3  Labor Day, that is Monday, and I went to my dear

          4  colleague's district, beautiful district, beautiful

          5  homes, and you began to show me exactly where you

          6  were and what you were doing. I also witnessed the

          7  implementation, I know that in terms of North

          8  Brooklyn the mobile spraying, and I witnessed the

          9  police officers following for the most part, the

         10  mobile vehicles. One of the things that was raised,

         11  and I believe it referred to a federal mandate,

         12  OSHA, and in there it says when it comes to workers,

         13  that if the handlers, once they do it, they handle

         14  it, after they do that there are certain things they

         15  must do afterwards.

         16                 I must tell you that the pictures

         17  that the media took does not show at all the

         18  proportion that our City workers may have, and that

         19  is why I am asking the question. I need for you to

         20  tell me, one, are you mandated to carry out these

         21  requirements, and two, when did you do it, because

         22  the pictures that I have before you, as you can see,

         23  they are handling, but there is no equipment to

         24  protect them. And you notice in this location in

         25  Queens in the Whitestone Bridge area, you have not a
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          2  mobile, but the fact that he has it strapped to his

          3  back and he is walking and he is spraying but you

          4  can see besides maybe the ear phones or whatever you

          5  call it so that the noise, I don't see any other

          6  protection other than -- and even when it came to

          7  the shirt, you didn't see a shirt with long sleeves.

          8  So, I also note to you that this mobile van on Third

          9  Avenue, between 75th and 85th, you will see that

         10  there is the mobile vehicle spraying in the rear,

         11  but what is missing because the spray, is the police

         12  car that follows those vehicles.

         13                 Now, I just want to put this on the

         14  table and perhaps either you, Jerry, or you,

         15  Commissioner Neal Cohen, would like to begin with

         16  that so we can set the record straight if you did

         17  follow those mandates, perhaps we need to hear it

         18  because I have heard that was not the case.

         19                 MR. HAUER: Yes, in fact, Mr.

         20  Chairman, let me address that issue.

         21                 There is a couple of issues that you

         22  bring out, one is the use of City workers, the other

         23  is whether or not we followed federal OSHA

         24  guidelines for respiratory protection for the

         25  workers that were involved.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            139

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 One of the things that the City has

          3  never done is a massive campaign like this, the

          4  Department of Health does have a division that does

          5  some localized spraying as necessary, and all of the

          6  members of the Department of Health that do

          7  application of insecticide do wear the appropriate

          8  respiratory protection as well as protection for

          9  their hands. Because of the massive nature of this

         10  effort, we brought in outside contractors, and those

         11  outside contractors were some of the most reputable

         12  in the business, the Centers for Disease Control,

         13  Dr. Nasci, came in and gave us a list, we contacted

         14  a number of them, one of them was Agroaders

         15  (phonetic), the other was Clark, Clark is probably

         16  the biggest in the country in this business in

         17  mosquito control, and they did monitor their workers

         18  and it was their responsibility to maintain OSHA

         19  compliance for their workers.

         20                 For the City workers --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: If I may, before

         22  we get to the City workers, I want to make sure that

         23  I understand the regulations or the mandate. Since

         24  this was an emergency and you had both City, state

         25  and federal, was OSHA part of this task force?
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          2                 MR. HAUER: No.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And did anyone

          4  oversee that in the private sector, although you are

          5  saying to me you contracted out, so there was no

          6  real overseer?

          7                 MR. HAUER: Well, the State DEC

          8  oversaw the whole process of insecticide

          9  application. As far as worker protection, it is the

         10  employer's responsibility to ensure protection of

         11  the workers. OSHA doesn't historically do that kind

         12  of oversight in the field, they do spot inspection.

         13  But state DEC stood with us from about 2:00 on on

         14  Friday the 3rd, and we asked the State DEC to send

         15  the appropriate expertise down, both toxicologists,

         16  environmental scientists, fish and wildlife experts

         17  to ensure that everything we did complied with both

         18  state and federal law, so that there was no question

         19  as to how it was being done, and more importantly,

         20  to ensure that as we went forward, that we did

         21  everything possible to make sure it was done

         22  appropriately, to protect the environment and to

         23  protect most importantly the people of this City.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, on this City

         25  side, in terms of City workers, which I know and I
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          2  must say I did see the Department of Health, even

          3  the sheriff of the City was very active. I saw, you

          4  are right, I did see the state. I saw the Fire

          5  Department, I saw the Police Department, I saw a

          6  number of City agencies that were working with this

          7  emergency. What was the steps that we took in terms

          8  of these rules, and how did you implement them?

          9                 MR. HAUER: Well, we have standard

         10  procedures for handling this material, and as you

         11  can see, first of all, one picture in the New York

         12  Times that you allude to was a Department of Health

         13  worker being trained with no chemicals being used.

         14  So, that was a stage photo, that was a Department of

         15  Health worker with a new backpack that was not

         16  actually applying insecticide.

         17                 As you will notice on the first

         18  picture, the gentleman from Northfork Helicopters is

         19  wearing butyl rubber gloves, which are appropriate

         20  for handling malathion.

         21                 So, again, with the contractors, we

         22  relied on them to ensure there was compliance for

         23  City workers.

         24                 The City workers by and large did not

         25  handle much of this material. We had, I believe
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          2  eight Department of Health exterminators out in the

          3  field, they had their own backpacks, and as I

          4  mentioned earlier, they did a limited amount of

          5  spraying, once we turned it over to Clark and the

          6  other contractors, they really handled the majority

          7  of the spraying.

          8                 At that point, the city workers, when

          9  we brought the outside contractors in, transitioned

         10  to applying a larvicide as opposed to an

         11  insecticide, that was the vectilex, and that was

         12  applied in swimming pools and, again, they were

         13  protected. We handed out gloves. One of the first

         14  things we purchased on Saturday when we were buying

         15  all of the malathion and the Scourge, was

         16  respiratory protection. When the Sanitation workers

         17  went into Powell's Cove to do the clean-up on

         18  Sunday, they not only had Tyvek suits, but they had

         19  butyl rubber gloves and respiratory protection.

         20                 So, we did everything possible to

         21  ensure that any city worker would have potential

         22  exposure was well protected.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And I will start

         24  calling my colleagues, but let me just say, as of

         25  this moment, do you have an idea of what the total
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          2  cost for this operation is so far?

          3                 MR. HAUER: As of today it is about $5

          4  million. We are still -- we still have Clark

          5  available, as the need arises, based on the

          6  Department of Health's mosquito surveillance

          7  numbers, and that basically is the number of

          8  mosquitos that are found in traps, if we see

          9  increases anywhere we will do some localized

         10  spraying again. There has been no need, we have been

         11  fortunate. It is the end of the season, the cold

         12  weather has helped us a bit, and the aggressive

         13  program early on has kept the mosquito numbers quite

         14  low, but I would imagine at the end of the day this

         15  will probably have cost about $6 million.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And if between

         17  now and when you need to revisit, there are these

         18  spot -- I don't want to use spraying, or whatever we

         19  intend to do, what is the timetable of notifying so

         20  that people don't get caught seeing something

         21  happening without knowing it.

         22                 MR. HAUER: Yes, if we do any

         23  additional spots or focus spraying, it is going to

         24  be done from 11:00 on, it is going to be done on the

         25  ground by truck, and based on the numbers, if we
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          2  were to get them today, we would give people at

          3  least 24 hours.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

          5  Oddo.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chairman.

          8                 Commissioner, Mr. Hauer, welcome.

          9  Thank you for your efforts to date. Some times in

         10  this town you get the sense that no good deed goes

         11  unpunished, but we appreciate your efforts.

         12                 If you can, walk me through the day

         13  that you learned of the case in Brooklyn and how

         14  that changed your mindset and your approach to how

         15  you would handle it.

         16                 Obviously that had to play some role

         17  in the ultimate decision to expand the spraying, how

         18  much of a role did it play? Did that guarantee, did

         19  that case in particular guarantee that there would

         20  be Citywide spraying?

         21                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Well, let me show

         22  you as a reference the charts behind me, which needs

         23  to be explained a little bit to you.

         24                 We have mentioned in the testimony

         25  that we became aware on September 3rd, we had
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          2  laboratory confirmation from the CDC that we were

          3  dealing with a mosquito-borne virus that was causing

          4  encephalitis that at that time we thought was St.

          5  Louis encephalitis.

          6                 Immediately upon receiving

          7  confirmation of that, that Friday, within hours we

          8  initiated a spraying program in the northern Queens

          9  area, including some neighboring communities in the

         10  South Bronx that by analysis of the map would

         11  demonstrate would likely to be affected. So, that

         12  spray program was regional, it was targeted to areas

         13  that we knew we had human cases, as well as areas

         14  that were in such close proximity that we thought it

         15  was prudent to expand in a modest way the focus. And

         16  in fact, that decision turned out to be a correct

         17  one because we were later to receive a number of

         18  reports of cases that were individuals living in the

         19  South Bronx area, so not waiting for human cases to

         20  get reported was the right public health

         21  intervention.

         22                 This is intended to be a histogram,

         23  you know where the bars should be next to each

         24  other, but it shows you on a week-by-week basis

         25  where we were on August -- on September 3rd when the
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          2  mosquito control program began, and if Dr. Layton

          3  will just be my pointer, we had on this date of

          4  September 3rd only three cases that were confirmed

          5  in the very same day and a few other cases that were

          6  under investigation. And certainly no one here in

          7  the City or in public health would be comfortable

          8  initiating an insecticide spray program without

          9  absolute confirmation in the laboratory that indeed

         10  we were dealing with a pathogen that was in fact

         11  transmitted by mosquitos.

         12                 So, it is also important to point out

         13  that this is now the 40 cases that have been

         14  confirmed in the laboratory and it shows you that as

         15  we have gone on with our very active surveillance

         16  where we literally have been on the phone around the

         17  clock with doctors in every hospital throughout the

         18  City asking them to rack their brains with respect

         19  to cases that they had seen that had any semblance

         20  similarity to what we think are even mild cases,

         21  aseptic meningitis, for example, is very common in

         22  the late summer months and there normally are 50

         23  cases in the month of August that are reported to

         24  us, and yet, some cases of aseptic meningitis indeed

         25  turned out to be brought on by the West Nile-like
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          2  virus.

          3                 So, we did a very extensive

          4  seven-day-a-week, 24-hour, we haven't really

          5  completed this yet, but indeed we learned of other

          6  cases. So, this is in retrospect where we have

          7  learned more about the cases and their onset, but

          8  from the point that we initiated our control program

          9  on September 3rd, and then learning six days later

         10  that an 80-year-old gentleman in the Borough Park

         11  section of Brooklyn indeed also was laboratory

         12  confirmed for what we knew was a mosquito-borne

         13  virus which we thought was SLE at the time. We knew

         14  that looking at the geography we could not be

         15  comfortable with only a targeted approach, there was

         16  reason to think that we were dealing with a Citywide

         17  outbreak and that it was necessary to have a

         18  Citywide controlled measure. And that decision I

         19  feel today is strongly supported by the fact that

         20  since that occurred, even those few cases that have

         21  been reported to us, since the interventions we made

         22  the incubation period for the virus itself predates

         23  that spray, so that we at this moment are not aware

         24  of any case that has been contracted due to an

         25  exposure to a mosquito carrying this virus before
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          2  New York City intervened assertively and

          3  aggressively as we have to address this issue.

          4                 So, we are continuing to collect

          5  cases, we are continuing to carry out very active

          6  surveillance, but, yes, that identification of an

          7  individual in Brooklyn who is not in that immediate

          8  northern Queens hot zone, led us to feel we had to

          9  initiate a citywide mosquito control program.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: No cases on

         11  Staten Island, aside from the high Narrazano Bridge

         12  toll, why haven't the mosquitos come to my home

         13  borough?

         14                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Well, we don't

         15  really know. I mean, we have been very active in our

         16  surveillance, we have ruled out, you know, many

         17  cases -- we actually initiated a clinical

         18  surveillance program which allowed us to make

         19  estimates of how probably cases that were reported

         20  to us may end up being laboratory positive, and we

         21  have what we consider to be probable, suspect and

         22  low probable categories.

         23                 But indeed, when West Nile-like virus

         24  was identified, we also understood that this is a

         25  viral strain that can produce rather mild cases, so
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          2  that more and more of the individuals that we

          3  initially had assumed were low probability, we would

          4  see more cases that were laboratory confirmed.

          5                 So, this was an approach to

          6  categorization, that the neighboring counties have

          7  been using, and neighboring states as well, and it

          8  still makes sense. But naturally it means that we

          9  have to be vigilant, that even the most mild cases

         10  that don't progress through encephalitis may end up

         11  being, in fact, confirmed through laboratory testing

         12  as West Nile-like.

         13                 There are bird migrations, however,

         14  that more recently we are seeing birds that have

         15  died and dead crows and some other birds as well.

         16  And recently we learned of some birds who tested

         17  positive for West Nile at different locations of the

         18  city.  We are looking at that very closely in

         19  relation to our surveillance of mosquitos, our

         20  trappings of mosquitos. We send the mosquitos to the

         21  CDC and they do analysis that allows us to know

         22  indeed whether the virus was harbored in that

         23  mosquito, and we then put together our human

         24  surveillance, our mosquito and bird monitoring in

         25  order to draw some conclusions with respect to where
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          2  we stand today, and given the fact that we are

          3  probably beginning to see, and the two entomologists

          4  on my right here are true experts, so I have learned

          5  a lot in the past month, but they are really the

          6  experts. You know, we are seeing a migration of

          7  birds from the northeast south, and it is possible

          8  that some of these dead birds actually represent a

          9  kind of a southerly return. The question is whether

         10  the mosquito population even now in Staten Island

         11  could be sufficient that even with a bird there

         12  would be enough during the viremic stage, during the

         13  stage where the bird is actively able to transmit

         14  the infection to the mosquito to pass along to a

         15  human being, whether there is enough activity there

         16  for the kind of amplification of this transfer that

         17  poses a significant risk to people, so we are

         18  watching the situation very closely.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         20  Reed.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair.

         23                 Good afternoon to all of those who

         24  are here testifying.

         25                 It has certainly been an interesting
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          2  morning to try to understand this, and I felt that

          3  the City's response was swift and so I am loathe to

          4  sort of find myself second-guessing, but that is

          5  actually what we are supposed to, not necessarily

          6  second guess, but we are supposed to be reviewing

          7  things, and that is what we get paid to do on this

          8  end, and evaluate things so we learn hopefully for

          9  the future.

         10                 So, I know that the City went out of

         11  its way to let the elected officials know what was

         12  happening, I remember sitting with all of you in the

         13  middle of an afternoon, it was a Friday, to be told

         14  what was going on, and the phone calls to both the

         15  office and my home I think were appropriate because

         16  we were trying to not be partisan or adversarial in

         17  responding to this.

         18                 So, to some extent I feel that we

         19  all, as elected officials, have some responsibility

         20  for the actions that we took here.

         21                 But I have listened now to at least

         22  four recitations of the dates and the history of

         23  this, I think we could all stipulate as to what day

         24  the birds died and the first case of encephalitis,

         25  and I don't mean to make light of the seriousness of

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            152

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  where we were at.

          3                 The question that seems to be the

          4  most pressing, as I heard the testimony from people

          5  prior to your being here, but I know you had people

          6  listening in to it, is why did we choose to use this

          7  malathion, which I believe now we are being told has

          8  the potential for being very hazardous and if it

          9  breaks down and comes into two different components,

         10  and I am like my colleague over here, I am not even

         11  going to attempt to try to step into -- maybe I

         12  shouldn't say step into -- to move into the area of

         13  this. But we have heard the testimony, I am sure you

         14  have, they tell me that in different states that we

         15  have outlawed the use of malathion, that there is

         16  all sorts of problems, that we certainly need to

         17  know afterwards that we use it that we should wash

         18  our clothes and we should do all of these things,

         19  and the Mayor, I don't think he personally decided

         20  to use malathion, who knows maybe he did, but where

         21  there is no other choices of chemicals to use, are

         22  you saying that the evidence that was presented to

         23  us earlier is not true? That this in fact is not a

         24  harmful chemical, and that the issues or storage

         25  about whether it reaches a certain temperature and
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          2  then it breaks down are erroneous, and immaterial

          3  and unimportant?

          4                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: No. What I heard

          5  back there, there were a lot of inaccuracies, and I

          6  am going to ask the expert panel to join me in kind

          7  of giving you information, both in terms of the

          8  national and state perspective on the use of

          9  insecticides, malathion in particular, you know,

         10  Jerry's perspective from Emergency Management, as

         11  well as from poison control as a clinical

         12  toxicologies what we understand to be the health

         13  risks and what we have learned about this with

         14  respect to our application of malathion in New York

         15  City thus far. So, this may be a long answer but it

         16  deserves that kind of attention.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And as you speak,

         18  just identify yourself and who you represent,

         19  because we forget sometimes whether it is the state

         20  or the CDC.

         21                 DR. NASCI: I am Roger Nasci, with the

         22  Centers for Disease Control.

         23                 The CDC's position on the use of

         24  malathion, Scourge, the resmethrin product or Anvil,

         25  the sumethrin product, has always been that we abide
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          2  strictly by the regulations imposed upon the use of

          3  these chemicals by the Environmental Protection

          4  Agency.

          5                 These chemicals, these compounds are

          6  specifically labeled for use in mosquito control,

          7  and they have, despite what you may have heard

          8  earlier, a very long, very safe track record.

          9                 Now, safety has often been tossed

         10  around here as an absolute term, nothing is

         11  absolutely safe.

         12                 The aspirin that was mentioned by one

         13  of the earlier speakers can kill you in an overdose.

         14  The toxicity is related to the dosage that you are

         15  experiencing. These compounds applied in the ULV

         16  formulations, applied appropriately by

         17  professionals, have negligible health risks, and

         18  balancing the use of malathion or the other

         19  compounds with what we interpreted as a significant

         20  health risk to a City of seven and a half million

         21  people, the risk benefit, the decision was firmly in

         22  favor of using the adulticide compounds that were

         23  used.

         24                 The reason that these compounds were

         25  used in some places, where malathion was used and
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          2  some of the other compounds were used in other

          3  areas, was purely a matter of logistics. The

          4  decision was made with Mr. Hauer's office. The area

          5  needed to be covered very quickly to compliment the

          6  personal protection measures that were being put out

          7  to reduce human risk of exposure to these infected

          8  mosquitos. Some of the applicators were set up to

          9  spray malathion. These are guys that are certified

         10  that are experienced applicators. Others were

         11  experienced in applying Anvil, the synthetic

         12  pyrethroid product. It didn't seem prudent to us to

         13  ask an applicator who had a good track record and

         14  good experience to spraying an approved affected

         15  compound to switch materials in midstream, in the

         16  middle of an epidemic.

         17                 So, using the resources and the

         18  assets that we had on hand, the decision as made to

         19  move forward, and deal with the public education

         20  issues on educating about several compounds rather

         21  than just moving with one. I hope that answers your

         22  question.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Do you want to

         24  respond before I do?

         25                 MR. HAUER: Sure.
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          2                 The decision to use malathion was not

          3  made lightly. As I mentioned earlier in my response,

          4  we consulted with a number of people, including the

          5  state toxicologist, our own Dr. Bob Hoffman, who is

          6  the director of the Poison Control Center here in

          7  New York City, the State Environmental Fish and

          8  Wildlife people were involved. We had five or six

          9  people in our first meeting from the State DEC

         10  addressing this issue. We also talked to Nassau and

         11  Suffolk Counties. Suffolk County uses malathion on a

         12  regular basis. We found that New Jersey uses it on a

         13  regular basis. We looked at the options, the

         14  availability, and as Roger said, the people that

         15  were available to spray it, and we felt that based

         16  on the discussions we had, particularly when used by

         17  somebody who was a professional who did this on a

         18  regular basis who had excellent quality control of

         19  the volume being applied, that it was an appropriate

         20  use of malathion, that the volumes, and, again, just

         21  to put it in perspective, we used about three ounces

         22  per acre, probably about the size of this cup was

         23  used per acre. You know, I think that we have to

         24  keep in perspective the hysteria that you here on

         25  this issue and look at real science and look at
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          2  unbiased science, as opposed to some of the

          3  testimony you have heard earlier.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Again, I am

          5  trying to be cautious in just what you said about

          6  the alarmist elements of this, but we have heard

          7  things, I think people have a right to ask these

          8  questions.

          9                 Part of my question is, so while we

         10  are looking at this and if this situation were to

         11  repeat itself again, would this be the same choices

         12  it will use? Are there other chemicals that might be

         13  alternatives that we have? And then I have one last

         14  brief question for the Commissioner.

         15                 MR. HAUER: If we had an outbreak of

         16  the type we just went through with the same data we

         17  had and an evolving situation with no known

         18  end-point where we did not know how many people were

         19  potentially infected and we knew that the vector was

         20  mosquitos, and we knew that we had a large mosquito

         21  population that we had to deal with, the decision

         22  would be the same.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: The use of this

         24  particular chemical as opposed to something else?

         25                 MR. HAUER: Absolutely. Absolutely.
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          2                 And we did use other chemicals as we

          3  brought in other contractors. One of the contractors

          4  who did the ground spraying used resmethrin on the

          5  ground as opposed to malathion. That was what they

          6  were used to using and that was the choice for

          7  ground spraying.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Lastly, if I

          9  may, Mr. Chair?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Can I ask before

         11  you ask your second question?

         12                 Commissioner Cohen, I just want to

         13  make sure that I understood the question and I got

         14  some answers, but I want to make sure that your

         15  question is properly put in its place.

         16                 While ultimately the ultimate

         17  decision rests with the Mayor, it was based upon he

         18  was the one that made the decision after you all

         19  gave him, and I want to make sure I understand

         20  because while I hear CBC saying that in consultation

         21  you had no objection, I believe the State Department

         22  of Health, which I think was the other part, and you

         23  are talking about the State Environmental

         24  Protection, we didn't hear from the state, but I

         25  want to make sure I understand it correctly, and
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          2  that is, that all the regulating agencies that

          3  oversee the municipality, in this case the City of

          4  New York, allowed or gave the green light before the

          5  actual implementation. And ultimately I guess,

          6  Jerry, you had to go, and Neal Cohen, to the Mayor,

          7  present it and get the approval to move forward; is

          8  that it? I am just trying to understand the

          9  question.

         10                 MR. HAUER: One of the things that we

         11  did is we brought all of the appropriate agencies

         12  together and looked at the way to get this done

         13  quickly.

         14                 Now, you have to keep in mind that

         15  the first round of spraying we originally thought

         16  would be in what was considered the hot zone, that

         17  area of Queens near Powell's Cove, and in the South

         18  Bronx. The Soundview area south of the Bruckner,

         19  from Ferry Point Park over to Soundview Park.

         20                 We talked to Dr. White, we got some

         21  help from Nassau and Suffolk County, and in a

         22  meeting we had on the bus the decision was made to

         23  go ahead and use malathion.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Fine. Again, I

         25  want to make sure I understand it correctly.
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          2                 Before you said go ahead, meaning the

          3  state, I am sure you had to get a sign-off from Dr.

          4  Novella, who is the State Commissioner of Health; is

          5  that fair to say? Or you had to go somewhere. I

          6  mean, I understand that they spoke to you, but I

          7  don't think you had the authority to say yes or no,

          8  you have to get it from somewhere else. That is what

          9  I am trying to get to, the layers.

         10                 MR. HAUER: This is an approved

         11  compound. There doesn't need to be approval. We

         12  could use this as needed. This is an approved

         13  chemical for this use. It is labeled for this use.

         14  We don't have to go t the State Department of

         15  Health, or the State DEC. We brought the State DEC

         16  in to ensure that we were doing it properly. Dr.

         17  White was already involved in the process because he

         18  was involved in helping us try to understand the

         19  magnitude of the problem, from the mosquito

         20  perspective, and an entobologist.

         21                 Dennis, did you want to --

         22                 MR. WHITE: Yes. The regulatory aspect

         23  for chemicals, pesticides in New York State, are

         24  regulated by the New York State Department of

         25  Environmental Conservation, not by Health.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I understand

          3  that.

          4                 MR. WHITE: I was providing the

          5  consultation on the entomologic the virus needs but

          6  DEC was the one that was looking --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I think the point

          8  I am trying to make is that even though now I hear

          9  that you really need not turn to the state, the

         10  federal government, there are certain in-place

         11  conditions, in this case this particular one, you

         12  can use it, but there are certain conditions that

         13  you have to, guidelines is it? And since it is a

         14  different agency, while you need not consult in an

         15  emergency, there had to be some kind of contact,

         16  wasn't there?

         17                 MR. HAUER: In fact, Mr. Chairman, I

         18  mentioned that earlier. We called State DEC. I

         19  called them early on in the process and they sent

         20  five people down.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And you informed

         22  them that you were going to use this particular

         23  chemical?

         24                 MR. HAUER: We had them as part of the

         25  decision process because we were concerned about how
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          2  we would move forward in the use of these chemicals

          3  because the City had never done this type of program

          4  before where we had wide spread, both aerial and

          5  ground application, we wanted to make sure we did it

          6  in the safest manner possible and we wanted to make

          7  sure we complied with all state and federal laws.

          8                 So, Captain Terry Rubela from State

          9  DEC responded to the scene, was there by about 1:30

         10  on Friday, September 3rd. I asked Terry to get us

         11  some expertise from State DEC. He brought down

         12  toxicologists, fish and wildlife people, people

         13  familiar with application, widespread application of

         14  insecticides, and they assisted us in this and they

         15  were actually quite helpful and we are very grateful

         16  for that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. So, the

         18  bottom line is, although you chose, and I don't mean

         19  you individually, but the Administration chose to

         20  use this particular method, however, the question is

         21  there was consultation, even though you need not,

         22  the regulatory, both state and federal --

         23                 MR. HAUER: Absolutely.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That is why I

         25  wanted to make sure that I understand the question.
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          2                 Council Member Reed.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Do I understand

          4  then that you, Commissioner Cohen I guess, would

          5  take exception to the points that were raised by the

          6  previous panel of people who were testifying about

          7  the dangerous elements of malathion, as well as when

          8  it breaks down, that you would just disagree with

          9  that science?

         10                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: I did not hear

         11  the testimony. I am not going to rebut item by item.

         12  I do believe that we carried out an analysis of the

         13  historical application of malathion for mosquito

         14  control, in those concentrations that are EPA

         15  approved, and the preponderance of evidence is that

         16  there only negligible health risks associated with

         17  the application of this insecticide, that by warning

         18  the public to use precaution, such as staying inside

         19  and closing windows, we were addressing the

         20  potential response that certainly and relatively

         21  small number of individuals, given the larger

         22  population, who might be particularly sensitive to

         23  these chemicals would have, that could pose some

         24  health risk to them.

         25                 So, I am not here to minimize that in
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          2  any individual who might be here this afternoon, who

          3  might come before you and say they had some adverse

          4  health response to what they believe was the spray.

          5  I am not here to say that that didn't occur. I am

          6  saying that given the large populous in New York

          7  City, and what we knew of the profile of the health

          8  risks associated with this insecticide, the warnings

          9  that we gave and the applications that were used,

         10  that were totally in compliance with EPA standards

         11  regulated and overseen by DEC, appeared to clearly

         12  indicate that that was a choice that was reasonable

         13  and appropriate, given the health crisis that we

         14  were in at that time. If you want to -- in fact, I

         15  would like Dr. Hoffman, because I know that you have

         16  heard things about the dangers of the chemicals, and

         17  Dr. Hoffman is our lead toxicologist in New York

         18  City, and if you would like, he can explain to you

         19  further some of the ways in which human beings do

         20  respond, and put that in perspective with regard to

         21  overall health risks to larger communities.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: That would be up

         23  to the Chair.

         24                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Okay.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: My last
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          2  question. You said that the mosquito population, we

          3  recognized that because of these efforts we have had

          4  a vast reduction in the mosquito population.

          5                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: It appears to be

          6  so, based upon the relatively small numbers of

          7  mosquitos that we are seeing in traps that had been

          8  collected since the spraying campaign was initiated.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So, these are

         10  traps that we had out there previously that we could

         11  take a look at and say we have this many mosquitos

         12  under normal circumstances and now we have sprayed.

         13  I am just trying to understand, how do we know that

         14  we killed all of the mosquitos or 80 percent of them

         15  or 90 percent? Other than the cold weather and they

         16  went away, how can we document this?

         17                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Well, clearly we

         18  had a very expanded application of traps throughout

         19  the City once this initiative began. So, we don't

         20  necessarily have baselines for those areas.

         21                 We did have traps in a number of

         22  locations prior to the campaign. But largely on the

         23  basis of expectable mosquito densities for an urban

         24  area such as ours, our entomologist experts have

         25  advised us that it appears that we have made
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          2  significant progress in reducing the density of

          3  mosquitos, the population of mosquitos in New York

          4  City and this was not a result in the changing

          5  weather conditions because this reduction began to

          6  be noticed several weeks ago.

          7                 Indeed, warm days you know appears to

          8  allow a rebound and we have days where we see more

          9  mosquitos and we look at that with respect to the

         10  potential risks of having mosquitos at this time,

         11  given the slower replication of viruses, whether it

         12  gets cold, given the evidence we have with respect

         13  to new human cases that are reported. So, that we

         14  are being very cautious and at the same time

         15  vigilant with respect to making any decisions of

         16  further spraying.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you.

         18                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Council Member

         20  Espada.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Thank you, Mr.

         22  Chair.

         23                 I just wanted to quickly go back to

         24  something that the gentleman from the CBC had

         25  mentioned. As you answered the question that my
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          2  colleague gave you a second ago, a couple of minutes

          3  ago rather, one of the things you said was

          4  apparently there was some kind of discussion about

          5  whether to change the type of pesticide to be used,

          6  that there was a determination not to use it in

          7  midstream.

          8                 My question is if there was no

          9  concern, why would that conversation happen? And

         10  would that change at all dealing with future

         11  spraying in this area?

         12                 DR. NASCI: To answer your first

         13  question, the reason that the discussion occurred at

         14  all was because we knew we faced a very large public

         15  education program, to get people in the City aware

         16  of the spray program, what it meant and how it may

         17  affect them.

         18                 In other parts of the country, where

         19  mosquito control is a way of life, if you visit the

         20  Jersey shore or you go out to Long Island or you

         21  visit Florida, mosquito control is an expected way

         22  of life. The public education program that would

         23  need to go on, and an acceleration of that program,

         24  would be very marginal. We are dealing with a

         25  population who is essentially naive to mosquito
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          2  control, and we knew that the exposure to one

          3  compound would mean a difficult public education

          4  program. Exposure to two compounds, even though they

          5  both were approved by EPA, both were for negligible

          6  health and environmental affects, would at least

          7  double the effort, and that was the only reason the

          8  discussion ever occurred, whether or not to try and

          9  switch to one compound over the use of two.

         10                 You second question was?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Why

         12  specifically even entertaining a second one, if

         13  malathion is so effective and completely and totally

         14  safe, why would there even be a conversation about

         15  possibly entertaining another one?

         16                 MR. HAUER: One of the reasons a

         17  discussion came up is because we had three different

         18  contractors in, and because we had three contractors

         19  and because the Agroaders' folks used malathion by

         20  air, Northwalk Helicopters used malathion by air,

         21  and Clark tended to use resmethrin on the ground, we

         22  looked at all of our options and the decision was

         23  made to go forward on the track we were on, rather

         24  than try and confuse things even further, as Dr.

         25  Nasci said.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: And would

          3  this, having heard testimony that we have heard and

          4  all of the information that we have gotten about

          5  this, would this be a pesticide that the City of New

          6  York would be interested in continuing to use in the

          7  future to cut down on mosquitos?

          8                 MR. HAUER: This is an approved

          9  mosquito control agent. There is no question about

         10  that.

         11                 You can buy malathion in a hardware

         12  store for use at home, and as long as you use it

         13  based on the recommended use, the labeling and the

         14  quality control of the application, it complies with

         15  all federal and state guidelines. It is clearly one

         16  of the agents we would look at for the future,

         17  depending on the program we put in place for the

         18  spring, we will look at all of the agents that are

         19  available, including malathion.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Totally on a

         21  separate front now, how many -- do we have any idea

         22  of the percentage of mosquitos that have been

         23  captured that were carrying the West Nile-like

         24  virus?

         25                 DR. NASCI: I believe so far in
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          2  collections in the City there are eight isolets of

          3  virus from Culex mosquitos that we have collected.

          4  We are still in the process of determining what the

          5  infection rate was, but it does appear that it was

          6  higher than the one per thousand that we are

          7  anticipated we would find in a St. Louis

          8  encephalitis epidemic.

          9                 This is a statistical problem. When

         10  we get all the samples analyzed from all of the

         11  areas we will have a better idea. But we are in the

         12  process of calculating what the infection rate was

         13  of mosquitos in different regions of the City.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: And the same

         15  or but different with birds?

         16                 DR. NASCI: The bird collection is

         17  being done more on a qualitative basis. Dead birds

         18  are being collected and sent to the State Wildlife

         19  Pathologist where they are being triaged. By that I

         20  mean they are doing a gross pathology examination,

         21  and only those birds that meet certain pathological

         22  criteria have certain histological signs, are then

         23  sent along for virus isolation because the

         24  experience that we have already in this outbreak is

         25  that those that do not show encephalitic signs
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          2  generally don't produce the virus.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER ESPADA: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I was tempted to

          5  say the person who started it all, but in fairness

          6  to him, he is like me. Let me just call upon then

          7  the Council Member of the targeted area where the

          8  command post was started, which was the first area,

          9  Council Member Abel.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chair.

         12                 Actually most of my questions have

         13  been asked already, that is what happens when you go

         14  last. But one thing, we have talked about what has

         15  happened in the past now and what we have done all

         16  summer, Dr. Cohen, while St. Louis and West Nile

         17  encephalitis is all new to us, encephalitis itself

         18  certainly is not and we have seen many cases in the

         19  City in the past. What is the game plan for

         20  following up after this outbreak with the people

         21  that survived, and also going back to other cases

         22  that we have had in the past, and remedies thereof,

         23  including short and long-term care, if so needed?

         24                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Well, of course

         25  every single individual who has received the
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          2  diagnosis of this virus has been treated, in almost

          3  every case in a hospital facility, with a physician.

          4                 The Department of Health has been in

          5  close contact with the physicians on a daily basis.

          6  In fact, we call those individual doctors who were

          7  treating individuals who were not yet released from

          8  the hospital on a daily basis in order to get

          9  updated information with regard to their status, and

         10  it is our impression that the vast majority of

         11  individuals who have been exposed to the virus who

         12  were ill and hospitalized are in stages of recovery.

         13  And you know from the community survey that we just

         14  completed with a great deal of cooperation from your

         15  constituents in Northern Queens, we hope to learn

         16  some very significant information with respect to

         17  potential protective factors, as well as risk

         18  factors, and some of the even clinical signs and

         19  symptoms of individuals who had such mild response

         20  to this virus, that they didn't come to the

         21  attention of the medical community so that going

         22  forward we may be able to put in place an early

         23  warning sign surveillance program to make sure that

         24  if there were to be a recurrence of this virus, we

         25  would have the ability to identify individuals who
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          2  would not even meet the threshold that we had set up

          3  for more severe cases.

          4                 We are establishing an interagency

          5  work group to look very closely at how a number of

          6  City agencies cooperatively and collaboratively can

          7  contribute to address the potential for

          8  mosquito-born illness in the next spring and summer.

          9  We certainly plan to have a very comprehensive

         10  program in place and we would use the evidence that

         11  we received about the significance of the virus'

         12  impact in the avian bird population to allow us to

         13  take advantage of the potential sentinel value of

         14  monitoring and tracking its impact in the bird

         15  population throughout the year so that we may be

         16  able to determine whether we have evidence of the

         17  virus reoccurring or re-emerging in this region, as

         18  well as very enhanced mosquito trapping and mosquito

         19  analysis of mosquitos for a variety of arboviruses

         20  that even those of course that have not appeared in

         21  this region before.

         22                 So, I think that all of the

         23  components of a very comprehensive program are what

         24  we are putting together, and our partners at the

         25  state and federal level are truly working closely
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          2  with us to support our efforts and make sure that we

          3  have a program that is first rate.

          4                 MR. WHITE: Mr. Abel, if I may? My

          5  name is Dennis White, from the New York State Health

          6  Department, and I would like to expand on

          7  Commissioner Cohen's answer.

          8                 We have an arthropod-borne disease

          9  program that has been in existence since 1966, and

         10  we work with municipalities across the state for

         11  vector-borne disease issues, not only in helping to

         12  establish surveillance systems and control systems,

         13  but we can work with them. There are funding

         14  mechanisms.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Is that what you

         16  call the State Mosquito Surveillance Funds?

         17                 MR. WHITE: I have never heard of it

         18  in those terms but it probably could be, yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         20                 MR. WHITE: Yes.

         21                 We have through Article 6 of the

         22  Public Health Law a mechanism to reimburse

         23  municipalities for part of the cost of addressing a

         24  public health threat borne by either ticks or

         25  mosquitos.
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          2                 In recent years, New York City has

          3  witnessed cases of malaria, Rocky Mountain Spotted

          4  Fever, locally-acquired Lyme Disease, and now

          5  West Nile Encephalitis virus. It appears that there

          6  is a mechanism that we can help support the City,

          7  working very closely with the City staff, with the

          8  Centers for Disease Control and coming up with a

          9  surveillance system that will satisfy the needs of

         10  the City for all of these purposes to include

         11  mosquito surveillance, both larvae and adults,

         12  mechanisms to remove mosquito breeding areas so that

         13  we don't necessarily have to depend on chemicals,

         14  but also work with physical means of removing those

         15  habitats, working to establish avian surveillance

         16  systems so that sentinel chickens or some similar

         17  assays to determine whether the virus is present in

         18  a non-human population prior to human exposure,

         19  setting up an aggressive education program of making

         20  people aware of behavior modifications and personal

         21  protection measures that can be taken, having a

         22  registry for complaints or issues that these are

         23  logged into a system and can be responded

         24  accordingly.

         25                 If there are needs for vector control
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          2  efforts, whether you do that through internal assets

          3  or through a contractual basis, at least you have

          4  the foresight to work with those systems, whether it

          5  was consultation or program staff to set up the

          6  equipment and/or chemicals that you would need ahead

          7  of time so that it is not just a very rapid response

          8  that needed in a crisis but a very well planned

          9  approach toward whatever you may detect to this more

         10  sensitive surveillance system.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: This is all in

         12  the future in terms of preventing the disease from

         13  coming back. And that is fine, that is great,

         14  because that solves the whole separate bunch of

         15  other questions.

         16                 But I think the thrust of what I was

         17  asking was for those individuals now that have

         18  contracted the disease and survived, is there going

         19  to be short-term, long-term follow-up to see what

         20  happens with them, with their bodies? And also,

         21  people who have had the disease in the years prior

         22  to this that may need something beyond home care.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Which might be

         24  long-term care.

         25                 MR. WHITE: You are asking very astute
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          2  questions, and you can imagine the role of all

          3  several health agencies in the country right now,

          4  the federal, state municipal efforts trying to

          5  answer and ask in fact those very questions.

          6                 We are hoping, I understand CDC may

          7  be looking at developing a comprehensive planning

          8  meeting to address those questions, both from human

          9  vector and host concerns, what has happened? What

         10  took place? How did it take place? Where do we need

         11  to go from here to address those very questions? We

         12  don't know many of the answers of the questions that

         13  haven't even been asked yet. We don't even know what

         14  questions to ask, but we are trying to get to that

         15  point, and those are very, very important questions

         16  that I think as we look at human cases down the

         17  road, long-term retrospective reviews, serologic

         18  reviews, symptom studies, these will all be

         19  developed by epidemiologists on your staff.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: Maybe we can go

         21  back to cases that we already have in years' past --

         22                 MR. WHITE: Absolutely.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: And that might

         24  open it up.

         25                 MR. WHITE: Absolutely.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ABEL: So, without

          3  developing this any further. Possibly when you get

          4  to those questions or answers you can share it with

          5  the chair and I am sure he will share it with me.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me go back to

          8  some of the questions, and let me start with you,

          9  Neal, Commissioner Cohen.

         10                 We know that there are people who

         11  would say that the spray or what we used is harmful,

         12  okay? And of course, Jerry, you say, or you said

         13  that that may be so, but it is one of those that you

         14  can use, approved to be used.

         15                 So, Dr. Cohen, as the Commissioner of

         16  Health, the chief health officer of the City, have

         17  you asked area hospitals to report any adverse

         18  affect of the spraying to the Department of Health?

         19                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: We have indeed

         20  been very concerned with the issue. We have been

         21  looking at data that is available to us, both in

         22  terms --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Listen to my

         24  question, sir.

         25                 The question is, have you, through a
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          2  memorandum, as the Commissioner of Health of the

          3  City, which is not only the public sector, but as

          4  Health Commissioner you also, and I know you have

          5  done with the voluntary sector, because that is how

          6  you started saying you collected or at least you

          7  informed them. My question is very simple, sir, and

          8  then walk me through how you monitor.

          9                 The question is, have you, as the

         10  Commissioner of Health, sent out a directive

         11  informing all area hospitals, whether public or

         12  voluntary, to report to your agency any adverse

         13  affect after the spray which people might tend to

         14  perceive to be part of the spray, and that is my

         15  question.

         16                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: We have indeed,

         17  we have Public Health Alerts that go to all of the

         18  hospitals, we have I think 11 at this point that --

         19  six, I am sorry. We will get the exact number, there

         20  are at least six. And we have repeatedly kept the

         21  health community, the medical community updated on

         22  the outbreak, six alerts over time that we have

         23  sent. As we get new information, as we talk about

         24  what the spraying will be with the mosquito control

         25  program, what the side affects are known to be, if
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          2  at all, so we have had a very active dialogue.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Those are alerts,

          4  I understand that.

          5                 My question is, in one of those

          6  alerts and I would like to get a copy of all six,

          7  was one of those alerts says (sic), after I tell you

          8  all of this of what can be, what might be, all of

          9  this, you -- well, for the public side you can

         10  simply say as Health Commissioner I want you to do

         11  it. On the voluntary side, the private sector side,

         12  you would say because we are attempting to deal with

         13  an emergency and we have a lot of unknowns, I urge

         14  you, I encourage you, I ask you to submit to the

         15  Department of Health any information, any data that

         16  may be attributed to after the spray, I think that

         17  is what I am looking for. And if you don't, just

         18  simply say no. There is nothing wrong with that.

         19                 Do you? Yes or no?

         20                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: I will provide

         21  you with all of the alerts, and we will be very

         22  clear about --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Folks, please.

         24                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Because I don't

         25  want to misspeak at this moment, Chairman Robles.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            181

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I understand

          3  that.

          4                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: The Alerts are

          5  very comprehensive, and they address the spray

          6  program, and I don't want to interpret them very

          7  differently from what you would interpret them.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, since

          9  apparently you are, or you have something in place

         10  that you had your staff going over, monitoring, I

         11  think that is what you just said, have you thus far,

         12  after the spraying, do you have some kind of data

         13  that indicates anything, i.e., healthwise, and the

         14  reaction after the spray?

         15                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes, of course.

         16  And we are still collecting it.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Fine.

         18                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: We haven't come

         19  to the end of the day with respect to our vigilance,

         20  both in terms of 911 data, hospitalizations,

         21  emergency room visits, poison control center, we are

         22  certainly pulling that all together in order to have

         23  a very clear and objective way of looking at the

         24  health issues.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And I want to be
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          2  clear that, from the beginning until now, and my

          3  colleagues, even when they questioned I didn't hear

          4  one say that they did not get the information, so I

          5  just want to be clear.

          6                 So, in this collaboration that you

          7  did, I know for myself it was the day, it was the

          8  first day I came back from Puerto Rico, my vacation,

          9  and then I had to meet you at College Point to be

         10  briefed, and since that time there has been, I

         11  believe, an honest attempt on both sides to not so

         12  much disagree, but try to ask the questions that we

         13  don't know, so that as we attempt to work with you,

         14  I think Council Member Reed put it clearly, we, too,

         15  have a responsibility as elected officials that

         16  sometimes it is not popular, but it is right. And so

         17  in that spirit, can you provide us with a

         18  preliminary report of that data so that we can

         19  perhaps, and I know in these briefings that every so

         20  often you call me in in the Council, maybe we can

         21  discuss this or have a better idea of it; is that

         22  possible?

         23                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Of course.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, one of the

         25  panelists suggested, and I think it was Dr.
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          2  Friedman, when I asked him about a wishlist, and let

          3  me say for the record, too, you, Jerry, and you,

          4  Neal, you both have consistently said to me, as the

          5  Chairman of this Committee, because I have asked the

          6  question over and over, and you said that pretty

          7  soon within the next week or two you will be coming

          8  to us in what you would like to see us look at with

          9  you so we can address the future. We can address

         10  what needs to be done after the winter and in this

         11  case, this fiscal year, particularly since I think

         12  you said around April or thereabouts. So, for the

         13  record, this is not something new that you are going

         14  to say, you have said it I think from the first day

         15  you and I met, that was the first thing I said to

         16  you and you made a commitment, so I just want to be

         17  clear, okay? Because sometimes we are told things

         18  that maybe the public doesn't know, but they are

         19  things that we have to keep to ourselves, but now

         20  since we have this hearing, let's put it out.

         21                 They suggested that one of the things

         22  we should do is the integrated pest management

         23  program, Commissioner Cohen, do you have an IPM

         24  program currently within your agency?

         25                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: We have a program
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          2  for pest management.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: When you say pest

          4  management, I am sorry, because I am really from

          5  Brooklyn and I am not an expert. What do you mean by

          6  pest management, because it could mean rodents, it

          7  could be --

          8                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes, like the

          9  combination, it is a number of vermin, mosquitos,

         10  ticks, you know, we do that, and we do feel strongly

         11  that an integrated pest management approach is a

         12  good way to do this because just using, you know,

         13  just complaint driven responses leave something to

         14  be desired with respect to getting to the underlying

         15  causes of infestation of any kind. And this involves

         16  the necessity to have more than one agency working

         17  closely to deal with things that each of us have

         18  purview over so that we can collectively have a

         19  better result than any one agency would on its own.

         20                 And that is something we have been

         21  doing but we are certainly expanding upon that

         22  model.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Does this also

         24  include public education?

         25                 COMMISSIONER COHEN: Yes, it does.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now, and if you

          3  don't have it now, it's fine, I am assuming that is

          4  going to be coming. Do you have any idea of what

          5  that particular program will cost us?

          6                 MR. HAUER: Mr. Chairman, let me try

          7  and address what we are going to be doing. At this

          8  point we cannot give you a cost.

          9                 We are going to be convening a host

         10  of city agencies within the next week or two,

         11  because as you look at an integrated pest management

         12  program, the one thing that is missing is the word

         13  comprehensive, and we don't want to do this in a

         14  piecemeal fashion for the City.

         15                 One of the sites, or one of the areas

         16  we have found to be particularly problematic is the

         17  Tolman Island DEP facility where we have repeatedly

         18  sprayed because of the mosquitos coming off of the

         19  water treatment pools there.

         20                 As we go about this we are bringing

         21  all of the City agencies in. Dr. Cohen and I are

         22  going to convene a meeting within the next week or

         23  two. We are working on a schedule now for that

         24  meeting and we are going to look at all the

         25  components, because we don't want to do this in a
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          2  piecemeal fashion, we want it to be comprehensive so

          3  that we hit all sources of mosquitos.

          4                 As you know, we have had a problem on

          5  91st Street in Council Member Miller's district. The

          6  problems there appear to be breeding in the sewers,

          7  and we are limited in what we can do in the sewers

          8  because of the wastewater issues. We will be looking

          9  at sewers, we will be looking at stagnant water, we

         10  will be looking at areas where mosquitos can breed,

         11  including City facilities. We will be looking at

         12  tire piles, and we will be looking at both larvicide

         13  and insecticide. So, we will be putting together a

         14  comprehensive program that is not complaint-driven

         15  but catches things before they become big problems.

         16                 As soon as that is in place, we would

         17  be happy to discuss it with you and take care of the

         18  budget for that with you.

         19                 DR. NASCI: I would like to add a

         20  brief comment. This is not something that will be

         21  developed by the City reinventing the wheel, there

         22  are some very good management programs out there

         23  that are IPM driven, Houston Metropolitan Mosquito

         24  Control in Minneapolis, that we have already been in

         25  contact with the directors and put them in contact
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          2  with the City to help manage this program.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me perhaps do

          4  another area, and then of course, I thank you for

          5  all of your patience, but let me just say, I

          6  remember seeing and reading, actually seeing him on

          7  television and reading out it in the newspaper,

          8  where the Borough President of the Bronx made an

          9  allegation that funds were cut from the budget, and

         10  so I immediately asked our Finance people to look at

         11  the facts, and Commissioner Cohen, let me tell you

         12  what my problem is, that we attempted to look at

         13  your budget the way it is right now, and I must tell

         14  you that maybe we should be looking at how we

         15  identify what we are using monies for? Because the

         16  only way I can find anything in your budget, and I

         17  go back from 1998, I mean it actually goes from '91

         18  to '98 is two areas, and correct me if I am wrong,

         19  because I am only using what they gave me, so don't

         20  think I am so smart. In the unit of appropriation

         21  104, it says environmental health services, PS,

         22  means Personal Services, actual spending. And I must

         23  tell you that in Fiscal Year '98 that was about 25,

         24  24 million, 25 million dollars. The problem I have

         25  with that is that it is lumped into a variety of
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          2  things, including environmental emergencies,

          3  complaints generated by the public pest control,

          4  lead poisoning prevention programs are also in

          5  there. But I cannot identify how much of that money

          6  was used for that purpose, and in your evaluating

          7  and knowing whether, you know, things do change,

          8  maybe one year, we get a good, we have a bad year,

          9  how do you do that?

         10                 The other part is your OTPS.

         11  Similarly, under the same bureau or Unit of

         12  Appropriation 114, we have close to $13 million.

         13                 I must also go one more step, which

         14  becomes difficult for me, and since the state is

         15  here, now I understand, and this was taken from the

         16  State Comptroller, the State Comptroller, not the

         17  City, and it gives the impression that there is

         18  state mosquitos surveilling funds by the state that

         19  is given to municipalities. What I did not know is,

         20  first they started by saying to me that you have to

         21  ask for it, and as you notice I kept going like

         22  this, and now I find out that this is a

         23  reimbursement, meaning that the municipality must

         24  put up and then get back. And I must tell you that

         25  there were times when the State fund, actually the
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          2  lowest was in 1992, which -- actually in '93 it was

          3  zero dollars within the state, to the maximum of

          4  1995 of close to $35,000. Yet, in 1998, I see zero.

          5  And I was just going to ask you, how is it that we

          6  ask for it, but now I find out that the way I am

          7  told, and correct me if I am wrong, both you,

          8  Commissioner Cohen and you, sir, is that this

          9  reimbursement is based upon what this City submits

         10  to you as an expenditure, then there is a

         11  reimbursement.

         12                 Now, out of curiosity, what is the

         13  ratio? Because one of the things I find with the

         14  state, we may put up $5 but you only give us back

         15  $2. So, give me the ratio, whether it is worth even

         16  investing to get back $2 when I have to put out $5,

         17  and then if that is the case, I need to work on my

         18  state colleagues to put more money in the budget,

         19  since now this doesn't become anymore a local issue,

         20  no longer a regional issue, as I understood the last

         21  time you and I spoke in consultation, this is now a

         22  national issue. So, I do look forward to this

         23  roundtable discussion on the federal, state and

         24  local, and how much money we are going to get out of

         25  both on the federal level and the state level, and
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          2  then my job is to see that not only do we either

          3  match it, and, you know, these past few years we

          4  have done pretty good, not only the City, but the

          5  State and the federal has done extremely well. Maybe

          6  what we should be doing is not only matching, but

          7  enhancing. And then I turn to the experts again, I

          8  am not an expert, so I rely upon Commissioner Neal

          9  Cohen when he comes before the budget committee or

         10  at least the Health Committee for the budget

         11  process, that we are giving him the resources he

         12  needs and vice versa, Jerry. You know, you may be

         13  with the Mayor's Office on Emergency Management, but

         14  when it comes to health issues, I want you to know

         15  that you have a friend, and I will do whatever I can

         16  to assist you because you are responsible and

         17  actually carrying out and coordinating whatever City

         18  agencies, that we are doing a first class job.

         19                 Having said that, can someone

         20  enlighten me on this scenario?

         21                 MR. HAUER: Yes, Mr. Chairman. First

         22  of all, I appreciate the offer and we certainly will

         23  work with you on this. In 1991, the budget for both

         24  the tick and mosquito program was almost three times

         25  what it was in 1992, and the decline in the programs
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          2  appear to have begun in 1992, and it was only in

          3  1994 and '95 when we started to see significant

          4  increases in the program. Again, the money that is

          5  in these programs is quite modest. The Office of

          6  Management and Budget did break out what the City is

          7  spending, particularly, or strictly for tick and

          8  mosquito programs, and we would be happy to share

          9  that with you, because the numbers that you have on

         10  the environmental health include a host of programs,

         11  including, as you remember, the Mayor put an

         12  additional sum of I believe six or eight-million

         13  dollars into that for the rat control program back

         14  in '98, because of the concerns there.

         15                 So, the Administration has taken

         16  these issues very seriously and has put money back

         17  into these programs consistently over the last five

         18  to six years and in fact we saw a fairly significant

         19  jump between '97 and '98 because of the rat control

         20  program.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I don't want you

         22  to get the wrong impression, I appreciate what you

         23  said. We are not being critical.

         24                 MR. HAUER: Nobody  is saying that.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: When I saw the
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          2  numbers I wanted to get the record straight.

          3                 MR. HAUER: We would be happy to share

          4  the numbers with you that we have to show where the

          5  changes occurred.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good.

          7                 My last question to you, Jerry, is

          8  based upon, and you were not here and maybe one of

          9  your staff persons was not here, and let me also say

         10  that after this I see no more questions, so what I

         11  will ask is, both of you, Jerry, and Neal, is

         12  perhaps leave behind some staff person because we

         13  are going to have testimony --

         14                 MR. HAUER: Sure.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Which things may

         16  come up which I believe you should note and perhaps

         17  then give to us the correct answer, and this is what

         18  we are going to try to do, is to begin to attempt to

         19  set the record straight. Even though when we don't

         20  agree, but that is what the beauty of democracy is

         21  all about.

         22                 MR. HAUER: Understood. We will do

         23  that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Again, the panel

         25  before you mentioned about the chemical used,
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          2  malathion --

          3                 MR. HAUER: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: -- Of how it was

          5  stored, how long and at what temperature. And if I

          6  remember correctly, one of the doctors mentioned

          7  that temperature is important, freezers, whatever it

          8  was. Again, I am not an expert, can you just perhaps

          9  walk me through on, one, how did you store it? For

         10  how long? And at what temperature? And if not, can

         11  you find out for me? At least give to this Committee

         12  the answer to that.

         13                 MR. HAUER: Yes, I don't have that

         14  data with me, obviously, but I will get it and we

         15  will get that to you.

         16                 One of the things that I can assure

         17  you, and one of the things that we focused on is, in

         18  bringing Clark Mosquito Control in to handle most of

         19  the chemicals, along with Agroaders, we were

         20  bringing some people in that used these chemicals on

         21  a regular basis and know how to store them, know how

         22  to monitor them and know how to handle them, so we

         23  did have good quality control. But we will in fact

         24  get that data from Clark and get that to you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, and is it
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          2  also fair to say that hopefully within the next two

          3  weeks you or Neal will be reaching out so that we

          4  can sit and go over what you believe should be the

          5  direction that we should going?

          6                 MR. HAUER: Yes. What we would like to

          7  do is get this interagency meeting together with all

          8  of the City agencies, get focused on the various

          9  options we have and to make sure that we do have a

         10  comprehensive approach and then we would be happy to

         11  brief you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And let me just

         13  say again both to you, CDC, and to you, especially

         14  to you, the Department of Health, please let the

         15  good Commissioner know that, one, I am very proud

         16  because she happens to be born in the home town that

         17  I was born in, Fajardo, Puerto Rico, and it is good

         18  to see fresh blood, and especially her position with

         19  HHC and the homeless and I want to be clear on that

         20  one. So, I want to thank you both for joining the

         21  distinguished City officials, I may get boo'd, but

         22  the fact is I have worked with Jerry and with Neal,

         23  and even when we disagree it is about finding a

         24  common ground.

         25                 To Jerry, and to you, Neal, again,
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          2  that is why I said to the Borough President of

          3  Brooklyn, maybe I may be one of those politicians

          4  that I was accused of being informed and not

          5  sharing, but I must personally thank you both,

          6  because I know from on the first day of that Labor

          7  Day, you personally reached out to me, and the

          8  Mayor's Office, and you, Neal, and I went to College

          9  Point and it was a good experience. I've got to do

         10  that more often, not in terms of emergencies, but

         11  get to really go out to the communities and see the

         12  difference in communities that perhaps are different

         13  but sometimes we have common issues that bring us

         14  together.

         15                 So, on behalf of the Speaker, myself

         16  and members, I want to personally thank you for the

         17  kind of communications and sharing, and we will deal

         18  with the lack of information, or whatever it is, as

         19  we keep working together.

         20                 MR. HAUER: Mr. Chairman, thank you.

         21  We appreciate the opportunity to be here. We do

         22  congratulate you on holding this hearing. It is a

         23  very timely and very important subject, one that we

         24  as the Administration have not taken lightly, and we

         25  look forward to continuing to working with you and

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            196

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  we will maintain an open dialogue as we go forward

          3  on this.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. Thank

          5  you very much.

          6                 Okay, what we are going to do is, the

          7  Counsel to this Committee, Jose Orengo, will call

          8  four people at a time so this way we won't have to

          9  wait for people going back and forth.

         10                 Again, I ask you to identify yourself

         11  for the record, and who you represent. And I ask

         12  that once you hear the beep, I mean I am not going

         13  to cut you off, but there are about close to 50

         14  people that would like to testify and I have no

         15  intention in going anywhere, but we need some

         16  cooperation.

         17                 Having said that, why don't we just

         18  start with the calling. Why don't we just make sure

         19  that all the discussions are outside, please.

         20                 MR. ORENGO: Mr. Gary Null. Laura

         21  Haight. Dr. I. Berlin. The Reverend Joseph Parrish.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         23  much for your patience. If you will do us a favor,

         24  or do me a favor, why don't you go down and

         25  introduce yourselves again for the record because we
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          2  have tapes, not manual. And then I guess ladies

          3  first, we will begin by allowing you to identify

          4  yourself or what group you represent and then to

          5  ahead with your testimony. And if you have testimony

          6  that is prepared, not written, like I see some pads,

          7  please make sure the Sergeant-At-Arms gets it. If it

          8  is just notes, I would appreciate you leaving them

          9  behind because it is awfully hard sometimes on the

         10  tape alone, okay?

         11                 MS. HAIGHT: My name is Laura Haight.

         12  I am Senior Environmental Associate with the New

         13  York Public Interest Research Group.

         14                 MR. NULL: I am Gary Null, Ph.D in

         15  Human Interest and Public Health Science.

         16                 MR. BERLIN: I am Irwin Berlin, I am a

         17  pulmonary physician, who has lived in New York all

         18  of my life, but I am Chief of Pulmonary at St.

         19  Elizabeth Hospital in Elizabeth, New Jersey, and I

         20  represent the American Lung Association.

         21                 REVEREND PARRISH: I am the Reverend

         22  Joseph Parrish, I am rector of St. John's Episcopal

         23  Church in Elizabeth, New Jersey, a resident of

         24  Manhattan, and I invited Dr. Berlin. I am also the

         25  Head of New York, New Jersey Environmental Watch. I
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          2  am a Ph.D, biochemist in medical sciences.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, welcome.

          4                 MS. HAIGHT: First of all, I want to

          5  thank the City Council for holding these very

          6  important hearings and providing us this opportunity

          7  to comment on the spraying.

          8                 I am submitting joint testimony on

          9  behalf of NYPIRG and environmental advocates that

         10  you have received. I am not going to be reading from

         11  it directly, I might read some excerpts and

         12  summarize.

         13                 In addition, I am submitting an

         14  excerpt from a report that our group has put

         15  together last year called Plagued by Pesticides. It

         16  is an analysis of New York City's pesticide use,

         17  dated November '98 which has very good information.

         18                 I direct NYPIRG's pesticide right to

         19  know and reduction initiative, which we conduct

         20  jointly with environmental advocates. NYPIRG and

         21  environmental advocates are New York's leading

         22  statewide environmental advocacy organizations, and

         23  led the successful campaign to secure passage of New

         24  York's landmarked pesticide reporting law in 1996.

         25                 We have used the data that is
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          2  available under that law to campaign for a wide

          3  range of pesticide policy reforms at the state and

          4  local levels, and I think this has been an awakening

          5  experience for many people new to the pesticide

          6  movement that many of the laws that you would think

          7  would be basic rights simply don't exist.

          8                 For instance, we still don't have a

          9  law, a state law on the books that requires

         10  neighbors to get 48 hours advanced notice before

         11  their next door lawn gets sprayed. So there is quite

         12  a long way to go in terms of enacting a sane and

         13  responsible pesticide policy.

         14                 On the local level, there is a lot

         15  that local governments can do. In fact, just last

         16  week the Suffolk County Legislature unanimously

         17  passed a phase-out, a local ordinance to phase out

         18  the county's use of pesticides over the next three

         19  years.

         20                 So, on to my testimony. In the midst

         21  of this crisis of competing health risks, it is

         22  essential to take a step back and view the broader

         23  picture of what this experience can teach us and how

         24  to revoid a repeat of it.

         25                 It is also a good opportunity to look
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          2  more broadly at the City's pest problem, for there

          3  are many of them, and the routine pesticide use here

          4  in New York, which is far greater than most people

          5  realize. In order to devise strategies that deal

          6  with these in a comprehensive, preventative and

          7  least toxic manner.

          8                 There is no foolproof means of

          9  preventing infectious disease outbreaks and exotic

         10  illnesses, and there are likely to be future

         11  occurrences of exotic illnesses here in New York, as

         12  global warming and global travel increase microbe

         13  circulation. We will always be at risk.

         14                 But when faced with similar hazards,

         15  other communities across the country have found that

         16  it is possible to keep such hazards in check,

         17  without the wholesale pesticide exposure that New

         18  York City has resorted to in this current outbreak.

         19                 In Houston, Los Angeles, St. Louis

         20  and other areas where mosquito-borne diseases are

         21  more common, widespread aerial spraying of mosquitos

         22  with adulticides rarely, if ever, occurs.

         23                 Closer to home, Nassau and Suffolk

         24  County has very good mosquito control programs, but

         25  if the preventative measures they employ are not
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          2  consistently followed region-wide, everyone remains

          3  at risk.

          4                 It is essential to implement such

          5  preventive measures for five basic reasons: The

          6  exposure of pesticides to humans is not safe. We are

          7  not prepared to say that the risks are negligible,

          8  and it is not safe for the environment to have this

          9  dousing of pesticides.

         10                 There are certainly more effective

         11  ways of controlling mosquitos, through a range of

         12  non-toxic and less toxic measures. There is far less

         13  expense when you implement prevention programs. As I

         14  will mention later, I interviewed the head of the

         15  Harris County Mosquito Control Division in Houston

         16  right after New York City made the decision and

         17  learned that Houston stopped aerial spraying six

         18  years ago, and I asked why, and he said because

         19  their budget was cut by a million dollars.

         20                 So, Houston actually now has a model

         21  program which everyone is looking to with a lot of

         22  good things that New York City could emulate, and

         23  they are also saving money. I think the $6 million

         24  that will have been spent on this will have been --

         25  we would have saved a lot more money if we would
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          2  have used prudent control measures in the first

          3  place.

          4                 Finally, by using preventative

          5  strategies it is more effective at controlling the

          6  mosquitos, and that saves lives. It is shameful that

          7  four people and possibly more died because of this

          8  virus when had there been more effective monitoring

          9  and control in the first place this would not have

         10  happened.

         11                 In Houston they are able to identify

         12  cases of St. Louis Encephalitis a month before it

         13  gets into human populations. In New York City we are

         14  dealing with a situation where we only realize we

         15  had a potentially deadly virus on our hands a month

         16  after humans came down with it.

         17                 So, from a very basic public health

         18  perspective we need to do more prevention and

         19  control.

         20                 I am not going to go into what is in

         21  our testimony about the hazards of malathion and

         22  resmethrin, many people have already spoken very

         23  eloquently about that, and I am sure many more

         24  people will.

         25                 The bottom line is, there are a host
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          2  of short and long-term health problems that can

          3  result from exposure and that many people here have

          4  experienced. And it is impossible really to say what

          5  the full range of human health impacts will be. The

          6  City has not been collecting data, it appears, and

          7  it is impossible to say how this exposure may

          8  interact with other pesticides to which City

          9  residents are exposed, and synergistic impacts and

         10  cumulative impacts. Data on such chemical

         11  interactions are virtually non-existent.

         12                 What I do want to talk about is

         13  alternative mosquito control, because clearly what

         14  the City did in this episode was the strategy of

         15  last resort, when all other control possibilities,

         16  this is the strategy that should not have been used

         17  until all other control possibilities have been

         18  exhausted, and the public health emergency requires

         19  action.

         20                 In addition to the health concerns

         21  about pesticides, repeated use of these chemicals,

         22  particularly malathion, breeds resistance and

         23  reduces their effectiveness for times when they

         24  might be the only option. And I do speak with Dr.

         25  Ray Parsons in Houston, and that is why they don't
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          2  use malathion, because the mosquitos there are

          3  resistant to it, the same case is true on Los

          4  Angeles.

          5                 So, the more that we use of this

          6  substance, the less effective it becomes. And

          7  furthermore, it sets the precedent that the public

          8  now thinks that the response to mosquitos is let's

          9  spray them and effective preventative mosquito

         10  control relies on a combination of before the fact

         11  measures, including removal of breeding habitat,

         12  identifying weather patterns that are known to

         13  exacerbate the vector-borne diseases, control of

         14  mosquito populations when they are in the larval and

         15  pupil stages, there are a variety of nontoxic and

         16  least toxic methods of larval control.

         17                 In Houston where they have storm

         18  sewers they do fog them with resmethrin-based

         19  pesticide. They are also going to be exploring

         20  bacillus sphaericus in storm sewers. Some of the

         21  other types of nontoxic or less toxic larvicides may

         22  not be effective in sewers.

         23                 Trapping and monitoring mosquitos to

         24  detect the presence of mosquito-borne illness. This

         25  allows people to target the responses with least
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          2  toxic insecticides rather than blanket spraying wide

          3  areas. There is also new technology coming onto the

          4  market, such as traps using carbon dioxide as a lure

          5  that can control mosquito populations in areas for

          6  up to an acre.

          7                 Use of sentinel birds to detect the

          8  presence of disease before it reaches humans, I am

          9  glad that DOH officials are planning on doing this.

         10  It is shameful that humans in this case were used as

         11  the surveillance tools for this virus.

         12                 And public education, which is

         13  critical about how people can eradicate mosquito

         14  breeding habitat around their homes and take

         15  measures to avoid being bitten, such as installing

         16  window and door screens.

         17                 I don't want to repeat myself too

         18  much. I think I have already talked about Houston.

         19  Yes, okay.

         20                 We are making the following

         21  recommendations to the City. The City must now

         22  address a range of issues and report fully to the

         23  public on each. They need to examine -- we need to

         24  know how the City handled advance warning of spray

         25  schedules and the quality and accuracy of pesticide
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          2  health affects information dispensed to the public

          3  regarding the spray.

          4                 We heard numerous reports of people

          5  caught directly in the spray due to lack of warning,

          6  inadequate advice from poison control centers,

          7  misrepresentations by public officials that the

          8  pesticides sprayed are harmless. All these need to

          9  be documented and assessed.

         10                 In addition, to my knowledge these

         11  communications were in English and there is a large

         12  portion of Spanish-speaking people in New York City

         13  and people who speak other languages and we need to

         14  be able to convey adequate information in advance in

         15  a language that is accessible to the people who are

         16  going to be impacted by spraying, if this ever

         17  happens again. Hopefully this will never happen

         18  again.

         19                 There needs to be a study of the

         20  observed adverse affects of spraying from surveys of

         21  poison control centers, hot lines, citizen networks,

         22  emergency rooms and clinics, and an analysis of what

         23  the potential size and virulence of the West Nile

         24  epidemic would have been had it not been checked.

         25                 The City needs to develop a vector
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          2  control plan to guide the City in response to future

          3  arborviral disease outbreaks.

          4                 The City needs to immediately

          5  implement preventive mosquito control strategies to

          6  fend off a similar outbreak next spring and in

          7  future years.

          8                 But most of all, we need to develop a

          9  long-term mosquito monitoring and control plan,

         10  together with sufficient funding for implementation.

         11  We will send more recommendations to the City

         12  Council in advance of the budget hearing in

         13  November.

         14                 And when spring arrives, we need to

         15  have this control policy in place, which uses all of

         16  the various techniques outlined above and

         17  investigates newer nontoxic adult mosquito trapping

         18  technology.

         19                 Regardless of whether this particular

         20  virus re-emerges in the spring --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I don't want to

         22  have to cut you off, but you are going to have to

         23  wrap up. We have so many people and already I have

         24  let you go beyond five minutes.

         25                 MS. HAIGHT: I didn't realize that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: All right, fine.

          3                 MS. HAIGHT: I didn't even look.

          4                 I only have a couple more paragraphs

          5  and I will skip over most of them.

          6                 Coordination among state and local

          7  public health officials in the tristate and New York

          8  City metropolitan region, with regard to improved

          9  surveillance control measures and emergency response

         10  planning.

         11                 I think there are some economies of

         12  scale that can be achieved here in terms of sharing

         13  laboratory resources, sharing strategies on

         14  surveillance monitoring and a lot of information

         15  that could be passed back and forth. And, again, in

         16  my experience New York City lags behind the

         17  surrounding counties in terms of IPM policies and

         18  preparedness for mosquito-borne outbreaks.

         19                 The mosquito disease is by no means

         20  the City's only pest problem, and aerial spraying is

         21  by no means the only pesticide exposure that the

         22  City must deal with.

         23                 In this report Plagued by Pesticides,

         24  we document that New York City tops the state in the

         25  amount of pesticides used overall. Manhattan and
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          2  Brooklyn Counties have the highest pesticide use in

          3  New York State.

          4                 Furthermore, the majority of

          5  pesticides used here are neurotoxic, organophosphate

          6  and carbamate insecticides. The most heavily used

          7  pesticide in the City is chlorpyrifos, which like

          8  malathion is an organophosphate insecticide that is

          9  substantially more acutely toxic and persistent and

         10  with a host of adverse chronic and developmental

         11  health affects associated with its use. Commonly

         12  used indoors. It is a very, very serious problem.

         13                 This City should regard this current

         14  crisis as a wake-up call to examine all of its pest

         15  problems, and pesticide use risks and devise

         16  preventative less hazardous methods of dealing with

         17  all of this.

         18                 We recommend the establishment of a

         19  New York City Pest Management Board, such as the

         20  City of Buffalo has had and other counties in the

         21  area do have, that includes local residents, public

         22  health and environmental interest groups,

         23  physicians, scientists and municipal leaders.

         24                 We urge the City Council to establish

         25  this Board as a watchdog to solve pesticide and pest
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          2  issues in the City, instead of the current

          3  situation, lurching from crisis to crisis with

          4  incomplete information and no long-ranging planning

          5  and solutions.

          6                 NYPIRG environmental advocates offer

          7  our continuing assistance in trying to resolve these

          8  problems.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I suggest that

         10  those recommendations be given to us in writing and

         11  we will follow through.

         12                 But let me just say, as we go along,

         13  because what is going to happen is, we are going to

         14  be repeating, so I try to get to those points that

         15  we need to incorporate, and I want to be clear.

         16                 Second, let me just say, if this

         17  Puerto Rican who came from Puerto Rico and lives in

         18  North Brooklyn thinks I am going to let the City put

         19  out information and not be -- forget about

         20  bilingual, multilingual, then I must tell you, that

         21  was something that was done. And there were several

         22  languages that the information was in.

         23                 MS. HAIGHT: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And I must tell

         25  you, 51 Council members, even our own operational,
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          2  that was one thing we made sure we demanded, that

          3  any information that would go into the community

          4  were reflective of the population that the spraying

          5  will take place.

          6                 I just want to make sure that you

          7  understand that I don't have to wait upon that, that

          8  is already the case. And especially in the

          9  Department of Health. And they have their own

         10  printing press. So, I just wanted to make sure that

         11  --

         12                 MS. HAIGHT: Well, I am glad to hear

         13  that, because we heard of them announcing with bull

         14  horns in English right before spraying and also the

         15  web site, all the language is in English.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Not the material

         17  that was being handed out and I just want to be

         18  clear --

         19                 MS. HAIGHT: Okay. I am glad.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: We stand to

         21  rectify. But I want to be clear, those are areas,

         22  issues, that many of us after 15 years of in this

         23  Council, and now being the chairman of this

         24  Committee, I will not accept in 1999 to put out

         25  information when the census is next year and clearly
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          2  the census will show whether you like it, or not

          3  only you, because there are people who are

          4  attempting to say, immigration after I came in did

          5  good, close the doors because don't let them in no

          6  more, that I am going to sit here and let a City

          7  agency put out information without be reflective of

          8  the population they intend to protect. So, I will

          9  make sure of that one, so long as I am the Chairman

         10  of this Committee, okay?

         11                 MS. HAIGHT: Good.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         13                 MS. HAIGHT: Thank you for your time.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay.

         15                 MR. NULL: Thank you. Because I do not

         16  want to repeat information already given before, my

         17  report will stand for what it is, I hope you have a

         18  chance to review it.

         19                 I would like however to address some

         20  of the larger philosophical issues that I do not

         21  believe have been addressed. One is, everyone that I

         22  have heard speak here today, and I am sure who will

         23  continue to speak all have the same interest, seeing

         24  the problems solved.

         25                 I don't see it as good and bad, I see
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          2  it as which direction do we take, life is about

          3  choices.

          4                 Now, when I heard one of the speakers

          5  in the CDC suggest that we have the facts because we

          6  are real science, that is what he said, alluding

          7  that anything I might suggest or someone else would

          8  not be real science, and this has been an ongoing

          9  debate forever, who do we believe in our society? I

         10  have a Ph.D in human nutrition and Public Health

         11  Science and I am a director, am I not to be trusted

         12  if I am not a public official or join the gang of

         13  public officials to agree upon a consensus how

         14  something can be done?

         15                 And I also have to take issue with

         16  the idea that it is okay because it is approved. I

         17  heard that seven times. Approved.

         18                 Well, 51 percent of all drugs

         19  approved by the FDA within ten years, according to

         20  the General Accounting Office, had to be removed

         21  because they were toxic. Also multiple pesticides

         22  have bee approved and then their license revoked.

         23                 Now, here is a larger issue that has

         24  not been addressed. When someone holds up a little

         25  cup and says there is only three ounces per acre,
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          2  three ounces based on what molecules get into the

          3  body of a sensitive person where in parts per

          4  billion -- now, let me tell you what three ounces

          5  is. Three ounces is 2 million billion molecules or

          6  more. So, how can we determine who is going to be at

          7  risk? We do not. There is no such program anywhere

          8  in the United States.

          9                 So, if you have one model, all

         10  citizens are equally healthy, therefore they can all

         11  accept the same toxic dose of a toxic substance,

         12  that is not science. It is not even good opinion.

         13                 Now, did anyone take into account

         14  that we have never in this country on any of our

         15  major health programs had long-term surveillance

         16  vaccines? There is no long-term vaccine monitoring

         17  program. As a result, today many people, myself

         18  included, believe that attention dif. disorder,

         19  autism, sudden infant death and other conditions are

         20  in part in many children related to side effects

         21  that were unreported or non-reported. And as far as

         22  reporting actual adverse affects, if you go into a

         23  hospital saying here are the symptoms and the doctor

         24  specializing in that malathion toxicity says, yes,

         25  you have the symptoms, that is one thing. But the
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          2  FDA Commission, the previous one, said that only one

          3  in 28 adverse reactions to medications are ever

          4  diagnosed.

          5                 Well, most physicians are not trained

          6  in their pathogency of pesticide toxicity,

          7  especially organophosphate. So, how would they know

          8  that the symptoms a person is showing are due to a

          9  pesticide or due to a medication or due to a

         10  disease? They wouldn't. As a result, they wouldn't

         11  be in any monitoring system to show the real toxic

         12  affects.

         13                 Also, what about someone who has

         14  asthma, someone who has Lyme Disease, someone who ha

         15  arthritis, cancer, AIDS, hepatitis, heart disease,

         16  dementia, nursing home peopled, how about all the

         17  babies in hospitals, pregnant women, those people

         18  have an adversely affected immune system to begin

         19  with because it is being challenged.

         20                 Anything beyond that normal challenge

         21  may throw them into some form of disease process. As

         22  we know, you can't smoke a cigarette and get cancer,

         23  you can't eat a piece of meat and get colorectal

         24  cancer, but if you smoke for 20 years you can, if

         25  you eat meat every day for 20 years, you can end up
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          2  with a disease in your colon. So, how do we know

          3  what we are doing today and did last year and may do

          4  next year may not be just a final stroke of bad

          5  misfortune for someone to actually cause that

          6  disease process.

          7                 We are told that we should trust

          8  these people because they are the officials,

          9  especially from the CDC.

         10                 My question is, is that the same CDC

         11  that allowed the Tasigi experiment to go on with 495

         12  black and itinerate farm workers who had syphilis

         13  and chose not to treat them, instead to look at them

         14  as if they were experimental animals? And if that is

         15  the highest source of integrity that a government

         16  agency can maintain, then I am certainly going to

         17  question their integrity on malathion.

         18                 I am also concerned when the

         19  manufacturers of pesticides have successfully, for

         20  over 25 years, kept their policies of pesticides

         21  from being banned so good that today it is almost

         22  impossible to ban a pesticide because they removed

         23  the Delaney Amendment, the only law existing that

         24  protects us that if any cancer-causing agent, in any

         25  amount, in any animal species is shown to cause
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          2  tumors, it must be removed from the market. They

          3  were among the leaders along with other industries

          4  that were equally culpable of their products or

          5  services causing cancer of removing that, as a

          6  result today the American public has not protection,

          7  so the idea that we have safe pesticides would not

          8  be held up to the same standard if we had a Delaney

          9  Amendment still in effect where we could actually

         10  test the pesticide and say, no, it is not safe. And

         11  these are the same people who would be sitting

         12  before congressional hearings for 18 years, when I

         13  was on the opposition trying to challenge the

         14  effectiveness and safety of DDT, time and again they

         15  said, DDT safe. Every single scientist, safe, safe,

         16  safe. Every government agency, safe. Well, guess

         17  what? It wasn't. And it caused almost the decimation

         18  of the Bald Eagle and the Condor and how about all

         19  of the people's compromised immune system.

         20                 Now, what do we do? We ban it

         21  finally. But we didn't ban it because any government

         22  agency or any government official was on the

         23  people's side. It took people that they don't

         24  consider the expert, people in this audience, who

         25  are considered the unscientific. I think we have

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            218

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  done enough for the denigration of people so we can

          3  divide so the power is not challenged. If these

          4  people really want to protect the public interest,

          5  then why can't they call people like myself or other

          6  individuals that are not officially in their group

          7  and to share our insights more cooperatively and

          8  collectively to find some way of providing non-toxic

          9  waste. No one is questioning the seriousness of the

         10  condition. Now one is questioning we need a

         11  solution. I am not going to go through the solutions

         12  because they have been given.

         13                 Prevention is the key, but we are not

         14  known in our country for really preventing disease.

         15  Why do we spend 1.4 trillion - trillion dollars -

         16  this year on disease? Because we are not preventing

         17  it.

         18                 Again, it was official medicine's

         19  position up until 1978 that there was no connection

         20  between diet and disease. Well, they were wrong. How

         21  many millions of Americans died because of that? Now

         22  the position is this is safe. You can believe

         23  opinion or you can reject opinion. But I left you

         24  with science, so when they say that malathion is not

         25  toxic, I ask you to look at the sources on human
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          2  studies. I gave you the actual citations, the

          3  Archives of Toxicology, the Lancet, Intestinal

          4  Disorders in Children Born from California, and that

          5  was epidemiology kidney failure after malathion

          6  sprayed, Home Journal of American Medical

          7  Association, JAMA, Human Birth Defects Suspected

          8  From Malathion, Chronic Intoxication of

          9  Organophosphate Pesticides, and the source. All of

         10  these sources in here, science, nature, JAMA, the

         11  Lancet, so this is science, peer review journals

         12  showing that malathion, just malathion, is toxic.

         13                 Now, they can say this doesn't count.

         14  Well, if it doesn't count, then their opinion

         15  counts.

         16                 I am not interested in their opinion,

         17  I am interested in science, science formed by the

         18  people, without political or economic agenda. That

         19  is what unfortunately has not been used here today,

         20  and I hope the time comes when we are honest enough

         21  to see the bias of industries and people who want to

         22  have the right answer, but it has to be their

         23  answer. What about our answer?

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me personally
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          2  thank you again, all of you, because I know you have

          3  been sitting here since the beginning and I

          4  appreciate that. I just want to say this for

          5  everyone here, particularly when you are coming to

          6  testify. This chair, I can only speak for myself,

          7  this chair, and now I have eight other members, this

          8  chair welcomes any recommendations or anything that

          9  we should look at we never said we were the experts

         10  but rather we believe that we have a role to play

         11  with government. So, I welcome any.

         12                 And I did see your report, and I

         13  assure you that that will not be put aside like I

         14  said with the surveys.

         15                 But I really urge, because some of us

         16  do listen and some of us are frustrated when we rely

         17  upon experts, but then experts like you come, which

         18  I will call the people's expert, and you know you

         19  have us think some things that perhaps they were

         20  quickly to run down. So, don't think I don't welcome

         21  your recommendations and I want to be clear on that.

         22                 So, any recommendations following up

         23  this hearing, I suggest you do that, okay?

         24                 MR. NULL: Thank you.

         25                 DR. BERLIN: My name is Irwin Berlin.
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          2  I am Chief of Pulmonary at St. Elizabeth Hospital. I

          3  want to thank the Council for inviting all of us to

          4  be here.

          5                 I also want to apologize to all of my

          6  patients who I had to cancel today because I had to

          7  come here. I felt it was important.

          8                 What I am going to speak about are

          9  the affects of pesticide use on asthma and other

         10  lung diseases. And as I told you, I represent the

         11  American Lung Association, I sit on their national

         12  council. I am past president of the Thoracic

         13  Society, and as I said, I grew up in Brooklyn and

         14  Queens and now live here in Manhattan.

         15                 Asthma is a clinical syndrome, it

         16  affects approximately 10 million Americans.

         17  Two-thirds of those afflicted with asthma are

         18  children under 18. The clinical course of this

         19  illness is influenced greatly by environmental

         20  exposures. The paradox of this is that in recent

         21  years important strides have been made in

         22  discovering theological environmental factors that

         23  cause the airway inflammation characteristic of

         24  asthma.

         25                 In 1991, the National Asthma
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          2  Education Program Expert Panel, defined asthma as a

          3  lung disease with the following characteristics:

          4  Airway obstruction that is reversible, either

          5  spontaneously or with treatment, airway inflammation

          6  and increased airway responsiveness to a variety of

          7  stimuli.

          8                 Current data suggests that asthma

          9  prevalence, we heard a lot about prevalence of a

         10  virus, asthma prevalence over all ages is four

         11  percent per hundred. With the rate for children

         12  under 18 being 5.7 percent. So, if you add five

         13  percent of a population of seven and a half million,

         14  these are the people who are at risk for pesticide

         15  exposure.

         16                 Overall trends countrywide asthma

         17  mortality tend to belie pockets of a very high

         18  prevalance, very high morbidity and mortality in

         19  inner city minority populations.

         20                 Asthma prevalence is higher in blacks

         21  than it is in whites, and hospitalization mortality

         22  rates are consistently higher. Whether these racial

         23  differences in prevalence hospitalization mortality

         24  are due to inadequate treatment and access to

         25  medical care is unclear, alternatively genetic
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          2  differences and environmental factors, such as urban

          3  crowding and indoor and outdoor air pollution do

          4  contribute to these findings.

          5                 A lower socioeconomic status is

          6  associated with an increase in asthma prevalence,

          7  and the factors are related to indoor and outdoor

          8  pollution, also maternal smoking, allergin exposure

          9  and decreased access to care.

         10                 An important overlook part of the

         11  management plan consists of measures to control

         12  environmental triggers. So, what are those triggers?

         13  Well, one of those triggers we heard about this

         14  morning. The past decade has seen a marked increase

         15  in concern about adverse health affects of hazardous

         16  exposures in the work place, and elsewhere in the

         17  environment. And by the way, those workers were

         18  exposed to toxic levels of malathion.

         19                 Because of the seemingly endless

         20  array of substances that can infect the lungs,

         21  physicians have to be prepared to recognize,

         22  diagnose and treat those exposures.

         23                 Physicians must also be prepared to

         24  provide preventive advice to my patients and address

         25  those patients concerns regarding environmental
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          2  exposures.

          3                 Environmental exposures play an

          4  important role in many lung disorders, chronic

          5  bronchitis, emphysema, lung cancer. Accurate

          6  estimates of the contribution of such factors is

          7  very difficult to find. It is generally believed

          8  that there is under-recognition and under reporting

          9  of all of these exposures. The dose of exposure is

         10  an important determinant of the proportion of people

         11  affected or the severity of the disease. The higher

         12  doses of exposure usually result in more affected

         13  individuality, individuals, or greater disease

         14  severity.

         15                 Individual differences in

         16  susceptibility to exposure does exist so that

         17  adverse affects can occur in some people, while

         18  others with similar exposure are spared.

         19                 There are several compelling reasons

         20  to pursue the search for an environmental cause of

         21  all cases of lung disease. First, it can help me in

         22  patient management, and second, it can prevent

         23  further disease progression.

         24                 If I establish the cause it can have

         25  significant legal, financial, social implications
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          2  for the patient. Recognition of an environmental

          3  risk factor has important public health and policy

          4  consequences.

          5                 Three main types of information can

          6  be used to establish a causal relationship between

          7  an exposure and a respiratory condition, case

          8  reports, epidemiological studies and toxicology

          9  studies.

         10                 The clinical practice of

         11  environmental lung disease relies heavily on those

         12  experts in epidemiology and toxicology to give me a

         13  database. Those databases don't exist.

         14                 Prevention is central to the practice

         15  of environmental medicine. There are two main

         16  strategies for prevention: Primary prevention, which

         17  entail removing or modifying the hazardous risk

         18  before disease has occurred, and secondary

         19  prevention.

         20                 And early detection and prompt

         21  treatment after some adverse affects of the exposure

         22  has occurred.

         23                 In the June '99 environmental health

         24  perspectives, there is a study from California that

         25  I want to share very briefly with you. It is called
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          2  "Chamacos", or little child. And because children

          3  are developmentally immature, they are at higher

          4  risk for adverse health affects, specifically with

          5  malathion. Pesticides enter children's bodies via

          6  touch, via ingestion, via inhalation. Because these

          7  organophosphates exposure disregulation of the

          8  autonomic control of airways, it is biologically

          9  plausible that exposure may be related to the

         10  occurrence of some cases of asthma in those

         11  children.

         12                 The accumulation of aceytlcholine at

         13  the motor nerve results in muscle weakness of the

         14  respiratory muscles. So, if you accumulate

         15  aceytlcholine, add musterenic receptors, you get a

         16  lot of things, including broncho-constriction,

         17  increased secretion, and in other words, a lot of

         18  pulmonary symptoms. That is very difficult to

         19  distinguish from other diseases caused by smoking or

         20  exposure to smoking.

         21                 Pregnancy is specifically a high risk

         22  time because plasma aceytlcholinesterase levels are

         23  already reduced, especially during the first two

         24  trimesters.

         25                 Daily exposure to dusting, spraying,
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          2  that are insufficient to cause signs and symptoms of

          3  acute poisoning can still produce an influenza-like

          4  illness characterized by weakness, anorexia and

          5  malaise. Sounds like a mild case of Nile-like

          6  Encephalitis, but it is really caused, in some

          7  cases, by the exposure.

          8                 So, there is considerable data that

          9  indicate disregulation, especially an exposure to

         10  pesticides, is important in the occurrence of asthma

         11  and its severity.

         12                 Professional fumagators have an

         13  increased occurrence of allergy and asthma, because

         14  they have a high level of acetylcholinesterase in

         15  their blood.

         16                 I think understanding the balance

         17  between the public health risk of a mosquito-borne

         18  virus and the emerging response of widespread

         19  spraying of pesticides requires a complete

         20  accounting of the hazards of both.

         21                 The pesticides being used cannot be

         22  characterized as harmless, and their risks have to

         23  be fully communicated in order to insure that New

         24  Yorkers take all available precautions to minimize

         25  their exposures.
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          2                 I am Jewish, I have a succa outside

          3  my house was the night I was supposed to be in the

          4  succa to eat my meal outdoors, which was not

          5  possible because I was a little afraid of being

          6  exposed to the pesticide. On the first day of Rosh

          7  Hashanah I wanted to go to the water to throw my

          8  sins into the water, I couldn't do that because of

          9  the spraying and the fear of the encephalitis.

         10                 When you coordinate your efforts

         11  among officials, please make sure that you remember

         12  the Connecticut and New Jersey are part of the

         13  tristate area and that you include upstate New York,

         14  because we don't exist in a vacuum. Make sure that

         15  these pesticides management boards include not only

         16  the local residents, the public health groups, but

         17  include physicians and include environmentalists, as

         18  well as your municipal leaders.

         19                 I thank you for your attention.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 Reverend.

         23                 REVEREND PARRISH: As I said, my name

         24  is Joe Parrish, and I am an episcopal priest. I have

         25  nine points, I will just try to speak through them
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          2  briefly.

          3                 The first point was the

          4  recommendation for public health from the Public

          5  Health officials laws that everyone should go inside

          6  and stay indoors, I believe the official time was

          7  two to three hours past the spray.

          8                 However, the City of New York, at one

          9  time was estimated to have 60,000 homeless people

         10  and now it could be anywhere from 50,000 to 60,000.

         11                 So, how are homeless people taken

         12  care of? Were they considered at all when the spray

         13  was done? Or were they simply the target audience

         14  outdoors.

         15                 The second point, there should be a

         16  quarantine, I believe, for all foreign birds and

         17  animals. We don't know -- probably the zoo wasn't

         18  the source, it could be the sentinel birds of the

         19  zoo were helpful for us at that time but suppose a

         20  pet shop or someone else had imported foreign birds

         21  had the disease, it still could be happening and we

         22  could have another outbreak next spring.

         23                 Third point. We need to balance the

         24  benefits of the spray versus the risk. There were 40

         25  determined, people who have been determined to have
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          2  been infected, four deaths resulted; however, the

          3  risk is to the people, for example, that Dr. Irwin

          4  Berlin speaks of people with respiratory diseases,

          5  in our area the respiratory disease rate is about 33

          6  percent, about a third of the people have

          7  respiratory disease. A third of seven and a half

          8  million people is two and a half million people, so

          9  those people already have respiratory disease and

         10  now they are hit with a new potentially deadly toxin

         11  coming out of the air. The minimum estimate is at

         12  least three or four-hundred thousand people have

         13  asthma in the City of New York, what happens to them

         14  when they have to breathe a new foreign chemical.

         15                 The fourth point. I wrote

         16  continuously different questions to the United

         17  States Environmental Protection Agency when I

         18  discovered that spraying was ongoing. I asked them

         19  to evaluate the toxicity of the side effects of the

         20  contaminants in the spray, and after the second

         21  request I got an official refusal to answer any more

         22  of my questions.

         23                 I only would say that the pesticide

         24  unit of EPA was "researching the contaminants and

         25  malathion", and I thought if they are researching
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          2  the contaminants and we spraying it on New York

          3  City, that is a little bit late. That is the

          4  official word from the United States Environmental

          5  Protection Agency.

          6                 The fifth point. It is known that the

          7  organophosphates excite mosquitos so they bite more

          8  frequently. If you don't kill them they can get you

          9  more quickly. So, to use an organophosphate, if it

         10  is in the incorrect dosage or if it is in the edge

         11  of the spray line, the people at that level could

         12  have a more agitated mosquito seeking their blood,

         13  and potentially infecting them.

         14                 The sixth point is, there seems to be

         15  no regular control of larvae. If the infections are

         16  over now, it seems to be there is sort of a passive

         17  situation, and the larvae which are certainly there

         18  and can come back again in the spring, we may have

         19  this same hearing all over again. It seems like a

         20  tragedy that we could prevent if we budget and

         21  control them now.

         22                 One thing is to have the money, and

         23  another thing is to actually have a program that

         24  would control them.

         25                 Seventh point is that we should have
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          2  a targeted spray program, not a global spray

          3  program. We sprayed hospitals, hospitals were not a

          4  zone. That is where the pulmonary cases are, people

          5  who have all sorts of diseases, the weakest people.

          6  We sprayed schools, the youngest people. So, that

          7  seems like a bizarre way to do a spraying program

          8  for a City of seven and a half million people.

          9                 The eighth point is, one of the

         10  specific side effects of malathion, I am not sure

         11  what the other compounds are, but for malathion,

         12  specifically it is teratogenic which means it is

         13  known to cause birth defects. There is a specific

         14  birth defect of the gastrointestinal tract of

         15  newborns. It is specifically caused by exposing

         16  women I believe in the third trimester, or second

         17  trimester, so that means we need to have some sort

         18  of a monitoring system about how many birth defects

         19  of this type are happening in October and September,

         20  versus what happened in December and January. Who is

         21  going to go to the hospitals and find the number of

         22  cases that have turned up in December and January.

         23  Will that be a higher or a lower or the same number?

         24                 And the ninth point is, there is no

         25  measurable documentation of emphysema, asthma and
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          2  other pulmonary diseases before or after the spray.

          3  We are an experiment that can't be used. We are

          4  basically useless as an experiment but we need to

          5  have some base line as to what are respiratory

          6  disease levels in the City of New York now so we can

          7  determine what happens if any other chemical agent

          8  is introduced into our environment.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         11  much, I appreciate that. Again, I apologize for the

         12  time. But you will learn something about this

         13  Committee, I don't look at time.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 REVEREND PARRISH: Thank you.

         16                 MR. ORGENGO: The next panel will be

         17  Frank Vernuccio, Eugene McSweeney, Joyce Shepard,

         18  Stephanie Bergash Snow.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Come on, folks.

         20  Let's keep it moving, please. You should be asking

         21  for those statements.

         22                 Once again, identify yourselves for

         23  the record and then proceed with the testimony.

         24                 MR. VERNUCCIO: Good afternoon, Mr.

         25  Chairman. I am Frank Vernuccio, appearing on behalf
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          2  of Bronx Borough President Fernando Ferrer.

          3                 MS. SHEPARD: Joyce Shepard, President

          4  of the Citizens Action Committee for Change,

          5  representing the people of this city who have been

          6  poisoned.

          7                 MR. McSWEENEY: Good afternoon. My

          8  name is Eugene McSweeney, representing Assemblywoman

          9  Ann Margaret Carrozza, Bayside Queens.

         10                 MS. SNOW: I am Stephanie Bergash

         11  Snow. I have an MS in Early Childhoold Education,

         12  but I have been a landmark preservationist on the

         13  work of Frederick LaUmsted, both in Buffalo, and I

         14  am a volunteer with the Conservancy in New York. I

         15  take care of the Alice in Wonderland Garden and

         16  can't go back into the park because of the excessive

         17  poisoning of malathion.

         18                 I head the group SAFE, S-A-F-E, which

         19  is Seeking Alternatives For The Environment, and I

         20  bring with me the alternatives from Buffalo, New

         21  York, that have successfully worked with these

         22  alternatives.

         23                 MR. VERNUCCIO: Mr. Chairman, the

         24  Borough President applauds your leadership role in

         25  overseeing this issue. New York City's response to
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          2  the ongoing outbreak of mosquito-borne disease is

          3  deeply troubling on several levels. For half a

          4  decade the Mayor has been warned that the reduced

          5  attention given to mosquito control would lead to

          6  serious future problems.

          7                 From the relatively low density areas

          8  of Queens and Staten Island that have suffered from

          9  high mosquito populations, to certain high-rise

         10  neighborhoods on Manhattan's East Side, New Yorkers

         11  have worried, and as it turns out, quite

         12  appropriately, the failure to adequately address

         13  this problem was a serious error.

         14                 It is very frustrating that warnings

         15  the Borough President has given to the Mayor dating

         16  back to 1994 urging the City to restore its pest

         17  control budget, including the spraying of mosquitos

         18  have gone unheeded. Incidently, those warnings are

         19  as recent as the Borough President's comments on the

         20  Fiscal Year '99 budget.

         21                 Once the outbreak did begin, the

         22  Office of Emergency Management to respond to the

         23  crisis continued the City's failure to listen to or

         24  consult with the people, their elected officials or

         25  local community boards.
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          2                 On September 8th, Borough President

          3  Fernando Ferrer requested OEM's presence at a

          4  meeting in the Borough President's Office with all

          5  of Bronx elected officials and district managers to

          6  give that agency an opportunity to directly address

          7  local leaders.

          8                 The agency failed to attend. Failed.

          9  Even at this late date to institute a fair level of

         10  communication with New Yorkers.

         11                 Our concerns about the procedures

         12  used to belatedly address the mosquito problem are

         13  neither trivial nor difficult to remedy. Many New

         14  Yorkers with respiratory problems are highly worried

         15  about the impact malathion spray may have on their

         16  health, for example.

         17                 In my Borough of the Bronx, there are

         18  several communities with extraordinary high asthma

         19  levels, and therefore heightened fears about the

         20  potential ill effects of aerial spraying.

         21                 The Mayor's wholly unjustifiable

         22  failure to provide adequate advanced warning

         23  unnecessarily caused significant distress to many,

         24  especially the mothers of young asthmatics.

         25                 There are no real obstacles
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          2  preventing OEM from simply giving timely and

          3  accurate warnings and accurate schedules to

          4  neighborhoods being sprayed.

          5                 Why did they fail to do so, and

          6  thereby exacerbate the concerns of numerous

          7  residents.

          8                 As the Borough President has

          9  suggested previously, a task force should be formed

         10  to link Borough Presidents, the City Council

         11  leadership and community boards with OEM to better

         12  coordinate future efforts.

         13                 Clearly, this crisis can resolve far

         14  more efficiently if the Mayor and his agencies

         15  appropriately treat New Yorkers, and their

         16  representatives as partners in this effort.

         17                 Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chairman.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 MS. SHEPARD: Mr. Chairman, before I

         22  read my statement, I would like to commend you and

         23  your staff for sitting this long day, and I would

         24  like to comment that your colleagues didn't have the

         25  tenacity that you do, talking to an empty panel of
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          2  people that are representing the people of this

          3  city, disappearing when the Commissioner of the

          4  Department of Health was speaking, and you really

          5  did a wonderful job in asking your questions --

          6  where are your colleagues to hear what we have to

          7  say? It is unbelievable. I really must say so.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You ask

          9  something, let me say this. I suggest that whoever

         10  is in this room, and depending upon whose district

         11  you reside in you can ask that question of them.

         12                 MS. SHEPARD: Good.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am not going to

         14  get into this because as Chairman, and I said when I

         15  first met you downstairs, I know my role, I know my

         16  responsibility, I know what I can do, I know what I

         17  cannot do, and I must tell you that I am just as

         18  frustrated as you are in many other things, and that

         19  is why I say I would rather deal with the issue,

         20  let's move on.

         21                 MS. SHEPARD: All right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am more

         23  concerned about what is going to happen in November

         24  when it comes to the budget, whether we do something

         25  or we don't. And I would respectfully suggest that
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          2  everyone in this room lives somewhere, with the

          3  exception of those who come from New Jersey, and I

          4  welcome them to the City of New York. But if you

          5  live in the City of New York, that question, in

          6  fairness to me, should be asked directly not to me.

          7                 MS. SHEPARD: Well, it saddens me to

          8  see you sitting there alone.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I appreciate

         10  that. Okay.

         11                 MS. SHEPARD: And the Borough

         12  President said that the agencies failed to attend,

         13  similarly your colleagues are failing to attend I

         14  think a very important hearing.

         15                 And I will start with, and I usually

         16  don't like to read, because I am, you know,

         17  impulsive, but I am going to read this because I

         18  worked 14 hours on it. That is why I don't have a

         19  voice, I have been reading it to everybody in New

         20  York.

         21                 My name is Joyce Shepard. I am the

         22  president for the Citizens' Action Committee for

         23  Change based in Bayside, Queens. I am also a mother,

         24  a new grandmother, a resident of Bayside for 25

         25  years, a clinical social worker in private practice,
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          2  and have been an activist for over 20 years. I am

          3  outraged about Mayor Giuliani's decision to

          4  knowingly and indiscriminately spray a toxic nerve

          5  gas, as described, in his Chem-Bio Warfare Handbook

          6  that I hold in front of you here today, and I am

          7  giving as evidence, that has the potential to poison

          8  8 million people in New York City.

          9                 The malathion helicopters doused

         10  children in schoolyards, people sitting outside

         11  senior centers, construction workers, police, all

         12  who work outdoors and hospitals. This is in

         13  violation of the EPA mandates on aerial spraying of

         14  malathion.

         15                 The Mayor allowed this without

         16  consideration of alternatives, ultimately without

         17  respect of the concerns of the residents and their

         18  elected officials. We believe he is out of control

         19  and should no longer be able to make any further

         20  rash decisions as he did in this case and others for

         21  the residents of this City.

         22                 Why wasn't an emergency meeting

         23  called with the Speaker of the City Council and the

         24  chairs of the Health and Environmental Committees,

         25  to confer on this emergency?
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          2                 Did you know anything about his

          3  malathion plans, Mr. Robles? Were you informed about

          4  the malathion plans?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Just give your

          6  testimony and then I will --

          7                 MS. SHEPARD: I understand that the

          8  first reports of deaths and infection indicated that

          9  a crisis was at-hand. However, let us remember that

         10  those initial reports were wrong, as to what disease

         11  we face, and scientists are still in a quandary.

         12                 I also understand that a responsible

         13  Mayor would have sought advice from health care

         14  professionals and toxicologists not intimidated by

         15  him nor threatened by his toxic personality.

         16                 Why did he follow some of EPA's

         17  mandates regarding aerial spraying of malathion and

         18  ignore others, such as:

         19                 1) Chemically-sensitive people must

         20  be given special notice, asthmatics, for one.

         21                 2) Health officials are to

         22  immediately follow-up on every allegation from the

         23  public about the adverse affects resulting from the

         24  treatment.

         25                 3) Aerial applications cannot be made
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          2  if the wind speed would cause significant spray

          3  drift.

          4                 4) Aerial applications cannot be

          5  conducted if the weather forecast indicates a high

          6  probability of significant rainfall, and I am sure

          7  you remember the significant rainfall we had.

          8                 Use of malathion is to be limited to

          9  the least possible number of applications to

         10  accomplish the eradication. We have reports on our

         11  malathion hot line that in South Ozone Park they

         12  were spraying eight and nine times a day.

         13                 Spraying is prohibited in any

         14  sensitive area that are habitats of endangered

         15  species, and sensitive community sites, such as

         16  hospitals, are to be deleted from the treatment

         17  zone. So, how do you delete a hospital and a school

         18  in a City of New York?

         19                 Today you have heard from Dr. Simon,

         20  a renown international toxicologist on the dangers

         21  of malathion. I am here to give malathion a face.

         22                 I will testify in how it impacted on

         23  the children of the City.

         24                 We have hard data, for we set up a

         25  hot line for malathion information and referrals,
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          2  another EPA mandate this Administration ignored.

          3                 I would like to present just some

          4  examples out of the hundreds of calls we received.

          5                 Joan Balducci is a single mother who

          6  lives in Whitestone with her two sons. On 10/2,

          7  October 2nd, just after her neighborhood was

          8  sprayed, Joan thought it was safe to leave her home

          9  and bring her eight-year-old son Mario to the

         10  Whitestone Shopping Center.

         11                 Just after they left her car, Mario

         12  started to have a dry cough, choke, and began to

         13  vomit in the shopping center. You see, Joan's son is

         14  an asthmatic.

         15                 Joan immediately gave him the

         16  nebulizer but it didn't work. In a panic she took

         17  him to an asthma specialist and was informed that

         18  the spraying could have induced his attack.

         19                 The doctor ordered a liquid Prelone

         20  Steroid. It worked.

         21                 On 10/7 Mario returned to school.

         22  When Mario went out to play in the school yard at PS

         23  79, he once again started to choke and vomit. The

         24  schoolyard and grounds have yet to be watered down.

         25  In fact, a letter to parents stated it is now safe
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          2  for children to go outdoors.

          3                 That school, the yard and all others

          4  in this City that were not watered down remain

          5  contaminated.

          6                 Both of Ms. Balducci's children and

          7  her neighbor's children have began to bed wet, yet

          8  another sign of malathion poisoning in children.

          9                 [Sarah Ziegler, who is here today,

         10  her eight-year-old son Robert has been diagnosed

         11  with multiple osteo chendomas, a bone disease.

         12  Robert has over 100 bone tumors throughout his body

         13  and also suffers with arthritis. Robert showed signs

         14  if irritability, tiredness, headaches and hives, a

         15  couple of days after the spraying, all signs of

         16  malathion poisoning.

         17                 He is on Ditropan for bed wetting.

         18  This medication shuts down the kidney. After the

         19  spraying of malathion, Robert also began to wet his

         20  bed. He is still suffering from hives and headaches.

         21                 Ms. Ziegler is in the room today

         22  representing the PS 79 PTA. The Zieglers also reside

         23  in Whitestone which is very close to the hot zone of

         24  the malathion and resmethrin storage area.

         25                 Deidre Piccolino lives in Staten
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          2  Island. She has two sons, three and one and a half.

          3  Both children are suffering from ear infections,

          4  sore throats, irritability and lethargy. These

          5  symptoms appeared immediately after the spraying

          6  around Labor Day. Diagnosed with post nasal drip and

          7  the flu they were prescribed antibiotics. It did not

          8  clear up the condition. As of today they are still

          9  suffering the affects of malathion.

         10                 What is most unfortunate about the

         11  consequences of malathion is that doctors are not

         12  educated in the field of pesticides and pesticide

         13  poisoning. What is most alarming is that children

         14  are the ones who suffer the most from the spraying,

         15  especially children who are in poor health prior to

         16  exposure.

         17                 Also, many adults have called the hot

         18  line describing how they have lost days of work

         19  because their children are not as protected

         20  biologically.

         21                 I would like to submit to this

         22  Committee today evidence of what the EPA states

         23  about malathion and children -- if I could get some

         24  water, my tongue is sticking to my pallet.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You can, but let
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          2  me also say --

          3                 MS. SHEPARD: I will skip some stuff.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me also say,

          5  in fairness to me, and as we deal with this issue,

          6  honestly, and I have been a member of this Committee

          7  for 15 years, and the one thing is a frustration is

          8  I love the way people talk about the federal

          9  government and what they are mandated to do and my

         10  basic question which nobody asked, where are they?

         11  Who does the enforcement?

         12                 And I must tell you, that is why when

         13  the State was here and the federal government, you

         14  know, it is one thing to turn to us when we are the

         15  stepchild of the state and the federal government.

         16                 MS. SHEPARD: Let me finish.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So, as you read,

         18  it is not just about reading what the law says, it

         19  is also about getting your members of congress, your

         20  members of state legislature to practice what they

         21  preach when they pass laws.

         22                 Having said that, please go on.

         23                 MS. SHEPARD: This is from the EPA, we

         24  got it on the Net. Kids Need Protection. Children

         25  are at a greater risk for some pesticides for a
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          2  number of reasons. Children's internal organs are

          3  still developing and maturing and the enzymatic,

          4  metabolic and immune systems may provide less

          5  natural protection than those of an adult. There are

          6  critical periods in human development when exposure

          7  to a toxin can permanently alter the way an

          8  individual's biological system operates. Adverse

          9  affects of pesticide exposure range from mild

         10  symptoms of dizziness and nausea to serious, long

         11  term neurological, developmental and reproductive

         12  disorders.

         13                 To this day the EPA has not done a

         14  study on the effects of pesticides on children in

         15  this country.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So what good is

         17  the paper, if you are not going to follow --

         18                 MS. SHEPARD: That's right. That is

         19  our next step. We are just starting out here. We are

         20  just a movement for two weeks, and we have grown

         21  very large, we will just grow more thanks to you.

         22                 The majority of the people who called

         23  our hot line described how they were caught and

         24  doused by the spray, due to the City not abiding by

         25  their schedules.
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          2                 In fact, Assemblyman Brian

          3  McLaughlin's son, innocently playing soccer on a

          4  Sunday afternoon, was doused with a typically

          5  unannounced malathion spraying along with his

          6  friends. Assemblyman McLaughlin's wife, who is

          7  expecting another child was similarly doused.

          8                 The EPA mandate is to give 48 hours

          9  notice for them to prepare and protect themselves.

         10  If and when the City gave notice they were remiss in

         11  abiding by their scheduled time.

         12                 I would like to provide you with some

         13  of the things that the other doctors said, so I am

         14  going to skip this, but Intestinal Disorders In

         15  Children Born After California Spraying of

         16  Malathion.

         17                 Human Birth Defect Suspected from

         18  Malathion.

         19                 Immune System Weakens after

         20  Malathion.

         21                 Chem-Tox Comments. This is

         22  interesting. Chem-Tox Comments, this research

         23  addresses the paradox regarding the New York City

         24  malathion spray. It must be considered that

         25  malathion has the potential in itself to increase
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          2  encephalitis cases, as the spraying of the pesticide

          3  can weaken a person's immune system, thereby making

          4  them more vulnerable to the disease.

          5                 This City's health needs are not

          6  being met by this Administration. Most of the people

          7  who called us need cholinesterase blood levels and

          8  metabolite urinalysis testing to rule out poisoning.

          9                 If tested positive, detoxification is

         10  necessary. The fees for these tests are costly. The

         11  City has ignored this disease completely.

         12                 On September 13th I telephoned

         13  Commissioner Cohen. I asked him three informed

         14  questions. What is the concentration level of the

         15  pesticides being used? What was the pesticide

         16  diluted with? And which agency had oversight on the

         17  aerial spraying project to ensure these levels were

         18  being adhered to?

         19                 As of this date, I have only been

         20  told their pat answer, three ounces per acre.

         21                 I telephoned Dr. Cohen a second time

         22  to ask who was doing the aerial spraying. He

         23  informed me a firm out of Illinois called Clarke

         24  Industries. He said they "flew the malathion in from

         25  Chicago" and "the FAA is involved".
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          2                 He also informed me he will surely be

          3  asked questions by your Committee in the future.

          4  Well, the future has arrived and I am anxious to

          5  finally hear his answers.

          6                 I would like the Mayor to answer why,

          7  knowing his concerns of protest about carpet-baggers

          8  was a company from Illinois, of all places, hired?

          9  Is there no company in New York licensed or capable

         10  to do his power spraying? Did Clarke Industries from

         11  Illinois have a license to spray in New York? Or did

         12  Clarke Industries contribute to the Mayor's campaign

         13  coffers?

         14                 Yet, another agency has not been

         15  forthcoming with answers. This time the State

         16  Department of Environmental Conservation, they

         17  oversee licensing and permits. We called the

         18  Commissioner and Assistant Commissioner to request

         19  the copy of Clarke's license to spray in New York

         20  and the permits given to them. We never got a

         21  response.

         22                 We are repeatedly told by the Mayor

         23  and his obedient servants that malathion is safe.

         24  How safe is the product to inhale and seep through

         25  your skin that can peel the paint off of your car?
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          2                 As you must already be aware,

          3  malathion is not a safe product. It was used in

          4  combat as a nerve gas in World War II. The Mayor

          5  knew this when he said it was safe. We have proof he

          6  knew it. We have in our possession the Mayor's

          7  handbook on Chem-Bio Warfare with the seal of New

          8  York, Commissioner Safir's name, Howard's name, and

          9  the Mayor's name. This book describes the dangers of

         10  malathion to our environment and to our health. And

         11  I submit this to you, Mr. Chair, to see that the

         12  Mayor knew what he was doing.

         13                 We also have a document dated 9/25

         14  faxed to a doctor who requested information from OEM

         15  for the label of what they sprayed, it was Fyfanon

         16  ULV. The OEM logo, the date and their fax number is

         17  on it. We have provided this Committee with that

         18  fax, and you know in your heart that OEM and the

         19  Mayor knew what they were spraying in our faces.

         20                 This hearing and the joint hearing we

         21  requested by the State Assembly Health Environmental

         22  Committee, through Assemblyman McLaughlin, will

         23  support our contentions that malathion is a

         24  dangerous pesticide and the Mayor, Dr. Cohen and

         25  Jerry Hauer all knew it.
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          2                 The media will realize they have been

          3  focusing on the wrong epidemic.

          4                 We do not want to start a mass panic,

          5  however, we do believe it is time for New Yorkers to

          6  realize how dangerous this Mayor is and to know the

          7  truth about what he did to the City and the real

          8  epidemic we are facing. Did they have concerns to

          9  cover up the virus in fear of the mass panic? Why

         10  wasn't a malathion hot line set up, especially for

         11  health concerns as mandated by the EPA?

         12                 Don't they want to know how many

         13  people were affected by the nerve gas escapade?

         14  Maybe not.

         15                 What is the EPA and CDC doing in this

         16  matter? They seem to be hiding away.

         17                 Speaking of hiding away, when is a

         18  clue a clue? When did the Queens Borough President

         19  Clair Shulman take off for Italy? Immediately after

         20  the Mayor's Press Conference and just before the

         21  first spraying began. When did she return? When the

         22  spraying stopped.

         23                 Whether or not she had plans prior to

         24  three people dying in her borough from an outbreak

         25  of a disease that they still cannot name, and a

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            253

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  spraying program that was poisoning her constituents

          3  is not the issue. Plans can be changed and

          4  cancelled. The issue is she could have changed her

          5  plans instead of jumping ship.

          6                 Could it be that her husband, the

          7  doctor, said let's get out of here, the spraying is

          8  worse than the disease? If he did, he was right.

          9                 I have brought a sample of the

         10  Mayor's spraying escapade. It is a dead Monarch

         11  Butterfly my son found on his doorstep. The Mayor

         12  didn't only target mosquitos, which is what he

         13  should have done, target where the mosquitos breed.

         14                 We wonder if the Mayor was aware of

         15  the NASTA agreement ensuring the safety of the

         16  Monarch Butterfly with three nations, Mexico, Canada

         17  and the U.S., before he killed hundreds, maybe

         18  thousands of them.

         19                 The Monarch Butterfly is seen as a

         20  symbol of freedom and a link to those nations. I

         21  would like to present this to your Committee as our

         22  symbol to help this panel realize that this Mayor is

         23  an exterminator of the worst kind. You see, rational

         24  and sensible exterminators do not waive their wands

         25  of poison to eradicate ants and roaches in the face

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            254

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  of the residents around their bedrooms and dens.

          3  They target the places they multiply in. It doesn't

          4  take a brain surgeon to know this is the way to go.

          5                 I have further evidence, and I will

          6  just tell you, I won't read this because I know I am

          7  getting the let's go.

          8                 In a Newsday article, Sunny Mindel,

          9  the Mayor's henchperson, said that Lancet, the

         10  eminent and respected medical journal, lauded the

         11  City's response to this highly unusual epidemic.

         12  Well, we have the Lancet, and we have submitted the

         13  Lancet article. It doesn't laud anything. It

         14  mentions it. But Miss Mindel missed one Lancet

         15  article, and that is the article that Lancet has out

         16  on Child Leukemia and Aplastic Anemia after

         17  Malathion Exposure.

         18                 Bottom line, I am skipping, I will

         19  continue to protest until this Mayor and his cohorts

         20  stop taking the focus off the dangers of what he did

         21  to the people of this City by diverting their

         22  attention to mosquitos and viruses. I will protest

         23  until the focus is on the fact that more people are

         24  suffering from pesticide poisoning than mosquito

         25  bites and the virus. And I will protest until the
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          2  media stops falling into the trap of thinking the

          3  virus is more important than an epidemic of

          4  malathion poisoning.

          5                 We have victims who are alive,

          6  suffering, to describe how this illness has impacted

          7  on their families.

          8                 Please remember that the resmethrin

          9  used in the trucks and the malathion in the planes

         10  certainly made for an interesting cocktail for us

         11  all to inhale when we were outdoors and our children

         12  were in their school yards and sports fields.

         13                 Many found themselves running from

         14  helicopters, similarly to what is done during a war.

         15  Well, the real war is on now. The war of concerned

         16  doctors, toxicologists, environmentalists, activists

         17  and citizens, who have educated themselves on the

         18  use of pesticides and will be working together in a

         19  movement to ensure that before the spring season

         20  starts and the need to control the mosquitos come

         21  upon us again, the Mayor will not have a kneejerk

         22  political reaction as before, but he will use the

         23  many other non-toxic alternatives there are. He will

         24  no longer be able to satisfy his militeristic needs

         25  by watching the helicopters leaving the site,
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          2  knowing he had the power to order them without

          3  thinking of the consequences.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 MS. SHEPARD: And, oh, by the way,

          8  excuse me, here is the medical research on malathion

          9  that you can look at and see what damage was done.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I have that.

         11                 MS. SHEPARD: You do?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I have that. But

         13  you left my butterfly out.

         14                 MS. SHEPARD: No, that is our symbol.

         15  That is the link. It is so beautiful.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Go ahead, sir.

         17                 MR. McSWEENEY: Good afternoon. My

         18  name is Eugene McSweeney, and I am representing

         19  Assemblywoman Ann Margaret Carrozza, whose district

         20  incorporates Whitestone, Flushing, Bayside,

         21  LittleNeck, Douglaston, parts of Glen Oaks and

         22  Floral Park.

         23                 Like all of you, I am extremely

         24  concerned about the incidence of encephalitis and

         25  West Nile Fever, which has been reported over the
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          2  past several months.

          3                 Since the initial detection, I have

          4  been actively, like most of you, hurriedly trying to

          5  educate myself on the diseases and appropriate

          6  public health responses.

          7                 Some entomologists and disease

          8  control experts indicate that global warming

          9  combined with the surge of global commerce and

         10  destruction of our rainforests has resulted in the

         11  travel of microbes and pathogens, which introduce

         12  diseases to areas where they were previously

         13  unknown.

         14                 As municipalities and counties across

         15  the state scramble to implement strategies, to

         16  combat the spread of the new diseases, the pesticide

         17  malathion came in too active and overactive use.

         18                 I believe that legitimate concerns

         19  have been raised regarding possible long-term health

         20  affects from breathing malathion. In this respect

         21  the encouraging news is that malathion, unlike the

         22  other pesticides, is water soluble and therefore is

         23  unable to be stored in the body. But as with any

         24  chemical substance, toxicity is predicated upon

         25  concentrations. I am unaware of any rigorous
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          2  clinical trials which measure the safety of

          3  malathion in the concentration used in the recent

          4  spraying.

          5                 I believe that the best response at

          6  this point is to take advantage of the cool weather

          7  which buys us some time to learn as much as we

          8  possibly can about malathion and other pesticides,

          9  so that the spring thaw finds us all better informed

         10  and in a better position to evaluate responsible and

         11  effective approaches to this public health issue.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 MS. BERGASH-SNOW: I am Stephanie

         16  Bergash Snow, leader of the Environmental

         17  Organization SAFE New York City, Seeking

         18  Alternatives For the Environment.

         19                 In the past few weeks our group has

         20  been successful in introducing a resolution which I

         21  have here, originally passed by Community Board 2 in

         22  Manhattan.

         23                 We have taken this resolution to the

         24  Upper West Side Board and we have taken it to the

         25  Upper East Side Board. The Upper West Side total
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          2  Community Board voted this unanimously. The points

          3  that are in here deal with the past, as that people

          4  weren't given proper notification for the sprayings,

          5  that the playgrounds and areas where children play

          6  were not correctly cleaned, and a most important

          7  statement at the end that was unanimously passed by

          8  the Community Board 7 in the Upper West Side, that

          9  Manhattan urges our Mayor to stop referring to

         10  malathion as harmless.

         11                 We now want to take this a step

         12  further. I am to go to Community Board 7 tonight in

         13  Queens, they have asked me to come to bring the

         14  resolution in hopes that addendums can be put on

         15  this resolution which will create this panel

         16  everybody is talking about, which I think is a very

         17  good idea, because we have to have ourselves

         18  together for next spring, so that we can't have, as

         19  the committee that was just here before said, spray

         20  us again with this toxic chemical.

         21                 I speak as a citizen. I speak of

         22  myself as somebody who has somewhat common sense,

         23  what doesn't make sense to me is even though some

         24  people have died, and I am sorry those people died,

         25  the number seems so small in a city so big, and then
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          2  to go and spray the whole city of 8 million and the

          3  amount of people who, even if we took one percent of

          4  the people who will be affected by the toxins, it

          5  comes out to 80,000, what is usually the case is ten

          6  to 15 percent of the people will get sick. So, that

          7  is an enormous number of people, and this small

          8  amount -- and I have read the New York City Health

          9  Department's report, which reports this as a mild

         10  illness, and basically that nobody gets sick. In

         11  fact, they don't even know it goes into them and

         12  they become resistant to this illness in the future,

         13  rather than having this illness go away and making

         14  our immune systems come down with the use of these

         15  toxins.

         16                 I come representing all the ones who

         17  could not be here. The injured parties to the

         18  spraying of lethal clouds of malathion and

         19  resmethrin, Anvil, Scourge, over our city and

         20  beyond, clouds of poison that do not discriminate in

         21  just harming mosquitos, but take over pets and

         22  children and the population.

         23                 I come here to represent the ones no

         24  one seems to listen to, no city officials, the

         25  Public Advocate's Office, no top media, the TV or
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          2  the press. I tried everybody. In fact, I tried to go

          3  over to Gracie Mansion which is in my neighborhood

          4  and I got too sick walking into the park there, but

          5  I sent the Mayor the facts with all of the

          6  information on malathion just as a citizen, just in

          7  case he didn't know.

          8                 I said I am a neighbor, dear Mayor,

          9  the caretaker for the Conservancy of the Alice in

         10  Wonderland Garden for many years, I am a designer

         11  and educator. I was sprayed by accident with

         12  malathion 18 years ago in Buffalo New York.  I now

         13  cannot enter Central Park until winter or risk

         14  serious results to my health.

         15                 It took me 12 years to get my health

         16  back. I am sincerely concerned for your health and

         17  the health of your family.

         18                 Please take a moment to read this

         19  expert advised information. Please know, I also have

         20  access to research from a successful project in

         21  Buffalo that uses safe alternatives to successfully

         22  control mosquito populations.

         23                 Thank you.

         24                 I know that when I lived in Buffalo,

         25  and Jimmy Griffin was the Mayor, not only would he
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          2  answer my telephone calls immediately, but he knew

          3  that I stood for good things, so I felt a little bit

          4  left out in this bigger city, which is the city I

          5  was born in.

          6                 Our concerns trying to protect our

          7  liberty and the right to breathe fresh air, I need

          8  to speak for the liberty of the people. If we lose

          9  the legalized rights of liberty to have fresh air,

         10  we will, as Americans have little left.

         11                 My country tis of thee, sweet land of

         12  liberty, for thee I weep.

         13                 I weep for the butterflies who fell

         14  out of the sky by the hundreds, in my beloved and

         15  now toxic Central Park.

         16                 I weep for all the children on the

         17  playing fields of Staten Island and Roosevelt

         18  Island, who got sprayed directly, just as I did; for

         19  all the pregnant women in whatever stage of

         20  pregnancy directly or indirectly sprayed, thee I

         21  weep; and for all of the mothers who called me who

         22  are so afraid for their children, and rightfully so.

         23                 For a man who called me who went

         24  blind in one eye for two days, and he was so

         25  frightened, for thee I weep.
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          2                 I weep for the policemen who followed

          3  the spray trucks not knowing the harm unprotected.

          4                 I weep for Oscar, my postman, who has

          5  to walk through the toxic streets to deliver the

          6  mail.

          7                 And I weep for the enormous number of

          8  citizens who don't even know their immune systems

          9  will have been compromised and will slowly get sick

         10  like I did when I was sprayed.

         11                 I also weep for all of the people

         12  here and I wish the Council was here, for their

         13  children and their grandchildren, because we have

         14  all been sprayed by the same stuff, and no matter

         15  what political party, rich or poor.

         16                 Please meet with me and some of our

         17  people so I can connect you with the top alternative

         18  experts, especially the ones even in this state, in

         19  Buffalo, from where I spent 30 years of my life.

         20                 It is written on the base of the

         21  Statue of Liberty, "give me your tired, your poor,

         22  your huddled masses yearning to breathe free."  Emma

         23  Lazarus wrote this of the immigrants who came a

         24  century ago with a will and a wish to breathe the

         25  fresh air and liberty of this country.
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          2                 I hope now after a century the

          3  irresponsible use of these poisons makes we, the

          4  ones to look elsewhere, as Americans to breath fresh

          5  air without worry.

          6                 Perhaps we can look to you on the

          7  Health Committee to help seek healthier alternatives

          8  for next spring and beyond, programs of integrated

          9  pest management and larvicides as talked about

         10  today, done in many major American cities and

         11  states.

         12                 When I came in as a designer, I

         13  looked up above you and I think this is really where

         14  it is at, it says: "A government of the people, by

         15  the people and for the people", I feel like we are

         16  losing that. Please help us feel the hope that we

         17  still have that.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I want to thank

         20  you all. Let me just say that I, more than once,

         21  remind my colleagues and others, but let me just say

         22  this, I really appreciate the testimony but this

         23  doesn't end after you leave here. And I must tell

         24  you that, to address those concerns, to address the

         25  things you have been talking about, is an ongoing
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          2  concern, it just cannot be when one presents a

          3  testimony that sounds good, looks good, and then I

          4  repeat, there are layers that are just as equal in

          5  implementing not what you are seeking, that nobody

          6  -- that is not in place. Because clearly, if you

          7  listen to the testimony, you have done your homework

          8  in terms of federal government, the state and what

          9  have you, and where we recite all of the litany, and

         10  I suggest, just as you are challenging me, as the

         11  Chair of this Committee, I challenge all of those

         12  who have come before us, as to whether you are just

         13  John Doe, the public, or representing elected

         14  officials, or elected officials or appointed.

         15                 MR. SHEPARD: May I tell you, Mr.

         16  Chair, we sued --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Excuse me.

         18                 MR. SHEPARD: We just filed notice.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Excuse me. Let me

         20  just get finished, okay?

         21                 One thing we must learn, not everyone

         22  is against you. And sometimes when you have people

         23  that would listen to you, even though you are taking

         24  no position, you tend to get it all to that one

         25  person, when I repeat, my frustration is that I have
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          2  to deal with a body of members of which you need 26

          3  votes to do anything. And I am the Majority Whip and

          4  I do the headcounting. So I want to be clear. And I

          5  don't have to apologize nor say anything, although I

          6  know one thing, as I refer to the budget, I

          7  challenge you to look at the budget since I have

          8  been the Chair of this Committee, and you will see

          9  the Health issues, Health services, has quadrupled

         10  to what it was before.

         11                 Now, that is me as an individual

         12  because I am the chair. But I repeat, I need, of the

         13  nine members, of which I am one, and I need 26 out

         14  of 51. So, the challenge is on all of us.

         15                 And I repeat, I am very frustrated

         16  with mandates of the federal government and the

         17  State. And I repeat, I had the State Department of

         18  Health sitting here, I had the Centers for the

         19  Disease Control, and I must tell you that so far

         20  everyone relies or refers to them, and I welcome,

         21  because I was a member of the state assembly for six

         22  years before I came here, I welcome my colleagues on

         23  the state level having a joint hearing, not only in

         24  the assembly side, but on the other side too.

         25  Because these are health issues, and I must tell
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          2  you, we started with a local issue, which now they

          3  are conceding, and I don't mean you, they, who sat

          4  there before you, that this is no longer a regional

          5  issue anymore. Now it is a national issue. Why?

          6  Because the birds are flying some place else.

          7                 So, I just want to be clear because I

          8  do sit here and that is my job and I will take it.

          9  If you can't take the heat in the kitchen, get out

         10  of it.

         11                 MS. BERGASH-SNOW: Can I say something

         12  to that?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, you don't

         14  have to. Let me be clear.

         15                 MS. BERGASH-SNOW: All right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I think after

         17  this hearing it doesn't end here. So when you ask me

         18  questions you are asking the wrong person. There are

         19  other players that you need to ask those questions

         20  of.

         21                 MR. SHEPARD: For the movement, many

         22  of them left but the people in this room have become

         23  a movement. It is almost like the Vietnam war.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I welcome it.

         25                 MS. SHEPARD: Well, you are going to
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          2  see it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I repeat. I want

          4  to make sure I see similar hearings on the state

          5  level and on the federal level, and I must tell you,

          6  when you start seeing that coordination -- I mean, I

          7  heard them say about a task force, believe me I hope

          8  so. You know why? I hope to see money from the

          9  federal government, I hope to see money from the

         10  state, and as long as I am the chair I will make

         11  sure that I match it.

         12                 But what is happening around here is

         13  that we are addressing certain things, while the

         14  others tend to find priorities on other issues.

         15                 So, having said that, I want to be

         16  clear. I want to be clear, okay? These hearings are

         17  for you to come and to testify. I thank you for

         18  that. And with all due respect, I hope that the next

         19  month, as we move ahead, and as you know, they even

         20  said they are coming back here before November, and

         21  they are talking about April, and I heard you

         22  mention about what is going to happen next year or

         23  the season, we better do it together and that is

         24  what I am saying.

         25                 MS. SHEPARD: Well, the Green Party

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            269

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  has taken a lead --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good. Mozel tov

          4  on the Green Party, mozel tov on your grandchild, I

          5  still say I am ready to work with anybody, okay?

          6                 MR. ORENGO: The next panel will be

          7  Dr. Carolyn Dean, Laurie Evans, Kathleen Quain, and

          8  Pamela Hadad-Hurst.

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

         10  Some of us have to leave by 4:00.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Excuse me, sir.

         12  Listen. Listen. Let's go. Call them again.

         13                 MS. ORENGO: Laurie Evans, Kathleen

         14  Quain, Pamela Hadad-Hurst, and Sister Haniyfa Ali.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let's just get

         16  something straight. Let me tell you what the problem

         17  is here, folks, all right? You don't set the rules,

         18  we do. Number one.

         19                 Number two, in fairness to everybody

         20  who signed up this morning, which I agree with you,

         21  if I start now saying, well, let her go on because

         22  she has to catch whatever it is, then I am going to

         23  have somebody else a half hour after you leave tell

         24  me the same thing. So, unfortunately, I am the bad

         25  guy, the rules are set, the names are called. If you
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          2  are not here, I am sorry.

          3                 Please, let's go. Why don't we just

          4  identify ourselves first for the record and then

          5  proceed with the testimony.

          6                 Madam. Go ahead and push the button.

          7                 MS. QUAIN: My name is Kathleen Quain,

          8  I have a background in social work and psychotherapy

          9  and I work as a disease reduction specialist in the

         10  Professional Health Center and I have a private

         11  practice here.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you, Ma'am.

         13                 MS. EVANS: Hello. I am Laurie Evans

         14  and I live in Upper Westchester, New York.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         16                 Just push the red button. Good, now

         17  you are on.

         18                 SR. HANIYFA ALI: My name is sister

         19  Haniyfa Ali. I am sorry, I didn't hear you. The way

         20  you pronounced my name I didn't respond.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I apologize.

         22                 SR. HANIYFA ALI: Okay.

         23                 And I am here representing community

         24  concern in the five boroughs and Protect Harmony and

         25  we are a Citywide grassroots organization.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Ma'am.

          3                 MS. HADAD-HURST: Hi. I am Pam

          4  Hadad-Hurst, I am the Executive Director of the New

          5  York Coalition for Alternatives to Pesticides.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay. Go ahead.

          7                 MS. QUAIN: Thank you for this

          8  conversation, and your diplomacy. I am speaking for

          9  many women who have suffered from breast cancer, and

         10  I want to recommend for the press and everyone here

         11  there is a new book coming out called the Chemical

         12  Exposure and Breast Cancer. It is by a Doctor, MD.,

         13  Dr. Jannette Sherman, her Email is Toxdoc JSOL.com.

         14  Also another reference is Safe to Use.com.

         15                 I would like to say that there is

         16  much question with New Yorkers, there is a big

         17  conversation, I am sure you are aware of it, between

         18  Alipack Medicine (phonetic) and Interactive and

         19  Complimentary Care. There are many people choosing

         20  homeopathy and acupuncture to support their healing

         21  process from cancer and other diseases. They have a

         22  significant question right now regarding mosquitos

         23  or malathion, which is the greater evil.

         24                 In World War II, Nazi nerve gas

         25  derivatives and organophosphate malathion has
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          2  demonstrated cancer-causing capability since 1979.

          3                 It also has and may cause mental

          4  diseases such as schizophrenia, and depression,

          5  birth defects, genetic damage, endocrine disruption,

          6  asthma poisoning, fatalities attributed to

          7  respiratory failure and heart disease.

          8                 I am going to skip over points that

          9  have already been made here.

         10                 Malathion persists in the environment

         11  and is absorbed through physical contact of up to 30

         12  days. It also persists longer in City environments

         13  where there is not the nature for it to be absorbed

         14  into.

         15                 So, the City's misleading rhetoric

         16  that this poison is benign, short-acting pesticide

         17  from which people can avoid the harmful effects by

         18  closing windows and doors for three hours after the

         19  malathion spraying is an immoral public health

         20  statement, which many New Yorkers feel, and I

         21  welcome the stop of misinformation and misleading

         22  the public by the media.

         23                 The repeated sprayings, in addition

         24  to causing outward immediate symptoms that New

         25  Yorkers have been reporting, include wheezing, chest
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          2  tightness, nausea, vomiting, diarrhea, abdominal

          3  cramping, weakness, fatigue, involuntary muscle

          4  spasm, high blood pressure, anxiety, restlessness,

          5  involuntary muscle spasm, insomnia, confusion,

          6  headaches, flu-like symptoms, fever and visual

          7  abnormalities.

          8                 Silently and slowly the chemical

          9  warfare malathion disrupts the human nerve

         10  transmission, destructively affecting your mind,

         11  emotions and physical health. It diminishes the

         12  activities of the enzymes involved in the body's

         13  natural detoxification function, impedes the liver's

         14  ability to detoxify impairing the immune system.

         15                 It also resides in our fatty tissues

         16  and stays there and there has been no effort by the

         17  City to lead a detoxification movement. And the

         18  detoxification and the physical body happens to the

         19  lungs, the liver, the lymphatic system, the kidneys

         20  and that would be advisable at this point for the

         21  damage that has already been done.

         22                 The chemical impurities which have

         23  been found to weaken the immune system function in

         24  malathion, including the weakening of the body's

         25  ability to fight viruses and germs, which is exactly

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            274

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  why the spray supposedly was used in the first place

          3  to fight a virus but the spray malathion weakens our

          4  natural ability to do that in the first place.

          5                 So, we also will find possibly a risk

          6  of colds and infections of many kinds this winter.

          7  Physicians, chemists, toxicologists, who are

          8  unaffiliated with the New York City government or

          9  business interests assessing Mayor Giuliani's use of

         10  malathion to declare war on the mosquitos

         11  responsible for the West Nile-like virus consider it

         12  to be ill-conceived and a hazard to public health

         13  and the environment.

         14                 There are so many alternatives that

         15  could have been used. There is a mosquito magnet

         16  which has been marketed by the Internet by American

         17  Biophysics which is based in East Greenich, Rhode

         18  Island.

         19                 This device is the size of a gas

         20  barbeque and makes a plume of carbon dioxide that

         21  attacks mosquitos, sucks them into the small vacuum

         22  where they dehydrate and die within a day.

         23                 The Coast Guard has used Mosquito

         24  Magnet in the Bamahas at the Grand Inigua Station

         25  (phonetic) where the mosquito problem has been so
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          2  bad that it decided the land was unhabitable.

          3                 The government officials there

          4  described this device as being amazing. They were so

          5  surprised at how well it worked.

          6                 On Sanibel Island in Florida, the

          7  adult mosquito population before the pesticide

          8  poison bombing was consistently less than the day

          9  after bombing because the mosquitos can replenish

         10  faster than their natural predators as in dragon

         11  flies, fish frogs, giant waterbugs, bats, spiders,

         12  birds, ants, snails, and water scorpions that feed

         13  on mosquitos.

         14                 An alternative could be that we could

         15  bring natural predators into New York City, such as

         16  bats that eat mosquitos.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Would you wrap

         18  up, please?

         19                 MS. QUAIN: Sure.

         20                 I want to emphasize again the need

         21  for all New Yorkers, and anyone who has visited here

         22  during the spring to detoxify, even go to the local

         23  health food stores and they can help you with that.

         24                 And that we all support our

         25  technology working with the intelligence of nature
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          2  instead of exploiting nature.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

          5  much.

          6                 MS. EVANS: My name is Laurie Evans. I

          7  live in Crotona, Northern Westchester, I am the

          8  mother of two children. We have just formed

          9  Westchester Against Pesticides. My husband works in

         10  New York City, and I have been working for decades

         11  for a renewable, sustainable environment.

         12                 I have a few questions. One,

         13  I have a list of the summary of vital statistics for

         14  the City of New York City. Now, encephalitis itself

         15  is not a disease, it is a swelling of the brain

         16  which can be caused by many different things. If you

         17  look at this, in '96 there were four cases, '97 and

         18  '98 14 cases, what I am wondering is how was this

         19  ever declared a health emergency? And the scare

         20  tactics and the fear that they have used to create

         21  this problem, which I am not convinced exists, and I

         22  do not believe them, because if I can't believe them

         23  with the toxicity of the materials they are using, I

         24  am convinced of the rest of it.

         25                 The other issue is fear. And as a
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          2  parent I had to make the decision, we live in a very

          3  tick-infested area, do I give antibiotics every time

          4  we find a tick on us? And I decided ten years ago

          5  that my motto was first do no harm. Respect the

          6  interconnectedness of all things and never, ever

          7  cause more damage.

          8                 Last night, by the way this morning

          9  in the testimony they were saying that the

         10  synthetics pyrethroid, Anvil and Scourge, are less

         11  toxic, and that may be true, but they are still

         12  toxic. We have the labels for the Material Safety

         13  Data Sheets, and last night I drove through where

         14  they were spraying not knowing on my way to a

         15  meeting in Westchester, and I am still having dry

         16  eyes, my tongue feels dry and coated, I had a

         17  tingling throat.

         18                 When I called the Westchester hot

         19  line to ask them what about asthmatics, they said,

         20  well, maybe they should stay in, wear masks and

         21  consult their allergists or MDs before the spring,

         22  but what were they to do?

         23                 Another thing that I wanted to say

         24  here. I have a letter, I called one agency, they

         25  said because we are funded we cannot completely come
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          2  out against this. This is a letter, and normally I

          3  get permission, but this woman is a scientist, a

          4  biologist, this is from Connecticut. She wrote to

          5  her first Selectman in Town Hall in Westport:

          6                 "I am writing to alert you of the

          7  dangers of resmethrin to the environment and public.

          8  Many environments believe that press releases

          9  regarding Anvil and Sourge circulating now are

         10  misinforming the public by overstating the dangers

         11  of viral strains, which post a slight threat to a

         12  small portion of the population, and downplaying the

         13  dangers to the environment, including humans and

         14  wildlife of widespread pesticide spraying.

         15                 Unfortunately due to the policies of

         16  the organizations for whom they work, these experts

         17  are gagged from speaking out about the situation.

         18                 I have been asked as a scientifically

         19  trained citizen to bring these issues to public

         20  officials and the press, and she goes on to talk

         21  about the test toxicity of Anvil and Scourge and to

         22  call an immediate halt to all aerial spraying. Which

         23  I don't know if you can do in Westchester but the

         24  one point I would like to give in ending comments --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Did you ask me if
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          2  I live in Westchester?

          3                 MS. EVANS: No. I don't know if you

          4  can call Westchester. Westchester Counties and the

          5  surrounding counties have been influenced by what

          6  New York City has done, and I would ask, while this

          7  hearing is happening, until we collate this

          8  information that if you can, to call an immediate

          9  halt in the surrounding areas to the spraying, and

         10  --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: The answer to

         12  that is no.

         13                 MS. EVANS: You can't do that?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: We do not have

         15  jurisdiction or power within the Charter. We are

         16  just creatures like so is Westchester County.

         17                 MS. EVANS: In all of my years of

         18  being an activist, I have never felt such a personal

         19  assault on me, my home and our environment.

         20                 We need to ask more questions, to

         21  disseminate accurate information to the public to

         22  list the labels and material safety data sheets in

         23  all the media and to ensure that aerial spraying

         24  never happens again.

         25                 I will do everything in my power to
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          2  do this. In every deliberation we must consider the

          3  impact on the next seven generations. Our group does

          4  not have money or politics, the best interests of

          5  our community, the help of people and wildlife at

          6  heart, we will continue to work together with every

          7  county, City, state involved in this locally until

          8  we put an end to this.

          9                 Thank you for your time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: But to answer

         11  your question, the State Commissioner of Health can

         12  direct and order a municipality to cease whatever

         13  they are doing. That is where the State Constitution

         14  gives them that power.

         15                 MS. EVANS: How can we get a state

         16  hearing immediately? How can those of us who are

         17  here --

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Madam, I just

         19  answered your question. I am just here to hear the

         20  testimony, okay?

         21                 MS. EVANS: Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You have your

         23  problems in Westchester, I have my problems in the

         24  City.

         25                 MS. EVANS: I understand. But you said
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          2  that that could help you too --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Excuse me. You

          4  asked me a question, I am giving you an answer. The

          5  only one that has the power under the State

          6  Constitution, because of the way the government with

          7  the federal gives the power to the state, it is the

          8  State Commissioner of Health, she, Dr. Novello, can

          9  direct a municipality, town, village, if she feels

         10  it is in violation of the state constitution.

         11                 Madam.

         12                 SR. HANIYFA ALI: Ms. Shepard, our

         13  organization, our organization has done extensive

         14  research and we have had experience with pesticides

         15  and nerve gases before when I worked with community

         16  concern in Atlanta Georgia, we were up against a

         17  chemical company called AZS, which was owned by

         18  ToyoSoto, a Japanese multi-national corporation. We

         19  couldn't even get the state to do the health survey

         20  of that Atlanta -- there were many communities there

         21  that were affected by constant leaking of things

         22  similar to malathion or nerve gases. And believe me,

         23  you can be sure that where you see those kinds of

         24  toxins in the environment, there is an increase in

         25  mental health problems and youth violence and
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          2  domestic violence, and maybe some of our approaches

          3  to some of these problems are misplaced. Maybe what

          4  we need to do is start looking at the real solutions

          5  and not dealing with symptomatology.  The real

          6  cures, like clean air, clean water, clean earth and

          7  clean food.

          8                 I want to read one part that I have

          9  to say here today and I would like you to bear with

         10  me because there are a lot of points and we are

         11  focusing on an overview. Some of our points have

         12  been made here today, and we really appreciate all

         13  of the people today that we are testifying with who

         14  have expressed in great detail and with wonderful

         15  ability to speak, you know, at heart.

         16                 We would like to not address silence,

         17  because, as Lincoln said, sometimes silence can be a

         18  crime. There are a lot of people that aren't here to

         19  day, some of them are intimidated. There was an

         20  article on October 10th in the New York Times

         21  entitled The Mayor Is Going To Get You For That,

         22  saying that some people are afraid to speak their

         23  mind because of reprisals, et cetera, however, the

         24  Mayor himself says he is not afraid to speak and we

         25  don't see why we should be either.
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          2                 Now, our main concern is not just

          3  with malathion coming into the environment, but the

          4  fact is that we are subject to a lot of other toxins

          5  here in New York City, like MTBE. The report has

          6  recently come out in the Borough of Brooklyn where

          7  our Borough President, Mr. Golden, was ticked off,

          8  he didn't get to go to Rome or wherever Ms. Shulman

          9  went.

         10                 We have MBTE in the water, because

         11  there are huge spills in Northern Brooklyn, Southern

         12  Brooklyn, and our pipes are old and cracks in them.

         13  That was added into our gasoline to give us less

         14  ozone days. How many days of this summer when we

         15  didn't have ozone? And that gets into our drinking

         16  water, and it is 33 times more soluble than gasoline

         17  and we are drinking it and maybe we are bathing in

         18  it. It goes through our skin like a chemical warfare

         19  agent. Then the malathion, you add that in and add

         20  in some of the things, the artificial dyes and the

         21  artificial colors that are in the colored water and

         22  the junkfood, that are specifically, according to

         23  Max Gomez, channel 4, marketed to minority

         24  communities. They are colorful and they are cheap.

         25                 And then also, we have information
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          2  about West Nile from a former young Lord Juan

          3  Gonzalez, I am sure many of you are familiar with

          4  him. And one of the first articles to break from the

          5  Caribe News, with all of the empirical evidence that

          6  malathion was dangerous. So there is no way that

          7  Mayor Giuliani could say that he didn't know and

          8  certainly he was warned by the State Attorney

          9  General who called Corporation Counsel and told him

         10  to stop saying it is harmless, but if you listen to

         11  the rate of the recording, today is October 12th,

         12  from the hot line, you are going to find that it is

         13  still telling you that it is all right in the levels

         14  that you are getting it in.

         15                 But the fact is that is true if you

         16  are talking about a rat that you experimented on,

         17  but a human being, like all of us in this room, may

         18  have hundreds of chemicals that we have been exposed

         19  to and that are in our bodies that wouldn't bed in a

         20  cadaver that we might pull out of a grave from 100

         21  years ago and do an autopsy on. We have all of these

         22  multiple exposures to a multiplicity of toxins. They

         23  may be level, but they all add up and we end up with

         24  environmental sicknesses, like the Gulf War

         25  syndrome. And this makes us perfect candidates for
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          2  not only anyone who is interested in looking at

          3  malathion which is in this chemical warfare manual,

          4  which Ms. Shepard gave to you, finding out, you

          5  know, just exactly what the effects of it are, how

          6  does it interact with your high blood pressure

          7  medicine, how about if you are on HIV/AIDS

          8  three-drug cocktails, or any of the other

          9  medications that people take? You know, the EPA, or

         10  the federal government, I am not sure which agency,

         11  I believe it is EPA, said the malathion study isn't

         12  due out until next year. Well, maybe we are the last

         13  round of that study, as well as a good look at maybe

         14  whatever West Nile virus is and how it affects

         15  people.

         16                 We are disturbed about things like

         17  the use of the word protocol. People in Queens

         18  cannot find out what it is because of protocols.

         19  What does that mean? We have no idea what protocols

         20  means in this particular case. We know there are

         21  protocols to how to spray malathion. For instance,

         22  you never spray it on a flower, because the

         23  honeybees go to the flower. We don't see any

         24  protocols for malathion spraying on the bag that we

         25  have from the hardware store, as Mr. Hauer said,
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          2  this is the way you do it - no, there is nothing

          3  about aerial spraying and spraying human beings and

          4  buildings and whole cities and Central Park.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Can you sum up,

          6  please?

          7                 SR. HANIYFA ALI: Yes, I shall.

          8                 You know, we have these great

          9  concerns about all of these add-mixtures of

         10  chemicals, like the Gulf War Syndrome, and we have a

         11  lot of complaints like everyone does. Our

         12  neighborhoods in Brooklyn, many of them were told in

         13  Brooklyn that we wouldn't be sprayed on September

         14  9th, and the protocols also say don't spray when it

         15  rains, but they cannot spray with only an hour's

         16  notice, those windows were open, their children were

         17  in the street, and then it rained for 12 hours, so

         18  we know that got in the water supply. And then they

         19  tell us, well, it breaks down in 24 hours, but they

         20  don't tell you that when it breaks down in 24 hours

         21  sometimes it breaks down into something that is far

         22  more toxic, and then the malathion itself,

         23  especially when it hits the sun, you know?

         24                 And as far as the hot lines go, I

         25  mean this is ongoing. We have been told we are going

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            287

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  to be sprayed until the frost comes. We had one hot

          3  line number. We didn't have a number to call if we

          4  found a dead crow, and then they tell us they are

          5  only taking crows. They are not taking any other

          6  birds. That bird count you see is incorrect. And

          7  this is what a list of telephone numbers looked

          8  like, I mean that we prepared for different

          9  situations, if you call the ASPCA if you find a dead

         10  cat or a dead squirrel or a dead animal or a dying

         11  bird out of the park, and if you are in the park

         12  then you call 1-800- 201-PARK. You know, it got

         13  quite complicated but this kind of information, the

         14  communication was not there.

         15                 We were also upset because little

         16  children were not told to wash their hands

         17  frequently. We repeatedly asked the hot lines to

         18  please give people that kind of information.

         19  Children touch things out in the world, they eat

         20  potato chips and then they put it in their mouth.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Madam, please.

         22  Would you please wrap up?

         23                 SR. HANIYFA ALI: Okay. All right, if

         24  you will give me a few more minutes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No. You don't set
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          2  the clock for me, please.

          3                 SR. HANIYFA ALI: Okay.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: It is over five

          5  minutes now, I want you to wrap up, but you are not

          6  going to set the tone.

          7                 SR. HANIYFA ALI: Another thing that

          8  we were unhappy with was that Mayor Giuliani told us

          9  that what they did was wonderful and that it caused

         10  peopled not to panic, but this spraying that went on

         11  in Riverside Park was reported in the Times, and by

         12  the way, we are bringing to you to date 70 copies of

         13  our -- we have much larger collections of media tape

         14  and other, you know, information for you as well as

         15  the tape by experts on pesticides as well. Riverside

         16  Park, people were sprayed three times like it was

         17  some kind of chemical warfare. We have testimony

         18  from Italians in Staten Island who told us they were

         19  in the park with their children. There was no

         20  warning at all. People ran screaming from the park,

         21  that sounds a lot like panic to me.

         22                 Now, I want to enter into a dialogue

         23  with the Mayor. I think maybe he has been misled by

         24  the CDC. I think the CDC is very adamant about

         25  wanting to do this malathion and we know sometimes
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          2  the government has experimented on people before,

          3  folks, we have been had. That is how sort of I feel

          4  and we should detox. The young lady is right, drink

          5  distilled water, eat grapes, purify yourself, find

          6  out how to do it, maybe we can turn it around. And

          7  by no means, by no means let them spray us with

          8  malathion again. There has got to be a better way.

          9                 And we address some of those better

         10  ways, Mr. Chairman, in recommendations that we have.

         11  You wanted to know what could be done, well we want

         12  you to do that and we want you to look at Plum

         13  Island too and find out what is going on there.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Fine. If you give

         15  us those recommendations, Ma'am, we would be more

         16  than happy to look at it.

         17                 SR. HANIYFA-ALI: Okay, thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 MS. HADAD-HURST: Hi. My name is Pam

         20  Hadad-Hurst. I am the Director for the New York

         21  Coalition for Alternatives to Pesticides, a

         22  statewide organization that provides training and

         23  education on safer alternatives to toxic chemical

         24  pesticides.

         25                 Thank you. I would like to thank this
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          2  Council for the opportunity to speak. The New York

          3  Coalition for Alternatives to pesticides is alarmed

          4  about the blanket spraying of organophosphate

          5  insecticide malathion in New York City.

          6                 Malathion is a nerve poison that has

          7  been linked to a wide range of health problems, and

          8  the public has been led to believe that malathion is

          9  a harmless substance that can be safely blanketed

         10  across the City.

         11                 This is far from accurate. Pesticides

         12  are chemical poisons designed to kill or repel

         13  living organisms. Though targeted at problem

         14  pesticides toxic affects also impact the health of

         15  humans exposed to the chemicals during application

         16  and to their long-lasting residues, according to the

         17  EPA which registers pesticides, no chemical can be

         18  considered safe even when used as directed.

         19                 Acute exposures to pesticides can

         20  cause rashes, headaches, vomiting, diarrhea, blurred

         21  vision, respiratory distress coma, even death. And

         22  chronic exposures have been linked to occupational

         23  cancers, neurological disorders, endocrine

         24  disrupting affects, immune system dysfunction and

         25  liver and kidney damage.
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          2                 Most at risk are children, the

          3  elderly, pregnant women and people with already

          4  existing illnesses, immune disorders, respiratory

          5  problems. I think one of the points that we want to

          6  make the most strongly is that children are not

          7  being adequately protected. Due to biological and

          8  behavioral differences, children are more

          9  susceptible to pesticide threats than adults are.

         10  Most pesticides can be easily absorbed across

         11  unbroken skin or inhaled and many leave poisonous

         12  residues that can last for days, weeks and even

         13  years on surfaces and in the soil.

         14                 Children breathe twice as much air

         15  and proportionately more skin per unit of body

         16  weight than adults, and have much more intimate

         17  contact with their environments, so their risk of

         18  being exposed to pesticides is significantly higher.

         19                 NYCAP believes that the widespread

         20  and repeated use of malathion poses a significant

         21  public health threat. We do not claim to fully

         22  understand the threat posed by the West Nile

         23  Encephalitis, nor can disease specialists fully

         24  evaluate risks involved with pesticide exposure.

         25                 We need to educate ourselves on both
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          2  sides of the issue before we take action.

          3                 When we hear reports stating that the

          4  West Nile Encephalitis is less threatening than St.

          5  Louis Encephalitis, we have to ask if more people

          6  have been endangered from repeated exposure to

          7  neurotoxic pesticides.

          8                 A comprehensive risk assessment must

          9  be done to evaluate both public health threats

         10  before any future spraying occurs.

         11                 Malathion is a nerve poison that has

         12  been implicated in California as one of the third

         13  most common causes of pesticide-related illnesses,

         14  between 1981 and 1985. It has been reported that

         15  single doses of malathion may effect immune system

         16  response. Symptoms of acute exposure have already

         17  been gone over today but again, headache, difficulty

         18  breathing, respiratory depression, convulsions,

         19  fatality, the list goes on and it is not a very nice

         20  list.

         21                 I have a lot more statistics on the

         22  dangers of malathion. I think one of the things that

         23  really wasn't covered was the half-life of

         24  malathion. It is designed to stay in the air. It is

         25  designed to kill mosquitos so it has got a half-life
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          2  in the air of a day and a half. Now, that is not a

          3  quick breakdown and the half-life and soil I think

          4  can be up to 16 weeks.

          5                 And while we are using this as the

          6  only method of control or the preferred method of

          7  control for mosquitos, we are making a really big

          8  mistake.

          9                 Basically the malathion will work, it

         10  will do the job. You spray it and it knocks down the

         11  adult mosquito population, but then five to ten days

         12  later when the new mosquitos emerge from breeding

         13  habitat that hasn't been addressed, then you have

         14  got to spray again or you have got to address the

         15  problem all over again.

         16                 It is not the best way to go. It is

         17  not the smartest way to deal with the problem, it

         18  really is prevention and we talked a lot about it

         19  that day and there are other communities across the

         20  country that are implementing preventative and least

         21  toxic mosquito control and my organization would be

         22  happy to provide you with some information on some

         23  policies that other -- you know, Suffolk County has

         24  a good mosquito control policy. There are other, you

         25  know, areas around the country, we have got copies
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          2  of lots of them. I couldn't present 30 copies of

          3  them for you today, but I will be happy to go ahead

          4  and mail you some information from what other people

          5  are doing.

          6                 The other quick point I want to make

          7  about the pesticides being used is the pyrethroids

          8  insecticides that have been used over the last few

          9  weeks also pose significant threats to human health.

         10  Some of the symptoms are similar, they are

         11  neurological, they include seizures, numbness,

         12  fatigue, and other affects on the central nervous

         13  system. And some pyrethroids are actually suspect

         14  carcinogens.

         15                 A substance that is often mixed with

         16  pyrethroids to enhance their toxicity and extend

         17  their life is a substance called piperonyl butoxide,

         18  which has been labeled by the EPA as a possible

         19  human carcinogen.

         20                 So, we also want to make sure that

         21  people are aware that there are risks involved with

         22  using the pyrethroids as well.

         23                 Total control of mosquito populations

         24  is impractical, and the widespread use of poisons to

         25  kill adult mosquitos may cause more harm than good.
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          2                 There are more effective

          3  alternatives, including treating breeding areas and

          4  public education. I am wrapping up. I guess, let me

          5  just wrap up by saying that what we are going to ask

          6  for the City to do is to make sure that they provide

          7  accurate and advance warning to residents if future

          8  spraying is to occur. Make sure that residents are

          9  made aware of the dangers of chemicals they are

         10  being exposed to so they can take appropriate

         11  actions.

         12                 We want the New York City Department

         13  of Health to track reports of adverse health effects

         14  through poison control centers, clinics and

         15  emergency rooms. We are asking that public hearings

         16  other than this one be held across the state. And we

         17  really think that it would be very useful for New

         18  York City to put together a pest management board,

         19  that would include environmental interest groups,

         20  physicians, scientists, City public health

         21  officials, municipal leaders, and get all of these

         22  people together in a room to actually have

         23  discussion, rather than just testimony and take a

         24  look at all of the City's pest problems and devise a

         25  way to best management the pest problems.
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          2                 So, thank you for the opportunity to

          3  speak.

          4                 SR. HANIYFA ALI: I have a question,

          5  Mr. Chair. If let's say these mosquitos mutate,

          6  genetically, and then they are no longer responsive

          7  to malathion. During this September/October period

          8  there was an article that appeared in the New York

          9  Times which made an apologia for GDT being harmless,

         10  and are we prepared for whatever is next, for GDT to

         11  come on us?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Madam, honestly,

         13  you are asking the wrong person. You know, in

         14  fairness to me as presiding --

         15                 SR. HANIYFA ALI: I would just hope

         16  that the Health Department would look into this.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Madam, please,

         18  you had your chance. And I repeat, you are asking

         19  the wrong person. But I will get you an answer. What

         20  you better do is make sure before you leave, get the

         21  question, we will get you the answer. I am not Dr.

         22  Cohen.

         23                 SR. HANIYFA ALI: Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: You are quite

         25  welcome, Ma'am.
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          2                 MS. EVANS: You know, the one thing,

          3  no one mentioned Deet, because they have been

          4  recommending people to use Deet for the mosquitos

          5  and I found out through NYCAP that Deet is toxic and

          6  that other people are recommending citronella, if

          7  you are going to use something.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Please

          9  understand, like you, we are just as frustrated as

         10  you are because you start by saying what the federal

         11  government mandates and what they are supposed to be

         12  perfecting, and they are not overseeing it. Then you

         13  turn to the state and you want to know how we make

         14  contact with Westchester. With all due respect, we

         15  are trying to deal with what is happening in the

         16  City and then I will work with anyone, i.e., the

         17  state and the federal government.

         18                 SR. HANIYFA ALI: We are not

         19  frustrated, we are aware.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, I

         21  appreciate that. I am frustrated, how is that?

         22                 SR. HANIYFA ALI: We are angry.

         23                 MR. ORENGO: Sabina Cardali, Steve

         24  Greenspan, Sarah Ziegler and Bob DiBenedetto.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, one by one

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            298

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  why don't you introduce yourself, who you represent

          3  and let's get started.

          4                 MS. CARDALI: I am Sabina Cardali, I

          5  am President of the College Point Civic and

          6  Taxpayers Association.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

          8                 MS. ZIEGLER: I am Sara Ziegler. I am

          9  a mom of an eight-year-old, in Whitestone and I am

         10  from the PTA of PS 79.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         12                 MR. GREENSPAN: My name is Steve

         13  Greenspan, I am a New York State licensed pesticide

         14  applicator. I am also the Executive Director from

         15  the PEST Institute, which is an acronym for the

         16  Pestcide Education Safety and Training.  What I do

         17  is I educate people on the hazards associated with

         18  handling chemicals, such as the ones we are

         19  discussing here today. And moreover than that, I

         20  give a 30-hour mandated course which is required by

         21  the DEC to all applicators who are looking to get

         22  their license.

         23                 MR. DiBENEDETTO: My name is Bob

         24  DiBenedetto. I am one of the founders, I am the

         25  Chairperson of the Earth Save Organization, Earth
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          2  Save Long Island New York City. I am also the Area

          3  Director of the Long Island Healthy School Lunch

          4  Program, and we are a health education and

          5  environmental educational organization.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Ma'am, would you

          7  begin?

          8                 MS. CARDALI: And this was a

          9  rescheduled meeting of September the 22nd. We came

         10  and it was cancelled.

         11                 The start of September brought major

         12  health problems in College as a result of the

         13  mosquitos which carry encephalitis. It started in

         14  the Palace Cove marshland. The construction of the

         15  27 houses in this marshland was quickly started, and

         16  of course this disrupted the mosquitos that inhabit

         17  the marshlands.

         18                 This area should have been sprayed

         19  before the start of this construction. The

         20  insecticide malathion was used after that.

         21                 Incidently, the command post where

         22  OEM was was 138th Street, I live ten blocks away

         23  from there, so I really kept up with it, including

         24  the fact that many people called my house for

         25  information, and it was not a hot line.
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          2                 EPA wanted to ban this chemical in

          3  1997, but was prevented from doing so, due to

          4  intense lobbying by the chemical industry. The

          5  manufacturer of this highly toxic chemical states if

          6  inhaled, remove victim to fresh air and apply

          7  artificial respiration if necessary. If on the skin,

          8  wash thoroughly with soap and water and get medical

          9  attention. If in the eyes, flush eyes with water and

         10  also get a doctor.

         11                 It also appears that there is higher

         12  incidence of infection, pneumonia, respiratory

         13  diseases and destroys the immune system. Malathion

         14  has been shown to weaken a particular type of white

         15  blood cell, that is responsible for fighting cancer

         16  and viral infected cells.

         17                 It also was very difficult for the

         18  general public to ascertain the correct information.

         19  The TV report gave one information, the special hot

         20  line 1-888-663-6692 gave some other information, and

         21  those dispensed at the command post was a third set

         22  of information.

         23                 So, it was pretty difficult, one

         24  would say one time the spraying was going to start,

         25  the other one would say something, so that made it
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          2  difficult for people to stay abreast of what was

          3  going on.

          4                 The Mayor has repeatedly said that

          5  malathion is not dangerous to humans or their pets

          6  as it is being applied and it is harmless. It is

          7  strange that the manufacturer of this chemical does

          8  not agree.

          9                 There is only two mosquito

         10  extermination experts responsible for all five

         11  boroughs of the City of New York and the budget is

         12  only $120,000.

         13                 Suffolk County, which has only

         14  one-fifth of the population of New York City, has 33

         15  mosquito exterminators and a $2 million budget.

         16                 I am going to keep it at that, and

         17  everybody is tired.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 MS. CARDALI: You are welcome.

         21                 MS. ZIEGLER: I don't have a prepared

         22  statement.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That's okay.

         24                 MS. ZIEGLER: I am coming from PS 73

         25  in Whitestone. My son is eight and a half years old.
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          2  The school has some concerns about our children

          3  getting sick. My son has hives, he is wetting the

          4  bed. Children of eight and a half, nine years old

          5  shouldn't be wetting the bed anymore, and it is all

          6  of a sudden.

          7                 I know from my son's diet that he is

          8  a kid, he eats the same thing every day, and I am on

          9  the PTA and we are not getting any information.

         10                 I brought my son to school, the first

         11  day of school, this is just after spring started,

         12  the Mayor said that all of our children's playground

         13  equipment, you know, in our backyard had to be

         14  washed. Our playgrounds have not been washed.

         15                 I just got a letter from the

         16  principal stating September 28th, weather

         17  permitting, the district office will resume outdoor

         18  activities for our children. Where are they getting

         19  their information from? You know, I would like our

         20  schools to be washed. I see nothing with the people

         21  from the Board of Health or anything, for how they

         22  thought that this strain would impact children,

         23  healthy or unhealthy. You know, did they look at

         24  this insecticide before they did it? And they said

         25  they are looking at adults, because children are
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          2  much different than adults, their livers and

          3  everything is still growing, and we are not getting

          4  any information delivered down to the school.

          5                 I am at that PTA every single day

          6  around until about 1:00. I have parents coming in

          7  and asking me. I tell them I don't know. I call the

          8  hot line and they are telling me this is all

          9  perfectly safe. When you hear constant different

         10  opinions, that this chemical is safe, it is not

         11  safe, there are toxic levels. You know, I am not

         12  standing up here as an expert, the only expert that

         13  I am is at a mom and I want to know what is going to

         14  happen to our children. What is going to happen to

         15  the New York City school system, that when all of

         16  these mosquitos start coming out next year, our

         17  schools don't have screens to protect the windows,

         18  our schools are going to be stifling hot. Are the

         19  windows going to be open, are they going to be

         20  spraying? I was sprayed, my son was sprayed because

         21  I was not informed correctly of the time of the

         22  spraying because I live in Whitestone, I was right

         23  there. The two, three-day notices was not at the

         24  beginning of this spraying. You started spraying and

         25  then I went to the deli in the morning, it was
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          2  sprayed only half an hour before that. That is not

          3  informing the public that you are doing this. I

          4  understand you had a problem, but when you are

          5  spraying that many children in New York City, then

          6  the people that are spraying the spray, that the

          7  health people of New York City should look at the

          8  children, they are going to go up and they are going

          9  to sit right where you sit, and I hope that they

         10  grow up and they turn around and they don't look as

         11  they are not unspoken for because we are here to

         12  speak for them.

         13                 I don't judge anybody's actions, but

         14  get all of your information before you start

         15  spraying. Give people accurate information.

         16                 You know, if the President of the

         17  United States would have sprayed the entire United

         18  States, don't you think he was taking a half an hour

         19  out of his time and booked every television set, you

         20  know, so that he could explain this is the chemical,

         21  this is what is going on, this is why we are doing

         22  it.

         23                 I have not seen any of that. It is

         24  what is on the television over here, what is on the

         25  television over there. The parents, we try to turn
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          2  off the TV because our children are afraid of

          3  getting bit by a mosquito. So, you don't want them

          4  upset, so where are we supposed to get our

          5  information from? If we are not able to turn on our

          6  TV set and watch it and all of the news stations are

          7  different.

          8                 That is my only question, and thank

          9  you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Well, since it

         11  was a question let me just say this: Unfortunately,

         12  I can't answer for the Board of Education. I will

         13  tell you I can only speak for myself. When we

         14  started getting information, whenever we got

         15  information, we could share with every Council

         16  Member, I can only speak for myself representing the

         17  North Brooklyn, in the Borough of Brooklyn.

         18                 Every single principal and

         19  administrator in my district, whatever I got, they

         20  got. That is me. So, I can only answer for myself.

         21                 What the others did, you will have to

         22  actually ask not only your Councilperson, but

         23  remember, you also elect a school board. They are

         24  the ones who should be also working hand-in-hand to

         25  give that information out through the
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          2  superintendent.

          3                 M. ZIEGLER: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Now that is the

          5  process. Whether it worked or not, I can't answer

          6  that.

          7                 However, on your first, I believe

          8  part of your question is something that I have no

          9  problem. I don't know who the Councilperson is of

         10  the Whitestone area that you represent, or you live.

         11  I suggest that you write to that person asking about

         12  the hosing down or watering down of the playground

         13  you referred to.

         14                 MS. ZIEGLER: Right.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: And you can send

         16  a copy of that letter to my attention as the

         17  Chairman of the Health Committee. And I will pursue

         18  it in two ways.

         19                 One, I will ask that Councilperson,

         20  and, two, I will work with that Councilperson with

         21  the Department of Health and the Mayor's Office on

         22  Emergency Management, and if it needs to be done, we

         23  will work to get it done. But that is all I can tell

         24  you at this point, because I don't have all of the

         25  information.
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          2                 MS. ZIEGLER: Right. And if you don't

          3  have all of the information, then we certainly don't

          4  as parents.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Yes, sir.

          6                 MR. GREENSPAN: Yes, sir. I just want

          7  to qualify myself a little bit further for your

          8  purposes. I have a bachelor of science,

          9  environmental science from SUNY, College of

         10  Environmental Science and Forestry at Syracuse New

         11  York, which is probably the leading, or one of the

         12  leading premiere colleges in environmental science

         13  today in the country.

         14                 I also have a bachelor of science in

         15  forestry from Syracuse University. I have attended

         16  NYU, I attended their master program in urban and

         17  regional planning. I have got 25 years experience as

         18  a licensed, New York City licensed spray applicator,

         19  although at this point in time I choose to minimize

         20  my choice of using chemicals to the bare bones where

         21  I employ almost most of the time the IPM, which as

         22  we have discussed before is Integrated Pest

         23  Management, for all the obvious reasons, as well as

         24  the health benefits not only to the public, who I am

         25  serving, but to myself as well as an applicator,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            308

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  because why would I want to put myself at risk while

          3  I am applying a chemical on someone else's property

          4  needlessly.

          5                 In addition to which I have been

          6  qualified as an expert testimony in Nassau County

          7  hearings this last week where they were trying to

          8  stop the actual spraying of the chemical, the aerial

          9  spraying of chemicals overall in Nassau County.

         10  Unfortunately, efforts were not successful. And I

         11  don't believe it had anything to do with my

         12  testimony that I didn't offer or didn't enter into

         13  evidence.

         14                 I honestly believe that at this point

         15  in time that like yourself, as well as the judge in

         16  Nassau County, that there needs to be a paradigm

         17  shift to take place for this thing to really kick

         18  in. And what I am talking about is it needs to be a

         19  realization that chemicals are not the solution all

         20  the time. Chemicals become just like the drugs in

         21  society where we all become dependent upon them

         22  because they are easy, it's a quick fix. And rather

         23  than spending the time, maybe it requires diligent

         24  effort and observations, painstakingly done, may be

         25  duplicated over and over again, costing more money,
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          2  politicians don't want to do that, they want the

          3  immediate fix. But chemicals are not the answer,

          4  there are alternatives.

          5                 You know, not spraying would have

          6  been a very nice choice, just as spraying was a

          7  choice, but you had a third choice as well and that

          8  third choice was going with the alternative means.

          9  So, maybe that could be organically based, or

         10  mechanically based, bacterial, insect, such as

         11  dragonflies, bats. They have these mechanical

         12  devices that were actually discussed earlier that

         13  are collecting mosquitos by giving off C02 in the

         14  presence of the temperature stimulating that of a

         15  warm-blooded animal so the mosquito is attracted and

         16  then sucked in.

         17                 None of these things were explored,

         18  and what that reveals to me as an educator, because

         19  I train the people who go out and spray, people like

         20  the companies that did the spraying over the City,

         21  although thank goodness I didn't train any of them,

         22  so it doesn't reflect on me directly, that there

         23  needs to be education done here, not only with the

         24  masses and the people that are out here. But this

         25  entire group right here.
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          2                 A few weeks ago I sat and I spoke

          3  with one of the members on this Council when this

          4  thing had first broken in the media, and I asked if

          5  he knew about the chemicals that were being used, or

          6  if he knew anything at all that was dealing with the

          7  life cycle of the mosquito, and he said no, and I

          8  took half an hour of his time, and yes, I chewed off

          9  his ear, but I gave him a quick-fix synapsis of what

         10  was going on to enlighten him so he had a better

         11  idea in understanding more thoroughly than what he

         12  had before. And I feel that part of the problem that

         13  exists here is that the entire administration, not

         14  just used singly, and I am not singling you out, but

         15  everybody collectively needs to become fully

         16  educated, as to what goes on with chemicals. There

         17  is a mindset that chemicals in general are safe,

         18  because that is the way they are presented on TV. I

         19  mean, you see young children walking in grass that

         20  was treated by a lawn company barefoot or they are

         21  rolling on the lawn. That is not safe.

         22                 These chemicals work by skin

         23  absorption systemically, and if people would

         24  understand what is transpiring is taking place

         25  invisibly that none of us can actually see, feel or
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          2  taste until the affects are witnessed months or

          3  years later.

          4                 What I am doing for you today is I am

          5  going to give you my card, and I am going to offer

          6  to you that I suggest you come take my course. And I

          7  am not going to charge you for it, it's for free.

          8  And it is a 30-hour course that I give for all spray

          9  applicators seeking to become licensed within the

         10  State of New York to go out and apply chemicals,

         11  whether they want to be an aerial applicator, a

         12  termite exterminator, or a landscape grounds

         13  maintenance person.

         14                 So, I strongly suggest and urge you,

         15  not only for you but to give it out for other people

         16  on the Council, and I will conduct a special session

         17  for the entire Council to educate everybody to bring

         18  you all up to speed.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me then,

         20  since you did offer a constructive suggestion. Let

         21  me just be fair, and why don't you just communicate

         22  with me directly this suggestion. You have to

         23  understand, we are governed by ethics rules, and I

         24  believe that anything over $75 we cannot accept.

         25                 However, if it comes from you based
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          2  upon this hearing, of which you volunteer to educate

          3  at least the Committee on Health, I can use that in

          4  the Speaker's Office through our legal people and

          5  see how we can do that without violating the ethics.

          6                 So, instead of individually, which

          7  automatically I will tell you they would say you

          8  can't because if it is over $75 I know the law says

          9  you can't.

         10                 MR. GREENSPAN: It is $74.99.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: All right, you

         12  are getting the message. I would suggest to you then

         13  you communicate as the chair as a follow-up

         14  proposing what you extended as a pro bono to the

         15  City Council Members as we wrestle and deal with

         16  this situation, so that for the future we have a

         17  better understanding on whatever materials will be

         18  used henceforth.

         19                 And once I have that, I will show you

         20  that I will process that through the Council.

         21                 MR. GREENSPAN: Okay, thank you. If I

         22  may just continue.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: If the Council

         24  itself had actually taken this course, and you were

         25  empowered with the information that I give out to my
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          2  students, none of the dissemination that has taken

          3  place that created the mass confusion in this area,

          4  I would say most of it probably would not have

          5  happened, because there are protocols and procedures

          6  to be filed, which were established very clearly by

          7  the DEC. There are manuals and things that need to

          8  be followed over time, none of which were adhered

          9  to. Or if they were, they were blatantly disregarded

         10  or ignored at best. And what bothers me is that the

         11  entire administration, there is no one amongst

         12  yourselves who is willing to say, hey, you are doing

         13  it wrong. It has got to be someone from out in

         14  masses where I am just one guy hiding amongst 10

         15  million people, trying to say, hey, look at me, you

         16  are doing it wrong. I am teaching the people how to

         17  do it right, but my voice is very hard to hear over

         18  the voices of all the Council people and

         19  politicians. Plus the media didn't help matters any

         20  because they hyped it up tremendously, adding to the

         21  mass hysteria that was created by this entire thing.

         22                 I want to ask you something, or leave

         23  this thought with you, is that early on I was on

         24  television a few weeks ago, and I raised this

         25  question, and the question is this: If there were
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          2  five or six deaths that resulted out of this

          3  encephalitis scare or West Nile as it is called, and

          4  I am not mitigating or minimizing anyone who died,

          5  because that is not the intent, and I certainly am

          6  concerned about that too, but relative to the

          7  numbers of people that exists within New York City

          8  and Long Island which may be 10 or 12 and a half

          9  million, depending who and how you are counting, you

         10  had five people who are known dead, I fail to see

         11  where the epidemic lies.

         12                 And if you take that same analogy and

         13  if you say, well, if there are only five people that

         14  died, and we have an epidemic here with encephalitis

         15  which mandates that we have to spray the entire City

         16  with malathion, and no neurotoxin and nerve gas,

         17  yet, in a few weeks we are going to be hot into the

         18  influenza season which is also a virus, unlike the

         19  West Nile, it is still a virus, and every year

         20  people die by the hundreds from the influenza virus,

         21  yet there is never an epidemic declared and

         22  certainly there is no Lysol or Malafiance sprayed

         23  anywhere throughout the entire City.

         24                 So, I think there has got to be a --

         25  you know, looking at this thing relative to put it
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          2  in perspective and look at it where it is coming

          3  from. Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

          5                 MR. DiBENEDETTO: I think it is

          6  interesting, first of all, to note that every one

          7  that I have seen testifying here has been speaking

          8  out against these chemicals except for potentially

          9  people whose job it is to defend them. I think that

         10  says something and I hope that comes across really

         11  clear to the people who read these transcripts, or

         12  whoever this gets to. We know it gets to you, and

         13  thank you for that.

         14                 We believe that the risks of

         15  contracting the West Nile-like encephalitis must be

         16  weighed against the long and short-term risks that

         17  the pesticide used will pose to our environment and

         18  our health. Our Departments of Health and the Mayor

         19  have called malathion safe. It is however from our

         20  perspective anything but safe. But misleading the

         21  public about the safety of the chemicals, citizens

         22  are unlikely to take all available precautions to

         23  minimize their exposure. In Suffolk and in New York

         24  City it was clear that people of all ages were out

         25  on the street during and after the spraying.
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          2                 The television news broadcast showed

          3  a truck spraying chemicals as a bicyclist

          4  unsuspectingly rode toward the fog. This unwarranted

          5  level of comfort with blanket spraying as the chosen

          6  method can also forestall the absolutely necessary

          7  implementation of safer preventative methods of

          8  mosquito larval control surveillance and targeted

          9  response.

         10                 Wide scale spraying of pesticides may

         11  also harm a diverse group of naturally occurring

         12  beneficial organisms which themselves can reduce the

         13  pesticide population -- the pest population, I am

         14  sorry. We are playing with the fine balance of

         15  nature. Malathion is not selective in its killing.

         16  Resmethrin, the other pesticide that has been

         17  discussed is a synthetic pyrethroid, it is listed in

         18  the highest category of toxicity to honey bees.

         19                 Earth Saves' moddo is healthy people,

         20  healthy planet. That means that you can't have one

         21  without the other. A polluted environment does not

         22  foster good health in humans.

         23                 The New York Department of Health

         24  representatives have made misleading blanket

         25  statements about the safety of pesticides, and I
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          2  have some questions for these experts.

          3                 One, we know that malathion used in

          4  combination with other chemicals can increase its

          5  toxicity to mammals. I asked them what are the long

          6  and short-term health affects of these so-called

          7  safe chemicals when combined with the other 16

          8  million pounds and 2.4 million gallons of pesticides

          9  used annually in New York State.

         10                 They won't know the answer to this

         11  because they have never studied it. They are the

         12  experts and it has not been researched.

         13                 Number two. Our health authorities

         14  have stated that in prescribed doses malathion is

         15  safe. Given that our health risk with our exposure

         16  to this chemical increases with our exposure to this

         17  chemical, have they considered the following:

         18                 That there are ten to 15 million

         19  pounds of this pesticide malathion being used

         20  annually in the United States. That according to the

         21  FDA, residue analysis, malathion is the most

         22  commonly detected pesticide in food products, and

         23  that in 1988 the EPA estimated that children could

         24  be consuming malathion residues that are 1,133

         25  percent in excess of the amounts currently
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          2  determined to cause adverse affects.

          3                 I don't think they have taken this

          4  into account. And speaking of children, we have

          5  heard a lot about children being more susceptible to

          6  the affects of pesticides, so I won't get into why

          7  that is the case. But another thing we have to look

          8  at is that today's kids are chronically

          9  undernourished. Many of them are overweight, many of

         10  their immune systems are facing the toll that their

         11  diets are taking on them. Most kids eat more than

         12  their weight in sugar every year. Most kids are

         13  eating sugary beverages as their second greatest

         14  form of carbohydrates. Most kids are overeating meat

         15  and dairy products, which as Gary Null had

         16  mentioned, are known to be carcinogenic when you are

         17  eating too many of them. These kids are being served

         18  from the National School Lunch Program, which

         19  determines that meat and dairy have to be sold, and

         20  vegetables are not included in great enough

         21  quantities. These are things that protect their

         22  bodies. So we are hitting them with chemicals and we

         23  are hurting them with their diets.

         24                 If you have seen today's paper, it

         25  says that there is a new study out by the EPA, Study
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          2  Puts Cancer Scare in the Air. It says four of the

          3  City's five boroughs are among the ten regions

          4  nationwide with the highest concentration of

          5  cancer-causing toxins in the air, a new analysis of

          6  government data reveals. They show that every inch

          7  of the City has more than 100 times the cancer risk

          8  level targeted by 1990's Clean Air Act.

          9                 How can a Mayor and a government,

         10  knowing this kind of information, go and spray

         11  pesticides all over indiscriminately in reaction to

         12  a threat which many of us don't see as having been

         13  that great of a threat, relative to the threat

         14  caused by the pesticides.

         15                 This is not to say that we shouldn't

         16  deal with the potential health risk to this virus.

         17  It is, however, to say that we should approach this

         18  issue with a level head and not risk our long-term

         19  health for perceived short-term benefits.

         20                 Haven't we learned enough from our

         21  experiences of DDT, chloridane, asbestos, lead and

         22  radiation, that the symptoms of exposure to

         23  dangerous substances do not always appear

         24  immediately.

         25                 We see tallies of those infected with
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          2  encephalitis. Is there any plan in place to monitor

          3  the health problems associated with the blanket

          4  spraying of pesticides?

          5                 I would suggest as all the others

          6  have that we take a proactive approach. I, and my

          7  other health and environmental education

          8  organizations will do all we can to work with our

          9  Health authorities over the winter to direct them

         10  toward the resources and information necessary to

         11  deal with this health issue in a way that honors and

         12  strengthens our health in the environment.

         13                 And finally, everyone is asking for

         14  non-toxic alternatives now. I think this is exactly

         15  the problem. The CDC, the New York State Department

         16  of Health, the New York City Commissioner of Health,

         17  perceives that there was a problem and reached for a

         18  toxic chemical.

         19                 These are the people we trust to be

         20  on the forefronts of health information. We feel

         21  that these agencies did not fulfill their role as

         22  protectors of the public health. They used a well

         23  thought out but an old kneejerk reaction, which

         24  involves the use of toxic chemicals. They have not

         25  yet understood that the operative phrase of the new
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          2  millennium is better living without toxic chemicals.

          3                 Finally, a board of experts in

          4  alternatives, experts in alternatives should be

          5  armed to teach our health officials about the

          6  effectiveness of alternative approaches and they are

          7  ready and willing.

          8                 Thank you for being here.

          9                 MR. ORENGO: Meg Feeley, Rachel

         10  Epstein, Enid Braun, WM Mordente.

         11                 MS. BRAUN: I am Enid Braun. I am

         12  representing Community Board 2, and I am also

         13  speaking as a citizen.

         14                 MR. MORDENTE: Bill Mordente.

         15                 MR. ORENGO: Rachel Epstein and Meg

         16  Feeley. Frieda Zames, Paul Gillman, Jack Nesbitt.

         17  Knut Masco.  Rivka Lieber.

         18                 Just identify yourselves for the

         19  record.

         20                 DR. ZAMES: I am Dr. Frieda Zames, and

         21  I am the President of Disabled in Action of

         22  Metropolitan New York. It is a Civil Rights

         23  organization, dedicated to improving the legal,

         24  social and economic conditions of people with

         25  disabilities so they may keep complete integration
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          2  into society.

          3                 MS. BRAUN: Hi. I am Enid Braun. I am

          4  from Community Board 2, Manhattan. I am also, I am

          5  going to sort of wear two hats, I am also here as a

          6  citizen.

          7                 MS. LIEBER: Hi. I am Rivka Lieber,

          8  and I represent FCCCAP, Fairfield County Citizens

          9  Concerned About Pesticides in the outlying

         10  Connecticut suburbs of which many of us live and

         11  work here during the day.

         12                 MR. MORDENTE: Bill Mordente. I work

         13  with many organizations, environmental issues, all

         14  over the planet, and I am connected with many

         15  Internet educational processes so that we can save

         16  the lives of human beings on this planet.

         17                 DR. ZAMES: Good morning. Good

         18  afternoon, I should say. Many Disabled in Action

         19  members have multiple disabilities and compromised

         20  respiratory systems. Some have experienced breathing

         21  difficulties since spraying started. We are angered

         22  by the lack of a sustained and funded Department of

         23  Health Pest Control Prevention and Education

         24  Programs to deal with this mosquito-borne, sometimes

         25  fatal illness, a program that does not create
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          2  additional health problems, in an already vulnerable

          3  population.

          4                 DIA members are angered by the

          5  absence of accurate information about malathion. It

          6  is a neurotoxin poisonous to humans and animals. It

          7  is not safe, as the Mayor claims.

          8                 DIA members are furthered angered by

          9  the lack of timely and accurate public notification

         10  of spraying schedules.

         11                 Have City leaders forgotten that when

         12  funding for TB control programs were cut, because TB

         13  was thought to be under control, the City was faced

         14  with the TB crisis, new resistance strains and a

         15  multi-million dollar catch-up program.

         16                 The Department of Health Rodent

         17  Control Program was cut and the City's rat

         18  population exploded.

         19                 Funds were restored only when rats

         20  were sighted on Park Avenue and Grammercy Park. And

         21  the Mayor was running for reelection.

         22                 What will it take to the City's

         23  funding and policy-makers to learn from public

         24  health mistakes of the past, that will prevent the

         25  tragic and costly crises in the future.
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          2                 There are safer and less costly ways

          3  to deal with mosquito-borne diseases. Other

          4  communities have eliminated the need for spraying

          5  through annual prevention programs.

          6                 For example, the distribution of

          7  bacillus impregnated pellets that when placed in

          8  standing water kill only mosquito larvae.

          9  Communities have also initiated successful dragonfly

         10  release programs.

         11                 The short and long-term health

         12  affects of exposure to malathion and other pesticide

         13  toxins on City residents' nervous and respiratory

         14  systems, the high cost of the Mayor's ongoing

         15  spraying program, helicopters, trucks, pesticides,

         16  door to door surveys and blood tests demand a more

         17  rational preventive approach.

         18                 DIA's concerned and harmed and

         19  vulnerable city residents add our voices to the

         20  demand that the City Council and the Mayor restore

         21  the funding and staffing to the Pest Control Bureau,

         22  and require that its public health role in pest

         23  control prevention is never again undermined.

         24                 Thank you. I am leaving this, it has

         25  some enclosures. I just want to say that this
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          2  testimony was prepared by Ann Emerman, even though I

          3  gave it. And I have three copies.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

          5                 MS. BRAUN: Hi. Because I am on the

          6  community board and I am used to sitting in on

          7  meetings, I don't want to repeat everything that

          8  everyone else has said so I am actually, when I read

          9  this resolution, that originated in the environment

         10  committee of Community Board 2, Manhattan, I am only

         11  going to read the "therefore, be it resolved". But

         12  in our whereases, we are mentioning many of the

         13  things everyone else has. I would like to say that

         14  this resolution began in early September and was

         15  passed by the Board on September 23rd. The only

         16  reason I mention the date is that I think it should

         17  be noted that those of us in the community didn't

         18  know where to turn, didn't know how to begin to get

         19  the notice of the elected officials and the

         20  resolution was just sort of this initial response to

         21  this.

         22                 Now, therefore, be it resolved, that

         23  Community Board 2, Manhattan, urges the Mayor to

         24  immediately undertake a high priority aggressive and

         25  accurate program of public notification and
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          2  education, including neighborhood posting outdoors

          3  and in stores and in community centers, both to

          4  prevent exposure of people and animals to malathion

          5  and other insecticides and to enlist the public in

          6  eliminating sources of standing water where

          7  mosquitos breed.

          8                 And be it further resolved that

          9  Community Board 2 Manhattan urges the Mayor and the

         10  City Council to provide funds and authorization to

         11  build up the New York City Department of Health's

         12  Bureau of Pest Control to a level which would permit

         13  it once again to play an important public health

         14  role in pest prevention and public education.

         15                 And be it finally resolved, the

         16  Community Board 2, Manhattan, urges our Mayor to

         17  stop referring to malathion as harmless.

         18                 I would like to say as a citizen that

         19  I see there is a problem in the way this whole thing

         20  was handled in that the Mayor seems unwilling to

         21  work or utilize with the other branches of

         22  government, and as a community board member, for

         23  instance, I know that when we have public hearings,

         24  we have mechanisms for posting, the police can post

         25  no parking signs when there are movie shoots, and in
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          2  fact, during this whole crisis, the precincts were

          3  not notified.

          4                 I know for a fact that Manhattan

          5  South was not notified about the spraying schedules.

          6  In terms of the multilingual issue that was raised

          7  earlier, Council Members generally have

          8  multi-lingual staff, these are all tools that were

          9  this emergency to be handled with the public

         10  interest in mind, the Mayor would have worked with

         11  all of these branches to make sure people

         12  understood.

         13                 I, in fact, called the emergency

         14  telephone number because I have an elderly mother

         15  who has asthma who was planning on visiting from

         16  Michigan. I could not get through when the

         17  television was telling me, you know, prior to the

         18  spraying that the television was telling me was

         19  going to go on. Three days later I finally got

         20  through, and I had two questions.

         21                 Since I live in Lower Manhattan, my

         22  understanding was that it was pyrethrin being used.

         23  I wanted to know the spraying schedule in

         24  anticipation of her visit and I wanted to know what

         25  the risks were associated with pyrethrin.
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          2                 First of all, the nice young woman

          3  who answered the phone knew nothing and immediately

          4  passed me on to a supervisor. The supervisor also

          5  basically didn't have any information, she said that

          6  they in fact didn't know the schedule and that the

          7  schedule could change at any time. So, this is what

          8  good is the information.

          9                 And then she passed me on to a staff

         10  physician who told me point blank he had no

         11  background in toxicology. And in fact I was a little

         12  suspicious because he kept talking about people with

         13  respiratory problems, and I do wonder about a

         14  physician pronouncing respiratory that way. But

         15  anyway, he gave me the number of the poison, which

         16  is the Toxicology Department at the Department of

         17  Health.

         18                 There I was told that pyrethrin

         19  breaks down anywhere from two days to two weeks, and

         20  depending on the weather and the wind, and in fact

         21  the particles would be a trigger for very sensitive

         22  people, and of course that is not defined. And I

         23  mean, I just bring up this personal experience and

         24  say that as somebody who is aggressive about

         25  pursuing the questions, I still found that the
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          2  answers were inadequate.

          3                 So, I just would like to reiterate I

          4  think that where the Council, besides funding the

          5  pest control in terms of prevention, that aspect of

          6  the Public Health Department, I feel there should be

          7  some mechanism that even in emergency forces the

          8  emergency management operations to coordinate in an

          9  active way with all of the other branches of

         10  government.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         12  much.

         13                 MS. LIEBER: Hi. My name is Rivka

         14  Lieber, and I represent a grassroots coalition

         15  called FCCCAP, Fairfield County Citizens Concerned

         16  About Pesticides.

         17                 I represent the communities of

         18  Stanford, Greenwich, Norwalk, Dairian, Westport and

         19  Fairfield County suburbs. We have all been ground

         20  sprayed solely with resmethrin, a synthetic

         21  pyrethroid. I am here to inform you that even

         22  resmethrin has had a serious impact on the health of

         23  our families and especially our children, who are

         24  most susceptible to the side effects of pesticides.

         25  There is no such thing as a safe pesticide.
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          2                 It behooves all of us in Connecticut

          3  and New York to communicate better with each other.

          4  We have many commuters who work here daily, who were

          5  not informed at all of the spraying schedule and

          6  were caught underneath the helicopters as they drove

          7  home.

          8                 For future emergency management

          9  plans, I think it is wise for the media here to

         10  relate all procedures to the surrounding

         11  communities, and Connecticut and Westchester, as we

         12  commute to you every day.

         13                 New York does not live in a vacuum,

         14  and neither does Connecticut.

         15                 Widespread pesticide spraying is

         16  poisoning our families and children. I have a

         17  problem with this notion of low dose being okay. To

         18  me it is like low tar cigarettes, there is still a

         19  label on there, and you still have the right to see

         20  the label.

         21                 Despite the assurances of CDC, health

         22  officials, at the risk of exposure to the virus that

         23  is actually very low, since the very beginning of

         24  this epidemic we have sprayed and sprayed and

         25  sprayed. The risk benefit analysis that the
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          2  officials have presented never seem to really make

          3  sense, and a lot of us here have expressed that

          4  today.

          5                 As a result, we began our own

          6  volunteer action, identifying people who had

          7  exposure symptoms after the streets and

          8  neighborhoods were sprayed.

          9                 With resmethrin we had many exposure

         10  symptoms, and I inform you of these, because if you

         11  do consider alternate chemicals, that this one, too,

         12  this "less toxic pesticide has serious risks and

         13  health exposure symptoms.

         14                 And even in the environmental health

         15  perspective journal on March 1999, it is quoted as a

         16  link between this less toxic pyrethroid pesticides

         17  and breast cancer.

         18                 Lynn Pritchard, a resident of

         19  Westport, was sprayed in Connecticut, and shortly

         20  after her street was sprayed with resmethrin. Ms.

         21  Pritchard and her son Nicholas and her husband felt

         22  a metallic taste in their mouth. She said she later

         23  felt numbness in her fingertips, her forehead and

         24  her throat became hoarse. She has been all over our

         25  Connecticut TV stations.
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          2                 We have other similar reports from

          3  people who experienced excruciating headaches and

          4  severe gastrointestinal problems right after their

          5  streets were sprayed.

          6                 We have reports of children who are

          7  experiencing numbness and tingling in the arms and

          8  legs shortly after the neighborhoods were sprayed.

          9  We have reports of many commuters who had no idea

         10  what New York's schedule was for spraying with

         11  malathion and indeed did suffer from that.

         12                 Pesticides have dangerous health

         13  affects, even at low doses. Just remember the low

         14  tar cigarettes even have warning labels. They are

         15  chemical poisons and cause adverse reactions ranging

         16  from incoordination to twitching.

         17                 Fairfield County residents have

         18  reported many of these symptoms as to recent

         19  sprayings. The Environmental Protection agency and

         20  the national coalition against the misuse of

         21  pesticides have documented the harm of resmethrin,

         22  as well as malathion. Resmethrin is known to be a

         23  hormone destructor, and I will defer to the experts

         24  that explained all of that to you today.

         25                 This chemical poison resmethrin does
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          2  not disappear in sunlight in four hours, and it is

          3  not made of chrysanthemums, they are not spraying

          4  flowers, it is a synthetically-derived pesticide.

          5                 Resmethrin is a chemical poison that

          6  is formulated to be stable and light to increase the

          7  time it is available to kill insects. Resmethrin

          8  toxic effects persist in both soil and water for

          9  well over a month. It harms wildlife, the fish and

         10  other insects.

         11                 Has cancer rates have risen

         12  alarmingly all over the tristate region, we are now

         13  taking a stand. Our children should be able to play

         14  outside without being unnecessarily exposed to these

         15  dangerous chemicals.

         16                 We urge you to help stop the spraying

         17  of the New York Tristate region. We do not live in a

         18  vacuum. Look at the well documented reports and

         19  studies everyone has given you. By spraying us with

         20  chemical poisons, the officials have created a

         21  threat to the human health environment that far

         22  outweighs the threat of encephalitis.

         23                 Environment experts, chemists, and

         24  pesticide watch experts that had been here today

         25  have all spoken to this truth. What a horrible
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          2  precedent New York has created for all the tristate

          3  area, and much follow-up is needed to ascertain the

          4  damage that is done.

          5                 This madness must stop. With a call

          6  to the public we formulated a grassroots group that

          7  has now grown to a tristate coalition level.

          8                 We are here to take control back over

          9  the quality of our air in children's environments.

         10  It is clear that the momentum of thousands of

         11  tristate protestors have brought us to this

         12  unanimous vote, no more spraying.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 MR. MORDENTE: I am working with

         16  people around the globe, scientists and

         17  environmentalists and people on the Internet that

         18  are trying to give us information to make our lives

         19  much, much better.

         20                 If somebody is spraying us and

         21  cancering (sic) us and killing us and deforming us

         22  and putting us in the hospital, those persons are

         23  criminals. They should be brought to trial. And if

         24  they are guilty they should be in jail.

         25                 Most of those people are top
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          2  executives, not all of them are bad. We live in a

          3  bad world and we live in a good world. We send guys

          4  to the moon and at the same time we are being

          5  cancered more and more every day.

          6                 In the 1950s one out of every 23 of

          7  us was cancered, today it is every one out of every

          8  two of us are cancered.

          9                 We are living in a world that while

         10  the population is exploding, we are ruining the air

         11  that we breathe, we are poisoning the waters that we

         12  drink, and our foods are loaded with chemicals.

         13                 Somebody talked earlier about DDT.

         14  DDT was supposed to be banned in the United States.

         15  Do you know what is happening to it? It is sold to

         16  foreign countries. They put it in the produce. They

         17  put it in the vegetables, it is shipped back here

         18  into the United States and 40 percent of our fruits

         19  and vegetables in our super duper stuper markets

         20  have cancer in them.

         21                 We are a stupid society and we are an

         22  intelligent society, but we don't look at all of the

         23  sides, and we don't see what percentage worse than

         24  the other percentages.

         25                 We have got a few good guys up here,
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          2  they don't even want to take compliments that they

          3  are good guys. They say take a look at all of the

          4  other guys and question them as to what is

          5  happening.

          6                 I will give you some more statistics.

          7  Every single year over 200,000 species are

          8  exterminated, eradicated from this planet. That is

          9  like dinosaurs, they are gone forever. We are on the

         10  list, somewhere between another seven to a dozen

         11  years from now, if we don't stop the most corrupt,

         12  evil, political and corporate CEO heads, we won't

         13  have grandchildren.

         14                 Do you understand what I am talking

         15  about? We are basically killing ourselves and we

         16  just don't have the brains to understand what is

         17  going on.

         18                 We are told we have five senses, you

         19  can see, you can hear, you can feel, we are not

         20  talking about -- the sense is all of the other

         21  senses, the sixth sense, the brain. We don't have a

         22  brain on this planet. We don't have a brain in the

         23  City, we don't have a brain in the state, we don't

         24  have a brain in the United States of America, we

         25  don't have a brain around the world. Yes, there are
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          2  some intelligent people on this planet. There is a

          3  union of concerned global scientists that are sent a

          4  letter to the head of every nation on this planet,

          5  warning them of what is happening. I am telling you

          6  again, we got somewhere between seven to 11 years or

          7  we begin to become like dinosaurs.

          8                 Do you understand what I am talking

          9  about? I am trying to talk in a way that is

         10  educational, that is humanitarian, and we don't have

         11  a good City Council, our Mayor is insane. He knew

         12  what this stuff was going to do to us. So, I will

         13  read you something about what he says in his mirror

         14  at night, in his subconscious mind.

         15                 I kill. I spray you all with my

         16  deadly insane malathion. I sicken, I poison, I

         17  cancer your families. Lots of you will die.

         18  Long-term effect. I am just so dumb and horrible and

         19  insane. I am a sick, psycho, ego-lunatic. Yes, there

         20  are other very safe healthy sprays that can be used,

         21  but I love secret payoffs and bribes, so I kill you

         22  more.

         23                 Now you will put me on trial, and I

         24  will just go to prison if found guilty and never

         25  again can I cancer your families with my mad, evil,
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          2  insane malathion.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 MR. ORENGO: Aton Edwards, Ron Raz,

          6  Tanya Anthony, and Diane Haavind.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Would you

          8  identify yourself for the record, please.

          9                 MR. EDWARDS: My name is Aton Edwards,

         10  and I am the Director of an organization called the

         11  Preparedness Network, it's a national organization,

         12  and we have a large chapter here in New York.

         13                 MR. RAZ: My name is Ron Raz, and I am

         14  connected with many environmental groups, but today

         15  I am just a concerned citizen.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, Madam.

         17                 MS. HAAVIND: My name is Diane

         18  Haavind. I am a resident of Brooklyn Heights. I was

         19  the head of an environmental organization in

         20  Connecticut years ago, I am just appearing as a

         21  citizen of New York City today. I have ten years

         22  work in health care here in the City.

         23                 MS. ANTHONY: My name is Tanya

         24  Anthony. I am just a college student that was

         25  attacked by the spray.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you. Begin.

          3                 MR. EDWARDS: First of all, I want to

          4  say thank you for sitting all day and also giving us

          5  an opportunity to express how we feel about this

          6  situation.

          7                 I mean, it has been great to see that

          8  you have been so attentive and so patient with

          9  everyone.

         10                 Okay, first of all, also I want to

         11  address something, I didn't really hear it come up

         12  because I came in kind of late today. I am not too

         13  sure if anyone had addressed the economic factor of

         14  the spraying.

         15                 One of the questions that I had was,

         16  with this malathion and this spray that was used by

         17  the City, was this the most cost-effective spray

         18  that the City had available to it?

         19                 I know that in speaking with Mr.

         20  Friedman, Jay Friedman, on a radio program, that

         21  essentially that the organic-based pesticides were a

         22  bit more expensive than the malathion, so I think

         23  there is an economic factor that you have to look at

         24  eventually, to find out if the City did, you know,

         25  make a choice to use this because it was most

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            340

          1  COMMITTEE ON HEALTH

          2  cost-effective.

          3                 And also, I want to quote from a

          4  sociologist, his name is Lucy Oblanski and he had a

          5  theory about a particular type of behavior that we

          6  sometimes see in bureaucracies, he tended to call it

          7  arobopathy, which I tend to think is a pathology

          8  that we see in these mechanisms that we have that

          9  have to deal with these particular types of

         10  situations.

         11                 For instance, you know, we have a lot

         12  of emotion and we have a lot of passion that people

         13  have about this issue, but I think that the problem

         14  is that in issues of this type I think that we have

         15  to get down to the fact. And the facts are, from

         16  what I can see, that to use malathion in ways that

         17  the City has chosen to use them is incorrect and

         18  that is like, you know, stating it minimally, that

         19  it was a mistake, that we have to have some sort of

         20  a check and balance method in place where we can

         21  analyze, because again, this is going to come up in

         22  the future. We are not going to -- this is not at

         23  the end of this particular problem, this is only the

         24  beginning and we are moving into an epidemiological

         25  new paradigm for the 21st century, we are going to
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          2  experience a lot more of this and I think that the

          3  City has got to put a mechanism in place that is

          4  going to be able to analyze the causes and the

          5  effects of the particular situations that we face.

          6  As in when we have situations where we have to use a

          7  pesticide, unfortunately or something that can kill

          8  insects, what is the best method available to us?

          9  What is the best method chemically? And again, at

         10  the end of this equation, it always has to be what

         11  is best for us, human beings and the environment.

         12  Not what is best for the corporations who

         13  manufacture the pesticide or not what is best for

         14  the bureaucrats who have to work with the

         15  corporations that manufacture their pesticides, and

         16  we have to make decisions based on what is going to

         17  do our communities the best good.

         18                 Now, another thing, as I question the

         19  material used obviously, and the method, I want to

         20  know who is responsible for the spraying, as in is

         21  the City, does the City recognize just how difficult

         22  it is to utilize aircraft to spray pesticides or any

         23  other substance in an effective way. I wasn't sure

         24  if the City had consulted with -- unfortunately, we

         25  have, for instance, the Department of the Armory had
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          2  conducted numerous studies of chemical and

          3  biological warfare over the past 40 years,

          4  specifically the methods of spraying with an

          5  aerosol, and if the City had consulted the army or

          6  any of the other entities that we have in the

          7  military that have conducted extensive studies on

          8  aerosol dissemination, they would have found that to

          9  spray an aerosol agent within a city is a

         10  ridiculous, ridiculous, absolutely ridiculous way to

         11  kill insects in an effective and reliable way. And

         12  considering that the City decided to use a

         13  helicopter, which creates the vortex of air

         14  underneath it just to keep it aloft, and considering

         15  that the altitude in which the pesticide was sprayed

         16  and all of the other checks that you have to make

         17  when you spray, the velocity of the aircraft, the

         18  altitude of the air craft, the wind speed, the

         19  temperature, the moisture content of the air at the

         20  time, all of these different factors have to be

         21  weighed and I don't think that they did this. And

         22  since I don't believe that they did, it seems to me

         23  that the entire concept of spraying was made by an

         24  individual within to either the EOM or the City's

         25  Administration that didn't draw upon any information
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          2  available to them that was reliable.

          3                 Secondly, I want to conclude with,

          4  what is the City going to do about the inner city

          5  areas that have a lot of -- you know, the conditions

          6  are dilapidated, there is a lot of garbage? What is

          7  the City going to do about the clean-up of the

          8  habitats of the mosquitos?

          9                 Because, again, come this spring we

         10  are going to have this problem, it is going to

         11  resurface and the areas that are affected the most

         12  by these problems, the areas that are on the fringes

         13  of all of the tire dumps and things like that, which

         14  in a lot of cases are in the City areas in

         15  dilapidated points, can the citizens become involved

         16  in sort of a collective clean-up so that the

         17  citizens can actually assist the City in cleaning up

         18  some of these areas?

         19                 Also, with the destruction of the

         20  mosquito populations, the natural predators are

         21  going to also be affected by this, and subsequently,

         22  come next spring, we are going to have a resurgence

         23  of the mosquitos with less natural predators. So, it

         24  is really important that the City has some sort of a

         25  plan in effect that is going to help to clean up
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          2  these areas, because we can't kind of like wait

          3  until certain decisions are made about the funding -

          4  is the Sanitation Department going to do it? Is the

          5  Fire Department going to do it? Because if we wait

          6  that long, come 2000 in the spring, when the

          7  mosquitos start to hatch, we are going to see the

          8  problems resurface and with a greater volume.

          9                 And, finally, in the future,

         10  unfortunately, the City is going to have to face the

         11  reality of the prospect of biological weapons being

         12  used here. Now, considering the way that the City

         13  handles this particular circumstance, what are we

         14  going to do when God forbid that an enemy utilizes a

         15  biological weapon in the City and questions have to

         16  be answered, and then we have this posture that some

         17  of the officials within the EOM and some of these

         18  officials even within the CDC that I saw take, which

         19  is that the decisions that they make are

         20  intractable, and the people's opinions are

         21  disregarded. Even the people who have the background

         22  and information available to them that make

         23  decisions that might be better than the decisions

         24  that they made for us as a group.

         25                 So, I want to also offer this to you,
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          2  information about our organization. We would like to

          3  work with the City in helping to educate the

          4  populations about the hazards that we face, and

          5  anything that we can do, we have like 2,200 members

          6  here in the City, if we could be in assistance and

          7  help clean up some of the dumps and clean up some of

          8  the areas, you know, we have that available to you,

          9  so I would like to offer this to you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Sergeant-At-Arms,

         11  do you want to get this?

         12                 MR. EDWARDS: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         14                 MR. RAZ: Well, today was a great step

         15  forward for all of us because we were all so

         16  disheartened by a response from anybody when this

         17  all started, and there is not much more than I can

         18  really add, I am going to cut this, make this the

         19  shortest one today.

         20                 But I have been an environmental

         21  activist for 35 years, I have been through a lot. I

         22  grew up in California, in the sixties, and I started

         23  right in the beginning with all kinds of issues, and

         24  this is one of the most difficult ones I have ever

         25  come across. And out there I got a few degrees in
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          2  environmental studies, and I have a degree in

          3  ornamental horticulture, so I know a lot about

          4  insects and insecticides and plants and so forth,

          5  and I don't know where the City or people in

          6  authority could for all of these weeks keep saying

          7  that there are no dangers in this insecticide when I

          8  have boxes of information I have been saving for 30

          9  years because it became a passion of mine back in

         10  California, because there was a lot of spraying in

         11  California, in Central Valley, for encephalitis, and

         12  there has always been, no matter what the State

         13  people said, even though malathion has been used and

         14  other insecticides are sprayed constantly, there has

         15  always been information to show their detrimental

         16  affect. There is lots of it out there.

         17                 I just feel like this approach the

         18  City is taking is completely irrational, and I was

         19  shocked when I heard state people today use the term

         20  epidemic. It is no epidemic at all. I mean, that is

         21  where all of this misinformation comes from, using

         22  all of those types of words and scaring the public.

         23  There is no epidemic. So, this approach is

         24  completely wrong.

         25                 So, I think almost everything has
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          2  been touched on today, the things that we have to

          3  address for the future.

          4                 And I just wanted to close, and I

          5  have been writing lots of letters to the editors so

          6  I am going to submit letters and things that I

          7  wrote. But one thing that I feel, in my opinion, one

          8  thing is for sure, the City authorities have naively

          9  taken a perceived human health threat and turned it

         10  into a real environmental crisis, especially with

         11  indiscriminate spraying of broad spectrum

         12  insecticides, that means they are non-selective, and

         13  they are killing not just the mosquitos, but the

         14  dragonflies, the bees, the butterflies, which

         15  affects the entire food chain and at the long run

         16  does incredible harm to the environment, and that is

         17  about where I stand on the issue.

         18                 MS. HAAVIND: I don't know who I am

         19  addressing here since the Chairman has left.

         20                 MS. ORENGO: He is on the phone. He

         21  will be right back.

         22                 MS. HAAVIND: Should we wait?

         23                 MR. ORENGO: No, no. Just talk.

         24                 MS. HAAVIND: All right, I will just

         25  talk. I have a question. Somebody told me -- this is
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          2  a rumor, but somebody told me that malathion was on

          3  the Mayor's list of dangerous chemicals that might

          4  be used by terrorists. I don't know if that is true.

          5                 I am really here because I thought I

          6  was very healthy this summer, I was feeling very

          7  well, except for the heat, but prior to September

          8  12th, after the aerial spray of pesticides

          9  commenced, I began to have some vague headaches, and

         10  I never get headaches, and following the 12th in

         11  Brooklyn, I live in Brooklyn Heights, right behind

         12  the Promenade, my symptoms of exposure became acute,

         13  burning in the throat, chest, nausea, sores in the

         14  mouth and nose, high blood pressure, sweats, urinary

         15  urgency and irritation in the bladder, swelling in a

         16  knee and a foot, yellow bowel, ocular pressure,

         17  racing metabolism, irritability, as well as muscular

         18  weakness and low blood sugar, and they don't know

         19  anything to do for me. I seem to be still walking,

         20  so maybe I detoxed. I am a health food person, I eat

         21  only organic food. I took I sauna, I did everything

         22  anybody told me to do in terms of vitamins and

         23  things like that, but these symptoms have been

         24  recurring for a month and it goes away and it comes

         25  back.
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          2                 Anyway, I worked in health care for

          3  ten years, and I have some idea about diseases and

          4  my questions on this are later, but malathion and

          5  resmethrin are allegedly used with unknown

          6  stabilizers and unknown additives and they are

          7  poisons. I have been told maybe I am chemically

          8  sensitive now or maybe I am allergic, but that is

          9  not it. I guess I reached the point of toxicity in

         10  my life, I am 63, where it hit me to have any more

         11  poison introduced into my system. I don't know why I

         12  reacted this way because, you know, I could feel it,

         13  and most people are walking around, they are getting

         14  the same dose and they are not feeling anything.

         15                 But in studies long-term affects

         16  include organ tissue and cell damage and liver and

         17  mammary tumors. And this information was sent to

         18  your Committee I believe by NYCAP.

         19                 In California, if you read to the end

         20  of the malathion packet, the USDA wanted to conduct

         21  random, urban studies, testing the affects of

         22  malathion on bystandards, but this was deemed.

         23                 Apparently in the current New York

         24  City spray program, I am a side effect in the Mayor

         25  and the CDC's chemotherapy chemical warfare on
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          2  mosquitos, ostensively designed for health

          3  protection. The so-called West Nile-like fever is

          4  not reported to be a serious health threat but I

          5  have serious reactions to the so-called crisis

          6  intervention spray program.

          7                 It hasn't been proven to me, anyway,

          8  that any type of encephalitis is the actual cause of

          9  death in any of the reported cases, bird of human.

         10  Now, I could be wrong about this, this is just a

         11  question, birds do not die of West Nile Fever abroad

         12  normally, except for sometimes. So why did these

         13  birds die?

         14                 In this area they do die in the

         15  current numbers at this time of year, according to

         16  the Autobahn Society, we are not above the usual

         17  bird count. Antibodies for a virus are not a

         18  determination of cause of death. Brain autopsies

         19  following death are required for an absolute

         20  determination of what type of encephalitis it was,

         21  whether it was from another cause.

         22                 In humans, the most common cause of

         23  encephalitis is Herpes Simplex Type 1 virus which

         24  causes cold sores and can be dormant in the body.

         25  How do we know that this wasn't the cause in some of
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          2  these elderly people who died. Other causes are

          3  AIDS, other things.

          4                 The other people who have been

          5  reported to have died in this so-called outbreak no

          6  doubt had multiple health compromises which could

          7  have been actual cause of death. No information is

          8  available as to their identities or prior health

          9  status, and I think that is a good question, maybe

         10  the information is out there but I haven't heard it.

         11                 In medicine diagnosis is crucial. In

         12  this situation there was a massive overreaction to

         13  an original erroneous assumption by subjecting New

         14  York City and the tristate area now to repeated

         15  blanket spraying, for what is said to be a mild

         16  fever of little danger, except to the young and the

         17  old and the immune compromise. We created a huge, I

         18  don't know what you call it, it's a dilemma. The

         19  same groups that are supposedly protected by this

         20  spray are the most vulnerable to pesticide

         21  poisoning. These groups might have used insect

         22  repellant or mosquito netting put over the babies,

         23  so was the spray program a callow, an uninformed,

         24  inhumane and unethical operation to appease paranoia

         25  or to appease people who think they are real
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          2  scientists, as opposed to the union of concerned

          3  scientists, which was just mentioned, or other

          4  people who are scientists, to air on the side of

          5  caution would have been to abstain from a

          6  heavy-handed misguided jump to conclusion.

          7                 The Mayor repeatedly called his

          8  program cautionary, but many people have been

          9  poisoned, and I cannot be the only one. I think it

         10  was an unconscionable choice on the part of the city

         11  and the CDC, and even though organic pest management

         12  may be a little more expensive in the short run, in

         13  the long run, the cost in terms of health care will

         14  be a great saving, if you go for organic pest

         15  management, rather than chemical warfare.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you.

         18                 MS. ANTHONY: Hi. Four years ago I was

         19  diagnosed with lymphatic cancer, which was kind of a

         20  shock in itself, just trying to like go to school

         21  and manage my life and live and then that in itself

         22  was a very hard thing, and it was an education

         23  itself. Fighting against doctors who were pressuring

         24  me to get treatment, and then surgeries and stuff,

         25  and I just didn't want it because my mother went
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          2  through a similar bout now coming upon nine years

          3  ago and she lost her life.

          4                 So, already I had a very tough time

          5  with my immune system, and I worked part time, and I

          6  go to school part-time, so when this thing started

          7  with the bug spray, I was like, gee, this is not

          8  going to be good. One day I am coming home and just

          9  four blocks from the station from my house here are

         10  the helicopters zooming over my head. I am like,

         11  okay, what can I do? I can't hide from this thing.

         12                 The very next day, which was like the

         13  Monday, it was the 20th of September, I got really

         14  sick, I thought I had like a cold coming on.

         15                 This cold turned out to be like the

         16  biggest battle of my life, when I found out it

         17  wasn't a cold it was from the bug spray. I just kept

         18  saying over and over, there was no other answer,

         19  there was nothing wrong with me, my life was

         20  basically balanced because I am in a study program

         21  that when I graduate I will be the equivalent of a

         22  primary care physician in the alternative world. So,

         23  I am learning how to do this health care without

         24  poisons and medicines and whatever. And the Tuesday

         25  I couldn't go to work, I called in sick, I said,
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          2  look, I can't make it, I am really sick here, and it

          3  is strange because it happened just after they

          4  sprayed my neighborhood, and it just kept getting

          5  worse and worse. Wednesday I lost the ability to

          6  hold my bladder which is very unusual, because I was

          7  an athlete before so there was no problem. This kept

          8  escalating, so I finally went to the doctor on

          9  Thursday, he is telling me I have an upper

         10  respiratory infection, and I am saying, well, how

         11  can that develop just from Sunday to now, you know,

         12  how can that happen? He goes I don't know, maybe you

         13  caught some kind of virus. I was like, well, look,

         14  no mosquito bit me, nothing happened like that, all

         15  that happened was I saw helicopters in my

         16  neighborhood, and we have no air conditioning so we

         17  pull the windows down and all of this, but I still

         18  have to go to work for Monday and Tuesday, I went

         19  out to get a few things but it still was in the air.

         20  The chest burned, I had red eyes, the water kept

         21  continuing, I am coughing, coughing, coughing, every

         22  cough hurt, you know?

         23                 So, finally, after a week of this I

         24  go to the hospital and they tell me, oh, you have a

         25  pneumonia. I was like, well, how did I get
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          2  pneumonia?  Well, they said, you have this

          3  infection, and the spreading, and I told them that

          4  constantly two sides of my head hurt, like you know,

          5  someone had hit me, and it was very hard for me, my

          6  eyes were very bad.

          7                 Also, you know, I felt like I was

          8  really dying, I felt like I was slowly slipping

          9  away. So, I am consulting everyone I know in my

         10  field, you know, what to do about this, even MDs who

         11  are friends of mine, they are telling me to do this,

         12  do that and the other, and all of the bacterial or

         13  viral things were covered and I still wasn't getting

         14  better, so we switched to heavy detox. They had me

         15  on four different kind of programs. All day long

         16  that is all I did, stay home, drink liquids, and do

         17  these detox.

         18                 That is the only reason why I am

         19  sitting here, because when I went to the hospital

         20  three times, each time they are telling me, oh, you

         21  have this, you have some kind of cold. And then the

         22  pneumonia, they want to give me antibiotics, and I

         23  said, well, if I have antibiotics you are wiping out

         24  all of my bacteria that could have helped me, I

         25  don't think so. Let me handle this.
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          2                 So, they gave the note, I called my

          3  office and told them, look, I am really sick here.

          4  Two and a half weeks later I start to gain my

          5  equilibrium. Two and a half weeks I missed work, I

          6  haven't gone to school. My boss is threatening to

          7  fire me. He told me on the phone at 12:30, if you

          8  don't come in today you are going to be in trouble

          9  tomorrow. I waited all day to speak to let you

         10  people know that it has been very cost detrimental

         11  to me. I have rent to pay. They told me apply for

         12  Medicaid. For what? There is nobody that is going to

         13  take care of it, because the doctors didn't want to

         14  believe me when I said I believe it is because the

         15  helicopters were flying over my neighborhood that I

         16  was sick. They didn't want to hear that. They said,

         17  no, no, no, you are not a specialist, you don't know

         18  anything. So, what are you saying, because I am

         19  black or because I am a woman or because I don't

         20  have a degree hanging on the wall? It was very bad

         21  for me.

         22                 On top of that, the things that I had

         23  to buy to save my life still cost money. They had to

         24  Fed Ex and they had to send it and the next day it

         25  saved my life. There were different kinds of
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          2  detoxes, one for the liver, one for the general

          3  blood stream, one to pull out the tissue, one to

          4  extract out of your pancreas, bone marrow. This

          5  stuff was still expensive, at the rate of $55 each,

          6  or $45 or whatever. I paid it on my credit card, I

          7  still have to pay that back. The City don't want to

          8  help me. They don't want to help nobody. They think

          9  we are all just like, so what, who cares? But I

         10  still got to go back to work and face my employers,

         11  and, you know, I have one person who believes I must

         12  be a lazy girl, stay home, so what she had a cold.

         13  It wasn't a cold. It was a poison. I was hacking up

         14  big nasty green things all the day trying to get rid

         15  of it. One morning I was bleeding out of my chest.

         16  It was coming up, little bits of blood, and that is

         17  when I freaked out, I said now I am going to die

         18  because they are spraying for some bugs, they didn't

         19  even finish testing. They could have used anything,

         20  but no.

         21                 That is why I have to say to you, it

         22  is the small people who can't even speak English

         23  well, or regular students or something, no one is

         24  going to champion our costs. So, you people, I hope

         25  you can help us.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Thank you, again.

          3  Thank you very much. I appreciate you being the last

          4  or at least having the patience. We appreciate the

          5  fact that you waited until the very end and for that

          6  I must personally thank you for that.

          7                 Seeing no other slips before me --

          8                 MR. COHEN: I submitted a slip.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: All right, the

         10  last two, let's go. With all due respect, I know he

         11  walked around.

         12                 Please take your discussions outside

         13  so we can finish this round, please.

         14                 All right, do you want to identify

         15  yourself for the record, sir.

         16                 MR. COHEN: Yes. My name is Mitchell

         17  Cohen, I am from the Green Party of New York, and

         18  Green Party USA.

         19                 MR. POZAR: My name is Poza Pozar, and

         20  I am an electronic journalist as well.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay, go ahead,

         22  sir.

         23                 MR. COHEN: Yes, I appreciate you

         24  being here and giving us the opportunity to speak.

         25                 Now, listening to the speeches all
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          2  day, especially of the health officials, I have a

          3  quote from Voltare, of all people, they said that:

          4  "those who can make you believe absurdities can

          5  make you commit atrocities."

          6                 Now, I was in Prospect Park, the

          7  first day of the spraying, the second day of the

          8  spraying, and I watched the helicopters. I live in

          9  Bensonhurst, and I was out in Park Slope and

         10  Prospect Park area, and helicopters came in at tree

         11  level, the second day of spraying, without any

         12  warning, without any notice at 5:30 in the

         13  afternoon, there were literally hundreds, perhaps

         14  several thousand people in Prospect Park, people

         15  playing soccer, a bright sunny day. The helicopters

         16  came in, somewhat diving in and began spraying

         17  everybody in sight. Little children playing in the

         18  playground on Garfield Place in the park, people

         19  walking with their pets. They didn't tell people to

         20  get out of the way, they just sprayed everybody. I

         21  ran in the other direction and I got off the street

         22  but I saw what was happening. And other people were

         23  trying to run to get out of the way, too. But we saw

         24  this happening. No warning. I have to think if this

         25  was planned they would at least give some warning,
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          2  have an announcement like they do on helicopters

          3  saying get off the streets. That didn't happen at

          4  all.

          5                 From that we began setting up a hot

          6  line and we have gotten calls from hundreds and

          7  hundreds of people, and that is just us, little

          8  dinky group, from all over the City of people who

          9  had similar experiences who are sick, who are

         10  coughing up all sorts of materials, who had asthma

         11  attacks, who hadn't had that in years, or who had

         12  asthma and who had much more serious attacks as a

         13  result.

         14                 This was going on all over the City.

         15  We recommended that people call City hot line

         16  number. The hot line number said we don't take this

         17  sort of information. Dr. Adrianne Buffalo tried to

         18  arrange for a hot line number, she finally arranged

         19  for the poison number, the poison control number to

         20  accept these calls. People that we know called into

         21  the poison control center and the poison control

         22  center said, no, we are not taking, we are not

         23  writing these down. So there is no tracking

         24  mechanism, there was a lot of people who were sick

         25  as a result of the spray. There is a lot of people
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          2  who were bitten by mosquitos, we heard a lot of talk

          3  about that. So, that is one thing the City Council

          4  can do right now, is set up a number to take

          5  people's complaints who have had health problems as

          6  a result of this spraying. It is a very simple thing

          7  to do. The people who could call in.

          8                 There are also doctors who are trying

          9  to document it, but we are all doing this as

         10  individuals around the City.

         11                 Another thing to do, right now,

         12  tonight and tomorrow in Westchester County they are

         13  spraying around the New York City reservoirs, and

         14  they are trying to avoid the actual reservoirs to

         15  the extent that they can, but they cannot, they have

         16  said, avoid the tributaries that lead into the

         17  reservoirs. This is going into our drinking water,

         18  and another thing the City Council can do is contact

         19  the Health Administrator from New York State and ask

         20  to put a stop to this. If she doesn't do that, file

         21  a suit to stop the spraying around New York City

         22  reservoirs and the tributaries that feed into them.

         23  That is the coherent immediate thing to do.

         24                 There is, when I sat here listening

         25  to Dr. Cohen and Jerry Hauer, neither of them, by
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          2  the way, have a degree in public health. Dr. Cohen

          3  is an able psychiatrist and has done a lot of good

          4  work in the past, but not a degree in public health,

          5  and Jerry Hauer is an administrator, a political

          6  bureaucrat. And I listened to them, and similar to

          7  other people, I listened to them and also to the CDC

          8  representative who said, and I quote, it didn't seem

          9  prudent to switch chemicals in the middle of an

         10  epidemic.

         11                 Well, when did the CDC call it an

         12  epidemic? Because once you cite that, it never

         13  happens. Not only was it not an epidemic in reality,

         14  it was never called an epidemic legally. But that is

         15  the mindset that we are faced with.

         16                 Another official up here called it a

         17  health emergency. Legally this was not a health

         18  emergency. Once you call it that there is a

         19  procedure to follow, once you do that that allows

         20  certain things to be put in effect, papers that you

         21  have to fill out, et cetera. But this is the mindset

         22  that was happening throughout the City, and I began

         23  realizing that this wasn't about mosquitos, but this

         24  was about a war. Everything was done to consolidate

         25  a military approach dealing with a frightened
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          2  population, that was manufactured frightened

          3  population I believe. It was coordinated from the

          4  bunker, a military bunker in the World Trade Center,

          5  we saw that on TV, and done in a way that we are

          6  all, the people here are all collateral damage in

          7  the war that they are waging, and I see it as a mass

          8  experiment to see how every city street could be

          9  covered, how long it takes, what kind of resistance

         10  it would take to be covered by trucks, to be covered

         11  by helicopters.

         12                 In my view, they did exactly what

         13  they intended to do, that this for the most part was

         14  not a mistake, this is part of a plan. It was a

         15  military approach to dealing with a health problem

         16  in New York, and that is a major problem I think for

         17  us.

         18                 Finally, I guess I will cut this much

         19  shorter than I thought I was going to, as everybody

         20  else has as well, I am interested also in the birds

         21  that have been said to have been diagnosed with the

         22  virus. I believe there were something like 11 or 12

         23  birds, out of the 3,000 or 4,000 that they have said

         24  have died in clumps and clusters around the City.

         25                 Now, that is a serious thing if there
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          2  are 12 birds that are diagnosed with the virus, but

          3  what did the other 2,988 birds die from?

          4                 Perhaps half of them were sorted out.

          5  We need to ask that. And the reason why we need to

          6  ask that is because they are not performing

          7  toxicological reports, they are looking only for the

          8  virus and not looking for whatever else might have

          9  killed the birds. Why did they die? We have heard

         10  the testimony today on that.

         11                 The same way they originally looked

         12  only for the St. Louis Encephalitis antibodies and

         13  then only later did somebody realize, Dr. McNamara,

         14  did she realize this doesn't make sense. But they

         15  were sure it was St. Louis encephalitis, because

         16  that is what they were looking for and there were

         17  antibodies. There are antibodies in our bodies for a

         18  million different things, so the way they have set

         19  it up, unless they are looking for the specific

         20  ailment, that is what they will find, they will find

         21  antibodies for that, and what we are calling for is

         22  complete toxicology reports on did the malathion

         23  kill the birds, what about the 1,000 fish that the

         24  Staten Island Advance reported were killed in Staten

         25  Island as a result of the spraying that was done.
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          2  Did the birds eat those fish? You know, what is the

          3  food chain and how does this affect all of us.

          4                 All of this is ignored in the

          5  military mindset approach of the Blitz Creek

          6  approach to how we deal with the problems that we

          7  face.

          8                 So, finally, here in my hand, this is

          9  the label, you have that already, and on the label

         10  it says this product is toxic to fish aquatic and

         11  vertebrates. For terrestrial uses do not apply

         12  directly to water or to areas where surface water is

         13  present. Drift and runoff may be hazardous to

         14  aquatic organisms.

         15                 Now, they know this, we don't have to

         16  sit up here trying to explain the City Council has a

         17  responsibility of drawing this out of them, of

         18  confronting them and saying you must know this, this

         19  is your job. You have read the label, so why then,

         20  did you proceed in the way you proceeded. And that

         21  is the responsibility of the City Council, I think

         22  you asked some very good questions today, I don't

         23  think they went deep enough, the way I would have

         24  loved to have debated. And I guess I will have to

         25  run for City Council next year when Howard Lasher
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          2  retires --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Good idea.

          4                 MR. COHEN: Thank you very much.

          5                 MR. POZAR: Mr. Robles, papers have

          6  been filed, a notice of intention to sue has been

          7  filed with several city and state agencies I believe

          8  already, and there will be more, and I would like

          9  the Health Committee to endorse two resolutions or

         10  at least to introduce two resolutions to be endorsed

         11  by the Health Committee, as well as the Council at

         12  large.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Any

         14  recommendations you have, we will be more than happy

         15  to look at. And under our laws, if our legal people

         16  -- you have to separate the difference between

         17  legal actions and court pending, and introducing

         18  resolutions. And I am not a lawyer so I have to be

         19  careful.

         20                 MR. POZAR: Right.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: So all I am

         22  saying to you is I suggest you give to me or to this

         23  Committee what is the resolutions or the body of

         24  what you want to endorse. We will have our legal

         25  people look at it and if there is no conflict with
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          2  any pending litigation, then I don't see any reason

          3  why any one of us can consider it.

          4                 At this point I can't answer that

          5  question until I see what you are proposing.

          6                 MR. POZAR: I would like the Council

          7  and the Health Committee to endorse the concept.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I can't, sir. Let

          9  me be clear. I cannot endorse a concept I have not

         10  seen.

         11                 MR. POZAR: Now, I have read that the

         12  Council Digest, and I have read in there where

         13  concepts are endorsed. Do you have a copy of the --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: No, no. Let me be

         15  clear. I am prepared to look at anything that is

         16  proposed consideration. That I can do.

         17                 MR. POZAR: I just want to be clear.

         18  Are you telling me that the City Council does not

         19  endorse concepts?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Sir, resolution

         21  or statements where a body goes on record in lieu of

         22  legislation, and I am just simply saying to you is,

         23  if you are asking me do we operate where anyone who

         24  comes out with some kind of endorsement or concept,

         25  the answer is some may think that way but as you
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          2  funnel it through the legal channels, we put it into

          3  a legislative document that can hold if anyone

          4  challenges it in court.

          5                 So, again, I am not a lawyer, I am

          6  just explaining to you.

          7                 MR. POZAR: I understand that you are

          8  not a lawyer, but I have read the Council's --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Fine. I --

         10                 MR. POZAR: Why do you let everybody

         11  else talk and you are not letting me talk?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: I am saying --

         13                 MR. POZAR: But you are not letting me

         14  finish.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Go ahead, sir.

         16                 MR. POZAR: You got a woman -- you

         17  told someone who was sitting here that you had no

         18  jurisdiction to order the State Department of

         19  Health, and I forget what her name was --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: That's correct.

         21                 MR. POZER: To --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Right.

         23                 MR. POZAR: But that wasn't what she

         24  was asking you.

         25                 What she was asking you to do was to
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          2  start the ball rolling on a resolution endorsing --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Okay --

          4                 MR. POZAR: Why are you stopping me?

          5  Every time I speak, you stop me.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Go ahead.

          7                 MR. POZAR: Everybody else has spoken

          8  over their time, I am nowhere near my time and you

          9  are stopping me every time.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Go ahead.

         11                 MR. POZAR: And it is a matter of fact

         12  that the City Council does in fact have resolutions

         13  endorsing concepts that it believes to be in the

         14  public interest. I know this for a fact. It is in

         15  the Council Digest, I know that. You have got a

         16  federal committee, you have got a federal statute

         17  committee on the City Council, and you can't pass

         18  federal laws, but you pass resolutions either

         19  endorsing or condemning the federal statutes. I know

         20  this.

         21                 You have a committee that passes

         22  resolutions on endorsing or condemning state

         23  statutes which you have no jurisdiction to pass, but

         24  you do pass resolutions on endorsing the concept,

         25  and you can endorse a resolution authorizing and
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          2  endorsing the concept that the State Health woman

          3  order the Mayor to stop it. Which is not the

          4  resolution I would like the City Council to endorse.

          5                 The resolution that I would like the

          6  City Council to endorse is the idea that when this

          7  lawsuit hits the federal courts in the Southern

          8  District, I would like the City Council to pass a

          9  resolution endorsing televised coverage of the

         10  procedures in the Southern District. I am not asking

         11  you to pass a law. Endorse the concept, because that

         12  is where it all begins.

         13                 Local Rule 1.7 in the Southern

         14  District authorizes district judges to permit

         15  televised coverage. Ninety percent of what has been

         16  said up here would be hearsay and wouldn't even be

         17  in the court. That is a search for truth.

         18                 And if yourself, as well as other

         19  members of the City Council, are in favor of a

         20  search for truth, in informing the constituency of

         21  New York, then the City Council should be in favor

         22  of passing a resolution that everybody see the

         23  courtroom evidence that happens as a result of this

         24  lawsuit being filed, and the Council can endorse a

         25  resolution and that it is in favor of the
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          2  courtroom's proceedings in this lawsuit being

          3  televised.

          4                 Thank you for making me yell and

          5  scream and go crazy just to get heard, when

          6  everybody has had a chance to just run their mouth

          7  off on what they feel. I am talking about what the

          8  law is.

          9                 Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ROBLES: Let me again

         11  conclude by saying that I welcome any suggestions,

         12  like I said all day, and I will look at it, and if

         13  need be, I will forward it to make sure that Council

         14  members have consideration too.

         15                 Now, having seen no more slips for

         16  speaking, I adjourn these hearings.

         17                 (Hearing concluded at 6:45 p.m.)

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            372

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 12th day of October 1999.

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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